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Emakina Group is one of the top three
independent networks of full-service
European digital agencies. We are
constantly adapting our services to the

latest technological advancements and industry
evolutions, and employ only the most talented
specialists. With more than 1,000 experts in
13 countries across 3 continents, we fight daily

alongside our clients and their brands to
boost their digital business’ performance and
deliver outstanding user experiences.
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Overview
Let’s read a few words
from our CEOs and
have a quick look at
the key facts in 2019.
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A word from the CEOs

2019
CHAPTER 1

a more
than successful
pivotal year
Brice Le Blévennec and Karim Chouikri
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In 2019, Emakina Group experienced a new
phase of growth, characterised by the
geographical expansion of its activities and
the extension of its spectrum of services.
We are also excited to be reorienting ourselves
for the years to come in order to accompany
our clients through the new accelerating
revolution: Business Automation. We believe
the future - and the survival - of digital
agencies and their clients will depend on
their ability to take this new crucial step in
Digital Transformation. 
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Asian expansion...
The Group continued to expand in Asia, winning numerous
accounts from major retailers in 2019. One such new client
is Chalhoub Group, for whom the first in a series of e-commerce
projects has already been delivered, based on the Salesforce
Commerce Cloud Storefront Reference Architecture.
The success of e-commerce projects for Beko, a Fortune 500
company, led by a joint Emakina.TR and Design is Dead team,
has also demonstrated the effectiveness of our agile, userhappiness-oriented approach, as well as the complementary
nature of Emakina Group’s agencies. This Asian strategy
also translated into the acquisition of the digital agency
Cloudworks, based in Dubai.
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The success of e-commerce
projects, led by a
joint Emakina.TR and
Design is Dead team,
has also demonstrated
the effectiveness of our
agility as well as the
complementary nature of
Emakina Group’s agencies.
Karim Chouikri, CEO

...and European growth
The group’s European agencies have also produced many first-class
projects for prestigious clients. For example, in the Netherlands,
OMRON’s B2C and B2B distribution digitisation has been
successfully deployed, and Intersport’s e-commerce platform is
enjoying enormous success.
In France, the support of the Courir distribution chain has had a
spectacular effect on traffic and conversion, with omnichannel
e-commerce also playing a unifying role between all stakeholders,
whether they’re support agents, logistics teams, in-store staff
or customers.

 Omnichannel
Courir
(Emakina.FR)
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e-Commerce 
L’Occitane - Chalhoub
(Emakina.AE)
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 Digital Marketing
KitchenAid
(Emakina.BE)
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Brice Le Blévennec, CEO
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“Emakina Group’s
invaluable know-how
in terms of user experience,
and clever mix of
business, technology,
marketing and creativity
expertises, positions it
as the ideal partner for
Business Automation.“

Overview

Prestigious accounts
In Belgium, Emakina’s teams support the commercial
strategy of the KitchenAid brand through the management
of its digital campaigns and unified sales channels
throughout the EMEA market. It’s a close collaboration
between our experts and this high-end reference in the
household appliance sector. Also in Belgium, The Reference
delivered an innovative and award-winning top-notch
application for the port operator DP World. For their part,
Emakina’s Dutch and Swedish teams have begun working
with Stockmann, a major player in Nordic retail, on digital
unified commerce projects.

Business Automation in
the line of sight
At a strategic level, Emakina Group is looking to the future
with a new approach. More mature, the market now realises
the full extent of the impact of an organisation’s internal
processes on the quality of products and services it offers to
consumers. The commercial promise of brands falters too easily
when the employee experience and internal processes are not
up to the level of the user experience afforded to consumers.

Overview

As user ambassadors, all Emakina Group agencies are
dedicated to putting intuitive technology in the hands of
different types of users: whether they are citizens, consumers
or employees, all are entitled to the benefits of digital
transformation. Technology must be at the service of human
beings to enhance quality of life as much as at the service of
companies to create added value. As our mission is to make life
easier by designing and producing fluid, useful, enriching
and memorable user experiences, we strongly recommend that
our clients extend this principle to the professional lives of
their employees.
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Brice Le Blévennec, CEO

CHAPTER 1

“ From now on, the success of companies
depends on their ability to demonstrate as
much efficiency in the management of their
internal processes and their collaborators
as they do towards their external partners
and consumers. “

CHAPTER 1
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More than ever user
ambassadors
With this in mind, Emakina Group is now positioning itself as a
reference partner in Business Automation. By optimising internal
processes to make the employee experience more fluid, fast and
efficient, we can help companies apply to themselves the standards
of excellence that they still too often reserve for their clients.
Emakina Group’s invaluable know-how in terms of user experience, and
clever mix of business, technology, marketing and creativity expertise,
positions the Group as the ideal partner for Business Automation.
Emakina Group is poised to accompany clients in any sector through
this decisive stage of Digital Transformation. From now on, the
success of companies depends on their ability to demonstrate as much
dynamism, agility and efficiency in the management of their internal
processes and their collaborators as they do towards their external
partners and consumers. n

Application 
OMRON
(Emakina.NL)

CHAPTER 1
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 e-Commerce
Beko
(Emakina.TR)

Vision

Business
Automation:
technology
for a better world
Brice Le Blévennec, Chief Visionary Officer

In 2020, as digital has become an integral part
of daily life, it’s easy to forget how many aspects
of our existence have changed in the past ten
years. Looking back, the decade’s technological
advances have revolutionised not only our lives,
but our perception of the world. 
Our ways of communicating, consuming, entertaining,
meeting, moving around and even thinking have
integrated digital technologies to the point of ubiquity,
just like fire, the wheel or electricity; we don’t think about
them any more than we think about breathing.
The essence of any technology is to make life easier, more
enjoyable, more rewarding, longer, and reduce the virtual
size of the world – and thus the mental distance that
separates human beings.
This benefits us every day in our private, public and
professional lives, but we don’t yet realise how much
the professional world is set to change. Indeed,
the very concept of work – already so different from
what we experienced 20 years ago – has just begun
its radical revolution.

Industrial
Revolution 4.0
Automation and artificial intelligence are on the
verge of transforming our professional lives to an
unprecedented extent. The paradigm shift is underway
and nothing can stop it.
Emakina Group, like all organisations involved in new
technologies, is taking part. We are already accustomed
to - sometimes even blasé about - industrial
automation, the digitalisation of services and the
prowess of artificial intelligence in scientific research,
among many other things. But few are aware of what
awaits us at the workplace in the years to come.

We can group all this under the more generic term
of Business Process Automation, an area that digital
agencies will have to learn to master in order to offer
their clients a competitive edge. And very soon,
companies that have been slow to adopt these tools
simply won’t be able to stand up to their competitors,
whose processes will have become much more efficient
and whose costs will have been drastically reduced.
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For a long time, we have been automating a large
part of our clients’ marketing and processes. But the
operational functioning of companies is now also
benefiting from process automation, and artificial
intelligence has started to automate the automation
itself. We have been familiar with Robotic Process
Automation (RPA) for some years. Now it is time
for Robotic Process Automation based on Artificial
Intelligence - RPAAI for the insiders.
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Much more than
mere virtual assistants

CHAPTER 1

Automation and artificial
intelligence are on
the verge of transforming
our professional lives to an
unprecedented extent.

Proactive artificial
intelligence
Since the beginnings of computing, various automation
methods have followed one another. Assisted RPA
(or RPA 1.0) consisted of software that automated tasks
by observing and then mimicking human users. This
resulted in reduced costs and processing times, and
improved user experience. It also made it possible to
replace long and complex processes with simple mouse
clicks, thus significantly reducing staff training times.
Subsequently, with unassisted RPA (or RPA 2.0), RPA
software has been deployed on multiple machines to
operate without the need to initiate processes or assist
automation. Via dashboards, tasks are assigned to
machines and the necessary adjustments can be made.
The robots can work 24/7 and replace human interaction
with automatic processes.

CHAPTER 1
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Artificial
intelligence
has started to
automate the
automation itself.

CHAPTER 1
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The technology
in action

Autonomous RPA, then, can be defined as the best of
both worlds, taking advantage of AI and technologies
such as cognitive automation, machine learning,
computer vision, etc. The convergence of these
technologies multiplies the efficiency and speed of
processes and further reduces operational costs.

Let’s take the example of a sales representative
who contacts a client or prospect. Cognitive RPA,
by analysing the content of email exchanges, will
automate appointments, will contact the person
in question, create task reminders, and even perform
tasks mentioned in the email, such as ordering
materials or booking airline tickets, a table at
a restaurant, etc.

Cognitive automation uses various algorithms and
techniques such as natural language processing, data
mining, semantic technology, text analysis, machine
learning and many others.
Customer interactions, for example, can be analysed,
organised and structured to provide useful information
for subsequent steps in the process, such as predictive
analysis. With cognitive RPA, decision-making
processes are all executed by robots, so that timeconsuming and complex tasks can be automated.

In human resources, on the basis of the signature of
a contract with a new recruit, the new employee’s
computer equipment will be automatically ordered,
their file completed in the HR management system,
identifiers created for all the company IT tools,
the paperwork for a fleet car settled in a few
moments, a presentation email sent to relevant
colleagues. In short, all the onboarding can be carried
out automatically and autonomously by the system.

Overview

Autonomous and
intelligent automation

" User experience agencies will play
a key role in the implementation of
seamless, efficient employee experiences
within organisations. "
Brice Le Blévennec

CHAPTER 1
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New opportunities
for digital agencies
In 2019, Microsoft Power Automate (formerly
Microsoft Flow) was launched, a set of Business
Process Automation solutions that combines
Flow with a new RPA application, UI Flows,
Power Apps and its Artificial Intelligence models.
Power Automate proposes the creation of
numerous automated flows that are triggered
according to parameters chosen by human
operators (at fixed times, according to defined
events, according to the execution of manual
tasks, etc.), and can even automate scenarios
in the interfaces.

With these solutions, user experience agencies can play a
key role in the implementation of ‘employee experiences’
and support employees who are themselves called upon to
automate their own business processes.
The vast majority of Emakina Group’s clients use a Microsoft
software infrastructure. To anticipate the future demand
for Business Automation, we have initiated a new activity,
specialised and dedicated to the creation of employee
experiences using the full spectrum of Microsoft solutions.
The disappearance of professions where man is less efficient
than machine is a consequence of technological evolution.
Let us also see this as an opportunity to make the work of
executives more interesting by ridding them of repetitive
tasks with low added value.
CHAPTER 1
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RPAAI illustrates how beneficial technology can be. Just as
automated factory chains have reduced the risk of accidents,
Business Process Automation solutions have the potential
to make the working lives of millions of people much richer
and more interesting.
Digital technologies are poised to improve the lives of
people who dream of sharing their passion, their creative,
artistic, scientific or other talents with the world, but
were condemned to devote a significant part of their time
to administrative tasks. Machines can perform these
tasks – neither rewarding nor stimulating – more quickly,
efficiently and at virtually zero cost. Meanwhile, we humans
can use our talents and realise our full potential. n
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Work is dead;
long live vocations!

CHAPTER 1

Launch of
Emakina / Marketplaces
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Faced with the challenges that marketplaces and the evolution
of purchasing behaviours pose to brands as well as to retailers,
Emakina / Marketplaces positions itself as a one-stop shop
that puts the agency’s experience and expertise at the service
of the sector’s B2C and B2B players.
Emakina / Marketplaces offers its clients efficient management
of marketplace channels to boost the online commercial
performance of their brands’ indirect catalogue distribution.
The experts of this new team also ensure the cleaning up of
distributors (fighting against fraud and unauthorised resellers),
and can rely on the agency’s unrivalled experience in the
management of all unified commerce channels.

Year in
review

Developments at
management level
Several of the Group’s branches have seen changes in
their management structure during 2019.
Emakina.BE has thus seen the return to the fold
of Tim Wolfs, who returns to the Brussels agency as
co-Managing Director alongside Pierre Pôlet.
In Vienna, another complementary duo is taking the
reins of Emakina.AT as Mark Kaslatter and Rainer Friedl
are now co-Managing Directors of the Austrian agency.

Onur Tepeli has left the management of Emakina.TR for
Dubai where he now acts as Managing Director of
Emakina.AE*, emphasising the increased importance

of the Gulf Cooperation Council (GCC) region for the Group.

Following this transfer, Semih Turgut has been promoted
to Managing Director of Emakina.TR*, while Karim
Boutaour will take on another mission, helping the Group
in its further expansion across the region*.
Finally, Anja Cappelle is joined at the head of
The Reference by co-Managing Director Isabel Donvil*.

The Reference celebrates 25
years of digital leadership
A quarter of a century after its beginnings
in Dendermonde, The Reference continues
to confirm its status as a major player in the
Belgian digital landscape.
As Belgium’s first true full-service agency,
‘The Ref’ was a pioneer in many fields and
has survived all the crises in the sector. In 2007,
the Ghent agency joined Emakina Group.

Since 2018, The Reference is also established
in New York. True to its credo, ‘It’s more
than digital, it’s your business’, the agency
celebrated its 25th anniversary in the best
possible way - winning major awards for its

work with world business leader DP World,
and thus inaugurating a new series of
first-class innovative projects for global clients.

*

Effective in 2020.

New technological
partnership with
Fluent Commerce
In April 2019, Emakina Group and Fluent Commerce,
the rising star of distributed order management
systems, entered into a technological partnership.
With Fluent Commerce, Emakina Group’s agencies
expand their service offering in omnichannel
commerce by providing their clients with a stateof-the-art solution for the smooth and adaptable
management of online orders and real-time
operation of store inventories, while increasing
the profitability of retail operations.

CHAPTER 1
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Emakina.HR,
Zagreb

Plethora of
new clients
Emakina Group delivered many significant
projects in 2019, enabling its agencies to

convince new major clients to sign important
collaborations. In Europe, Sodexo, Hartlauer,
Royal FrieslandCampina, Heineken, Courir,
Honda, Allergan, DP World and Stockmann,
among others, signed agreements with the
Group’s agencies. In Asia, Beko, Chalhoub,
Majid al Futtaim, Al Tayer and Trafalgar General
Trading are among the major new accounts.

Acquisition of
Cloudworks
After the opening of its Dubai office in 2018
and the integration of the Turkish agency
WittyCommerce, Emakina Group further
confirms through the acquisition of Cloudworks
its ambition to position itself as an essential
digital partner and a reference in the Middle East.
Cloudworks’ 30 experts, spread over offices
in Dubai, Riyadh and Mumbai, have extensive
experience in the fields of CRM, sales and
marketing automation, process reengineering
and change management.

Dubai

CHAPTER 1

The agency also provides leading-edge
consulting for all Salesforce services, of which
Cloudworks is a Platinum Partner.
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Merger of k.section
and Emakina.AT
After joining Emakina Group in 2016,
k.section, Salesforce’s historical partner in
Central and Eastern Europe, merged with
Emakina.AT in 2019.
This evolution reflects the increase in

business volume and client accounts to which
the Viennese agency brings its expertise
around all Salesforce’s clouds.
Services on Salesforce technologies are

becoming central to Emakina.AT’s offer,
reflecting the strengthening of the regional
and global partnership between Emakina
and Salesforce.

Emakina.AT,
Vienna

Financial
summary
CHAPTER 1
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" In the second
half of the year,
Emakina Group
demonstrated
sustained growth
in its activities. Its
2019 operational
performance
is under control."
Frédéric Desonnay, CFO

31 /12 /17

Operating income

96,618,148

92,389,601

80,304,612

-90,736,734

-86,282,146

-74,577,795

5,881,414

6,107,455

5,726,817

Depreciation

-1,995,269

-1,637,892

-1,581,827

Operating profit

3,886,145

4,469,563

4,144,990

Financial result

-779,502

-533,278

-378,316

3,106,643

3,936,285

3,766,674

Amortisation of goodwill

-1,850,573

-2,553,237

-2,390,944

Current profit

1,256,070

10,307,067

1,375,730

Exceptional result

-1,020,792

-289,815

-136,583

235,278

1,093,232

1,239,147

485

970

970

307,028

-1,037,475

-1,207,911

1,779,308

2,609,964

2,423,150

-71,265

56,727

32,206

Minority interests

152,933

137,169

143,388

Group share

-224,198

-80,442

-111,182

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (EUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /17

Fixed assets

21,721,511

20,593,604

17,471,191

Current assets

31,407,847

28,970,708

30,541,335

Total assets

53,129,358

49,564,312

48,012,526

Equity

10,082,940

10,542,268

10,729,513

Third party interests

377,994

343,303

287,513

Provisions

161,700

230,590

198,361

4,257,722

3,677,227

3,766,343

38,249,002

34,770,924

33,030,796

17.6%

24.8%

22.6%

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /17

10.50

13.00

14.10

3,893,353

3,893,353

3,893,353

Market capitalisation (in EUR)

40,880,207

50,613,589

54,896,277

Current earnings /share (in EUR)

0.3226

0.3552

0.3534

Group share /share (in EUR)

-0.0576

-0.0207

-0.0286

Net earnings /share (in EUR)

-0.0183

0.0146

0.0083

Net income before depreciation for goodwill consolidation /share(2)

0.4570

0.6704

0.6224

Operating costs (before depreciation)
Operating profit before depreciation (EBITDA)

Profit on ordinary activities before amortisation of goodwill
(2)

Gross profit
Deferred tax
Taxes on income
Net profit before amortisation of goodwill
Net income

Long-term liabilities
Current liabilities
Net income before amortisation of goodwill /return on equity

PER SHARE DATA
Share price (in EUR)
Number of shares

(1)
(2)

Prepared in accordances with Belgian GAAP.
Contrary to the IFRS international accounting standards, Belgian accounting standards require depreciation of goodwill that significantly affects the Company’s consolidated
net income.
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT (EUR)(1)

Growth continues in 2019

2019
2018
2017
2016
2015

€

96
,6

18
€9

,14
8

2,3
89
+15%

340

0

+4%

€70,
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€77,339,18
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€80,304,612

,601

+5%
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+1

0%
+2

Consolidated revenues rose
Consolidated revenues at Emakina Group
went up by 5% in 2019.

5%

€5,881,414

€6,107,455
€5,400,484

€5,726,817

€6,069,790

CHAPTER 1

EBITDA exceeded €5.8 million
Consolidated operating profit before depreciation
was €5,881,414, and represented 6.1% of sales.

31

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015
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International growth continued
2015
CHAPTER 1

2016
2017
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2018

Overview

2019
Origin of revenues

Belgium

International

€40.1 million (57%)
CHAPTER 1

€45.3 million (59%)
€50.3 million (61%)

Activity outside Belgium increased
The share of income generated internationally
remained at 63% in 2019. This reflects the strength
of activity across the whole group and a strategy for
worldwide growth, which has been expressed
in a series of acquisitions in recent years. In 2019,
the Group furthered its ambition to be a strong
partner in the Middle East through the acquisition
of Cloudworks.

18 OFFICES
13 COUNTRIES

Overview

€61.3 million (63%)
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€58.2 million (63%)

11% more
talented people
joined the ranks
Ever more enthusiastic new
employees swelled the ranks of
the Group’s agencies last year.

CHAPTER 1

Emakina Group now has more than
1,000 keen experts who are committed
to making our agencies the best possible
partners for digital transformation in
organisations seeking success in the
digital age. Our people share a passion for
creating simple, engaging and effective
experiences. They focus on creativity
and designing interactions that provoke
positive emotions and intense user
engagement. Above all, they create new
commercial opportunities through each
experience and at all points of contact on
the customer journey.

34
Overview

+1,000
EXPERTS
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Emakina
Group
The Group, its ambitions,
agencies and partners.

2
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Emakina Group

Lines of
business

Emakina.NL,
Amsterdam

Our agencies provide cutting-edge services corresponding to
Emakina Group’s 8 lines of business, combining creativity, sector expertise
and unparalleled know-how in digital experience technologies.

Insights & advisory
services

CHAPTER 2

Our analysts identify, measure and exploit
meaningful user decision patterns. This enables us to
come up with solutions that help our clients to offer
more relevant products and services, and deliver
outstanding user experiences which resonate with
customers to strengthen their business.

Digital marketing,
performance
& data science
Our digital marketing people craft impactful,
creative, quantifiable and data-driven digital
marketing initiatives. They are experienced in
deploying automated marketing and campaigns
driven by data and customer knowledge (CRM),
which are constantly checked and tweaked to
maximise business performance.
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Web building
& integration

Content production
& motion

Our digital experts design, develop and deliver
outstanding websites that strengthen the online
presence of our clients’ brands. Our teams support them
with hosting, CMS (content management systems)
and DAM (digital asset management) systems.

Our content creators use every last inch of
their creative skills to deliver engaging content
experiences through AR, VR, copy, motion, sound
and more. All this adds up to better business and
brand performance via multiple points of contact.

Media planning
& buying

When it comes to exploring innovative uses of
digital technologies, our teams are exceptionally
qualified and experienced. We support our clients
through the design, prototyping, production
and monitoring of innovative experiences and
applications (including VR and AR).

CHAPTER 2

Our media buyers and media planning specialists
help support our clients’ global business
performance in a completely transparent way.
Thanks to real time bidding – where we buy media
space in real time – we guarantee the best price,
and involve our clients at every stage in a truly
collaborative and open process.

Applications,
innovation & service
design

41
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Communications
Our branding and communication experts develop
concepts and strategies designed to attract and hold
the attention of impatient audiences in the digital age.
Using their creative skills, our teams design
campaigns, brand identities as well as online and
offline content on all types of media, integrating
them into the strategy defined upstream.

Connected commerce
& retail marketing
There’s only one sort of future-proof commerce:
omnichannel, unified, marketplaces-connected
and user-centric commerce. Our best guarantee of
lasting success is the expertise we have gained in
designing and producing online business solutions
for millions of users. Our experts in marketplace
management, business systems, PIM, payment tools
and customer service support clients in achieving
this sustainable success.

Emakina Group:
a global
company
CHAPTER 2
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Agencies
Emakina

Cloudworks

Design is Dead

Robert & Marien

The Reference

Amsterdam
Brussels
Dubai
Geneva, Lausanne
Izmir
New York
Novi Sad
Paris, Limoges
Poznan
Stockholm
Vienna
Zagreb

Dubai

Brussels

Brussels

Antwerp, Ghent
New York

WittyCommerce

Your Agency

Istanbul, Izmir

Ophain-BoisSeigneur-Isaac
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Partners
Air

Asiance

Bubblegum

Digital Jungle

Domino

Brussels

Seoul
Tokyo

Barcelona

Beijing, Shanghai
Sydney

Turin, Venice

Metia Group

SinnerSchrader

Austin, Seattle
London
Singapore

Berlin, Frankfurt,
Hamburg, Munich
Prague

Agencies
Emakina Group is made up of different agencies, each
with their own particular but complementary skillset.
Every agency offers specific services and has its own set
of clients. But it is not at all unusual for different agencies
to collaborate on certain projects to offer additional,
valuable services to Emakina Group clients.

Emakina.AE, Dubai
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Emakina

p.92

Cloudworks

p.100

Design is Dead

p.106

Robert & Marien

p.112

The Reference

p.120

WittyCommerce
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Your Agency

The User
Agency

Emakina
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Amsterdam
Brussels
Dubai
Geneva, Lausanne
Izmir
New York
Novi Sad
Paris, Limoges
Poznan
Stockholm
Vienna
Zagreb

The User Agency
As user ambassadors and advocates, the agency’s talented experts
shape useful, effective, fluid, original and memorable experiences
for ALL users - whether they are consumers, employees, citizens,
partners, suppliers of our clients or any other stakeholders.
Every digital experience is designed with the users’ expectations
and requirements at the heart of the project: happy users are indeed
the driving force behind the growth of successful companies.

CHAPTER 2
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This ‘user activism’ enables Emakina to make a difference in the
market, to build loyalty, make target audiences react emotionally
and rationally, measure results and constantly adapt to changing
behaviours. This principle is condensed in the User Equity Model™,
which allows us to calculate and improve the return on investment
(ROI) in the digital transformation of ours clients’ organisations,
brands, products and services.

CHAPTER 2
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A digital native agency at the service
of users

Emakina Group

The empowerment of consumers, who now actively
control brands and hold the keys to their success, has
led to the emergence of a new type of agency. Born
with the Web, these agencies intimately understand
the Digital Natives who are the driving forces within
their teams, and are therefore in the best position to
satisfy their desires, expectations and needs.
As a result, marketing has focused on the individual,
and user experience specialists have revolutionised
standards, reshaping the communications landscape.
Today, it is timing, relevance and quality of experience
that attract and retain users, determine their level of
engagement and transform them into brand ambassadors.
Exceptional experiences have therefore become
essential to gaining a critical competitive advantage.
Emakina offers all the services needed to identify and
understand users, to create exceptional digital experiences,
to reveal trends, to design effective strategies, and
also to re-evaluate the entire infrastructure and internal
processes of organisations in order to ensure their
sustainable growth.

Service offering
Full-service digital DNA

To accompany organisations in their digital transformation,
Emakina brings together 8 main activities: digital marketing,
website building, application development, unified commerce,
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audiovisual production, consumer insights, marketplaces
management and influence marketing.

CHAPTER 2

Emakina constantly adapts its services to new technologies,
recruits and trains the most talented people and offers them
exciting challenges. Together, nearly 750 experts design and
deliver effective, innovative and fluid solutions to energise
clients and build strong relationships with their customers.

Emakina /

CHAPTER 2

Insights &
Consulting
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Emakina / Insights & Consulting specialises
in the study of user behaviour, whether they
are citizens, employees or consumers. Our
multidisciplinary expertise allows us to decode
societal trends and new behaviours in order to
help companies grow by applying a human-centric
approach and offering their users fluid, efficient,
and enriching experiences.
Our specialists in cognitive psychology work
alongside our experts in digital marketing,
service design, business and communication.
This close collaboration allows us to grasp consumer
decision-making processes in all their subtlety,
provide concrete recommendations and define
the means to implement them.

• Innovation workshops
• Positioning strategy
• Qualitative and quantitative research
• Target study
• Immersive behavioural study
• Societal trends study
• Social media analysis
• Conversion of insights into
actionable recommendations
• Strategic, operational and
commercial consulting
• Service and product design
• User testing
• Products and services optimisation

References
Agatha, Bardahl, Beiersdorf (Nivea), BOZAR,
Candriam, Charleroi Métropole, CWF Kids Around,
Deutsche Bank, Domaine National De Chambord,
Honda, Jeff de Bruges, KitchenAid, KitoZyme,
La Monnaie, Le Bon Marché, Louvre Hotels Group,
Médiacité, ORES, RTBF, Van Cleef & Arpels.

Emakina Group

Services
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Emakina / Insights & Consulting instils a
user-centric human perspective into the agency’s
projects, in collaboration with design thinkers,
service designers, UX/UI designers, developers,
application ergonomics specialists, project
managers and all other Emakina experts. This
reinforces the power and efficiency of all our
innovative projects and brings added value to
users that boosts the sustainable and profitable
growth of our clients.

CHAPTER 2

How does this work? We start by defining and
conducting market research to understand
the target audiences and their experience journeys.
We conduct quantitative studies that provide
detailed results to identify trends and statistical
analysis about markets and consumers. At the
same time, our qualitative studies allow us to
develop empathy and thus decipher the deeply
human aspects, both rational and emotional,
of user behaviour.

These findings are all translated into strategic
advice on how to improve each user journey and
experience across all touchpoints. Our experts
follow up on the results of their research
throughout the development of each project:
more than consultants, they are an integral part
of the teams that benefit from their expertise.

Emakina /

Web Building
Emakina started off building websites. It’s our
heritage. It’s in our DNA!

CHAPTER 2

These websites and online platforms were the
first building blocks for sharing content online
and, over time, interactive functionalities
and services were added to address ever more
sophisticated user needs.
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As pioneers in this discipline, we’ve worked
through every stage of its development, right
up to the point when web content management
systems (CMS)and platforms integrating CMS
became standard. Throughout, Emakina has led
the pack in site building practices and tools.
Today, user experience is the starting point.
Before anything else, we consider the end users
and what they think, want and expect. We look
at why, how and where a website will be used, at
its target audience, and whether it needs special
features and more (or less) sophisticated digital
marketing functions.
For a state-of-the-art website, everything
that influences the user experience matters:
relevance, quality of content, ergonomics and
platform/channel used to access content are only
but a few.
This is one of the most important points of
contact with customers in the user journey, as
well as a genuine lasting asset that has intrinsic
value for the business.
In the early days, CMS promised to make it
simple to build websites and claimed web
development would no longer be needed. While
many of the repetitive development phases
and tasks of the pre-CMS era were simplified or

eliminated, another set of needs emerged, giving
rise to different frameworks and to a host of
front-end technologies. Yet, this new landscape
can be confusing and difficult to navigate.

It’s thus vital to pick tools that will provide any
given website with a sound technical foundation
and make the most of cloud computing – while
respecting performance and regulatory constraints
such as GDPR, California’s Consumer Privacy Act
or other pieces of legislation in force around the
globe, which are ever more stringent regarding
the use of data.
Thus today’s projects tend to be complex, requiring
specific methods and rigorous management,
especially when agile approaches are used.
Emakina is lucky enough to attract truly talented
people. These enthusiastic souls stay on top of
UX/UI and front-end and back-end innovations.
We continuously train and certify teams on the
most popular technologies and have partnerships
with:
• l eading publishers of platforms and
frameworks: Adobe, Sitecore, Umbraco, Kentico,
Sitefinity and Drupal/Acquia;
• t he best-performing cloud infrastructure
providers: Microsoft Azure, Amazon Web
Services and Google Cloud Platform.

Services
• Analysis of your business needs
• Collaborative development of
your digital roadmap
• Management of backlogs
and user stories product roadmaps
• Functional analysis
• Solution architecture
• UX and interaction design
• Content production
• Software development
• Quality assurance
• Internal and external applications
• CMS implementation (Adobe Experience
Manager, Drupal/Acquia, SDL Tridion,
Kentico, Sitecore, EPIServer, Umbraco,
Sharepoint, Sitefinity, Wordpress)
• Search engine optimisation (SEO)
and traffic analysis

CHAPTER 2

• IT integration
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Allergan, AUREP, Banque Cantonale de Genève,
Bardahl, BNP Paribas Fortis, Basic-Fit International,
Billa, BMW, Brussels Airlines, Carrera, Chamberlain,
Comdata Group, COMET, Connexxion, Deutsche Bank,
D’Ieteren Auto (SEAT, ŠKODA, Volkswagen),
Donau Chemie, Dufry, Ebinger, ECCO, Elikia na Biso,
Endurance Info, Europcar, Ergo, Fédérale
Assurance/Verzekering, Federal-Mogul, Fédération
Internationale de Volleyball, Fermacell,
Royal FrieslandCampina, GEALAN, Hoću Knjigu,
Hunkemöller, Hypo, International Ice Hockey
Federation, Intersport, Jacob Holm, jö Bonus Club,
Kabelplus, Konica Minolta, Koç Group (BEKO
Global, Arçelik), Marlies Dekkers, memoQ, Myriad
International Holdings (Naspers), Nieuwkoop Europe,
Olympique de Marseille, Omnicare, OMRON, Orange,
ORES, Otto Immobilien, Pairi Daiza, Paula’s Choice,
Play International, pmi.com, Prosus, Renault-Nissan
Consulting, Renson, REWE, Rituals, Robeco,
Roompot Recreatie Beheer, SeatMe, Segway, Sodexo,
Stadt Villach, The Graduate Institute Geneva, Trafigura,
Unilever, Unilever Food Solutions, VOO, WE Fashion,
Wolford, World Press Photo Foundation.
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References
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Digital
Marketing
The marketing landscape has been deeply transformed
these last few years: consumers have become accustomed
to brands knowing everything about them and they expect
the same quality of experience from all the companies
they interact with.

CHAPTER 2

To connect with these demanding consumers and
obtain their love and loyalty, brands must understand
what consumers rightly expect and demand, and
prove it by providing engaging, memorable, fluid and
rich user experiences.
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Traditional marketing techniques are not enough anymore.
Marketers need to integrate data management as a key
element of marketing, and master the relevant platforms
and tools to develop efficient, user-centric strategies.

Emakina Group

Sounds complicated? It doesn’t have to be. And it isn’t,
with the right expertise. In order to generate and
boost growth, organisations need a business partner,
a creative agency and a technology expert. Emakina
combines all three, which allows us to design, build
and deliver great user experiences that will touch and
engage our clients’ customers.
At Emakina / Digital Marketing, we constantly invest in
training to make sure we master the latest solutions and
tools that enable our clients to meet the expectations of
their users. But we also invest in resources that boost
business performance and give brands a competitive edge.
From digital advertising, lead nurturing, automation
and personalisation to remarketing and performance
optimisation, we deliver the right mix of technology,
strategy, and expertise to accomplish our clients’
brand objectives.

We act as partners to our clients and accompany
them to make sure creative communication, relevant
data, and top-notch technology help them build
user experiences that create long-term added value for
their consumers.
Nowadays, brands must win the heart of users by using
both short-term activations for quick results and
long-term campaigns for brand-building. At Emakina,
we are excited by the challenge of delivering experiences
that both our clients and their users value and enjoy.

References
AGC, Allergan, Austrian Standards, Banque du Luxembourg, BIC,
Blocket, Bombardier Recreational Products, Bosch Siemens
Huishoudapparaten, Brussels Airlines, Candriam, Celestial,
Constantia Holding, Dina Försäkringar, Ebinger, ECCO, Erganeo,
Eurotours, FC Redbull Salzburg, Federal-Mogul, Fédération
Internationale de Volleyball, FH Wiener Neustadt, Flughafen Wien,
Fondation de la Haute Horlogerie, GEALAN, Gekko, Gewista, HEAD,
HEI Technology, Heineken, Honda, Hutchison Drei Austria,
Kastner & Öhler, KitchenAid, Konica Minolta, Lavalan, Legolas,
Lindemans, Loterie Romande, Marktplaats, Maserati, Mondi,
Mr Green, Myriad International Holdings (Naspers), Norrmejerier,
OMRON, Österreich Werbung, Paula’s Choice, POC Sports, SBAB Bank,
SBS, Schrack Technik, Segway, Silhouette International, Simplon,
Spadel, Stockmann, Super Bock, Terra, Tilda, Vacheron Constantin,
Vincent Gaye Company, Wiener Tourismusverband, WW.

Services
• Strategic planning

• Social media marketing

• Brand strategy and branding
(design, identity, conception)

• Online advertising

• Integrated communication strategy

• Search engine optimisation (SEO)

• Marketing automation, email marketing,
direct & inbound marketing (Adobe
Marketing Cloud, Salesforce Marketing
Cloud, Selligent Marketing Cloud,
Salesforce Pardot, Marketo, Autopilot,
Hubspot, Splio)

• Analytics & dashboarding
• Conversion rate optimisation
• CRM (Salesforce, Dynamics 365)
• Content creation and production
• Print and audiovisual content
production

CHAPTER 2
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Commerce
Emakina is ahead of the game in connected
commerce. We were active from the start in the
first European e-commerce and omnichannel
markets of France, the Netherlands, Austria,
Germany and Sweden. Over the years, our teams
have helped clients with each new form of
connected commerce.
Since 2000, there has been a massive shift in
both wholesale and retail trade. Online shopping
has become a necessary channel for most goods
and services. We have seen the emergence of
online-only brands and omnichannel commerce.
Where once Emakina helped pure player brands
spread their wings, nowadays we advise all our
clients on how to understand, design and deploy
an integrated approach for multiple devices. The
more the market adopts connected commerce,
the greater the challenges – not only on the technical
side but above all in terms of user experience.

For sellers, the first challenge is to have a
well-integrated sales management policy across
all channels: modern purchasing journeys start
with marketplaces, with which Emakina has
proven experience.
Then, sellers must build operating models
reinforcing traditional stores with digital ones:
they should trigger consumer decision making
online and continue it offline, increasing in-store
traffic via e-commerce and developing sales
points in connected spaces that offer an improved
user experience. For example, points of sale that
offer a theatrical mix of inspiration, atmosphere
and advice.

Services
• Research and consultancy (strategy, customer journey,
omnichannel, needs-based analysis and
technical architecture)
• User experience design
• Customer journey transformation
• Information architecture
• Solution architecture
• Master data (sourcing, remediation,
enrichment, governance)
• Deploying connected trade platforms (Salesforce
Commerce Cloud, Sitefinity, Kentico, Proximis,
Magento, SAP Hybris)
• PIM/ERP software integration
• Deployment of integrated infrastructure via Salesforce
Integration or SAP PO
• Integration with logistics and transport platforms
• Marketplaces (evaluation, strategy,
continuous optimisation)
• Activation and demand-generation campaigns
• Conversion optimisation
• Performance measurement (conversions, cost of
customer acquisition, marketing efficiency, customer
retention/loss, loyalty policy effectiveness, cohort
and CLV analysis)

CHAPTER 2

• Hosting (NBS System for Magento, Azure, AWS,
Google Cloud Platform)
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References
Emakina aims to combine technical knowledge
(PIM, online catalogue management, loyalty
systems, OMS, payment systems and ERP) with
real expertise in very different sectors and trades.
You need to choose the right technical tools and
create desirable user experiences to achieve
business success.
This also implies simplifying operational
processes and technological efficiency within
businesses and brands: real-time management
of stocks, deliveries, POS cash registers, and so
on. Our expertise in unified commerce platforms
allows our clients to simplify internal processes
and focus their efforts on their business goals.

Agatha, agnès b., Ales, Al Tayer Group, Arçelik, ATPS, Bardahl,
Basic-Fit, Beko, Billa, Brady, Brau Union, Bugaboo, Caron Paris,
Chalhoub Group (l’Occitane, Faces, YSL, Make Up Forever,
Swarovski), Courrèges, Courir, Daikin, Dugas, ECCO, First Stop,
Floris van Bommel, Hartlauer, HEMA, Hepsiburada, Hoću Knjigu,
Högl Shoes, Intersport, jö Bonus Club, Joolz, Jowaé, Kabelplus,
Karl Lagerfeld, Koç Group, KitoZyme, La Grande Récré, Lierac,
Ladurée, LolaLiza, Longchamp, Louvre Hotels Group,
LuLu Hypermarket, Majid Al Futtaim (LEGO, Maison Du Monde,
Crate & Barrel), Marlies Dekkers, memoQ, Merkur, MicromaniaZing, Monin, NCS Colour, Nieuwkoop Europe, OMRON, Parrot,
Paula’s Choice, PHYTO, Pierre Hardy, Roompot Recreatie Beheer,
Royal FrieslandCampina, Rituals, Stockmann, Suitsupply,
TheFork, Unilever Food Solutions, Vivad, WE Fashion, Wolford.

Emakina /

Applications

CHAPTER 2

Since 2001, Emakina has constantly been developing all
kinds of applications with the web browser as the user
interface. From 2008 onwards, we have created native
applications for smartphones, tablets, screens, tactile
tables, game consoles, virtual and augmented reality
interfaces, interactive installations and connected objects.
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Our experienced and multidisciplinary team of people
operates at the forefront of technological changes.
Together, we master the latest software engineering
evolutions in operating systems, API, frameworks and
software. We are also at home using the most recent
hardware, from customised interactive installations and
iBeacons, to experimental projects and connected products.
Our group has never been richer in expertise and creative
talent in this field, especially at the front-end level.
In recent years, we’ve been able to guide our clients in
original projects using the Internet of Things and mixed
reality (virtual and augmented). In these ventures, we
explored new ways of combining everyday and cutting-edge
digital technologies. Together, we have created impressive
results, and almost magically fluid experiences, transitioning
from digital to the real world and vice versa.
Emakina / Application’s accomplishments include specific
features on e-commerce platforms, apps that optimise POS
experiences (Courir), and immersive or a virtual adventure
in a tropical forest. We have created augmented reality
experiences which add greater depth and meaning to sales
tools. For example, enabling customers to explore and
visualise ways to increase the efficiency of their homes
with Facq Green House. For Jaeger-LeCoultre, we enabled
customers to compare the look and dimensions of different
luxury watches on their wrists purchasing their favorite
model (On Your Wrist).
Every time, we offer unique experiences, from prototype
design to installation, and manage onsite maintenance.

Services
• Feasibility studies
• Focus on specific sectors
• Technical strategy (mobile platforms and OS)
• Discovery and design workshops
• Software and product roadmap design
• Functional analysis/user stories
• Testing, quality assurance and deployment
• Advergaming
• Augmented reality

• Web applications (Java, Symphony 2,
.NET, AngularJS)
• Service-oriented architecture (SOA)
and web services
• Internet of Things
• Application maintenance and continuous
improvement

References
Al Tayer Group, AG Insurance, AXA, Banca Monte Paschi,
Billa, BNP Paribas Fortis, Boucheron, Chalhoub Group
(l’Occitane, Faces, YSL, Make Up Forever, Swarovski),
Crédit Agricole, Daikin, D’Ieteren Auto (SEAT, ŠKODA,
Volkswagen), Deutsche Bank, ENGIE Cofely, ENGIE Electrabel,
Europcar, European Commission, European Parliament, EVN,
FACQ, Federal-Mogul, Fédération Internationale de Volleyball,
Frank Stahl, Hunkemöller, Honda, Jaeger-LeCoultre,
jö Bonus Club, Karl Lagerfeld, Majid Al Futtaim, Maserati,
Olympique de Marseille, PAUL, REWE, SKYN, SNCB, Ypto,
Unilever Food Solutions, Vecos, Vivad, Wien Tourismus, ZBD.

Emakina Group

• Interactive installations
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• Virtual reality
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• Application development
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Motion

Emakina /

A picture is worth a thousand words: video is by
far the medium that most easily captures our
attention and settles in our memory. In 2019,
more than a billion hours of video were viewed
every day on YouTube alone, with over 70% on
mobile phones. Users retain more than 90% of video
content, compared to just 15% of written content.
The Internet is overflowing with statistics indicating
the same thing: it is video that attracts and convinces
users the most. Given the predominance and
diversity of motion formats, brands need experts
who can create memorable audiovisual experiences.
Emakina / Motion designs and produces
cutting-edge technical solutions and audiovisual
experiences to inform, entertain, retain and
engage users. Our producers, editors, motion
designers, 3D specialists, sound engineers, and
composers translate brand experiences into all
current and future formats, from traditional film

to augmented reality and the vertical stories that
are so popular on social networks.

References

•F
 ilm production in all formats: mobile
(vertical), animation (2D or 3D), virtual
reality, augmented reality, mixed reality,
interactive videos, etc.

Actiris, AGC, Barilla, BNP Paribas Fortis, Boghossian,

•C
 reation (strategic analysis, concept,
scenario, storytelling, storyboard)

European Defense Agency, Facq, Federal-Mogul,

• Preproduction (casting, location, costumes,
props, make-up, hairdressing, etc.)
• Studio and on-site shooting
• Post-production (editing, composition,
animation and design, sound design)
• Serialised content: webisodes, web TV,
podcasts, etc.

Bombardier Recreational Products, Candriam, Charleroi
Métropole, Delhaize, Deutsche Bank, Diageo, D’Ieteren
Volkswagen, European Commission, European Council,
Fédération Internationale de Volleyball, First Stop,
Honda, ING, Jaeger-LeCoultre, KitchenAid, KitoZyme,
Ladbrokes, Lindemans, Loterie Romande, Louvre Hotels
Group, Maserati, P&V Assurances, S&D, SPF Économie,
Union Bancaire Privée, Vaudoise.

Emakina Group

Services
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How do we make it happen? We work as partners
of our clients, applying agile methodologies to
combine creativity, flexibility and efficiency
from briefing to storyboard validation.
Emakina / Motion then handles production and
operates its own integrated studios (photo, video,
sound, animation and special effects).

CHAPTER 2

As a one-stop shop, we analyse the needs and target
audiences of our clients’ brands to determine
the most appropriate strategy: channels, timing,
formats and all other relevant factors are dissected
to optimise the impact and effectiveness of the
content. We also work alongside our clients to
define the best creative approach: audiovisual and
storytelling style, technique, tone of voice, etc.

Emakina /

Influx
Digital Natives are wise in the ways of ad blockers,
which makes infotainment and social networks
the most efficient channels to reach these
audiences immune to classic marketing methods.

CHAPTER 2
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The massive success of social platforms has
caused tremendous upheavals in the way influence
marketing works. A recent, large-scale study
found that online content creators have 10 times
more influence on purchase behaviour than
celebrities. 60% of surveyed people were swayed
by reviews from forums or social networks when
shopping, but only 3% would buy one product over
another just because of a celebrity advertisement.
Bloggers, YouTubers, podcasters and the likes
have a huge impact on consumer behaviour,
and brands are increasingly targeting them in
the promotion of their products and services.

These are precisely the communities that brands
want to engage with. Content creators, as modern
opinion leaders, are ideally positioned to build
bridges between their audiences and brands,
having become living media and powerful agents
of influence. By integrating them at the heart
of our campaign creation process, we ensure
the integrity and relevance of the content, which
stimulates organic dissemination and return
on investment.
Informative and entertaining, our messages owe
their effectiveness to the coherence between the
brands and the creators we associate them with.
From conception to distribution, our campaigns
benefit from the authenticity that is paramount
to their success.

Emakina / Influx is the brand content and
influence strategy management agency integrated
into Emakina’s services. From strategy to execution,
we work closely with content creators, as these web
superstars bring together communities that easily
eclipse the audiences of the most popular TV shows.

Services
• Campaign design
• Content strategy
• Audiovisual production
• Brand/influencer relationship
management
• Reporting and analytics
• Monitoring social networks

References
Adobe, Bouygues Telecom, N26,
Renault F1, Rhinoshield.
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Emakina /

Marketplaces

CHAPTER 2

The explosion of marketplaces – merchant websites
like Amazon, AliExpress, bol.com etc. – has radically
changed consumer habits and corporate purchase logic.
Brands, their distributors, retailers and wholesalers,
whether they operate online or in physical outlets, in
B2C or B2B, have had to adapt to this new reality, which
has greatly impacted most sectors of the economy.
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The repercussions of this rapid evolution are immense
and numerous. We have seen mounting competitive
pressure, with the imbalance of available data and
information giving marketplaces a real competitive

Emakina Group

edge over brands. The risk of outright disappearance of
intermediaries, reorganisation of traditional distribution
networks, pressure to adapt and update IT systems,
radical transformation of supply chains and multiplication
of warehouses are other consequences of this evolution.

Marketplaces present remarkable opportunities,
but require a transversal expertise combining
technology, marketing, creativity and business. The
Emakina / Marketplaces team offers a one-stop-shop
capable of designing, producing, and implementing
a fluid, harmonious, and executable strategies.

channels, using content to trigger a purchase process.
All these new channels have their own characteristics

We carry out an audit of our clients’ presence (sometimes
due to unauthorised vendors) on marketplaces, activate
possible improvements consistent with distribution
strategies, and support and train our clients’ staff.
Our team recommends actions on how to defend brands
against abusive use, misappropriation of content,

they don’t compete with each other.

to integrate these seamlessly into their entire business.

Added to this, a second major evolution is about to
amplify the scale of the challenge: while marketplaces
have multiplied and grown in popularity, social platforms
like Instagram are beginning to offer brands new sales

and need to be dealt with in a specific way, while being
integrated into overall distribution strategies to ensure

fraudulent resale, etc. The objective is to enable healthy
growth and development for brands on marketplaces and
We develop an operational approach encompassing
fulfilment, order flow management, financial follow-up
and data reconciliation. We take particular care in the
representation of brands by developing quality content
and assets, as well as considering SEO and media
management across these new platforms.

CHAPTER 2
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Services
• Performance and ROI optimisation
across marketplaces

• Brand content creation

• Protection of brand and product or
service offering from abuse and fraud

• Training of client teams to dedicated
tools and best practices

• Coordination of marketplaces with
traditional distribution
• Product information optimisation

• Paid campaigns management

• Strategic advice on marketplaces
and distribution

Agencies
Operating in 12 countries on 3 continents, Emakina’s full-service agencies
offer a wide range of expertise across a vast geographical area.

Emakina.AE
Dubai
Emakina.AE was founded in 2018 and is
led by Managing Director Onur Tepeli*,
who supports the further growth and
expansion of Emakina throughout the
GCC area. The agency specialises in
e-commerce and web building, with a
team of experts in SAP CX, Salesforce,
and Adobe technologies. Clients
CHAPTER 2

include Chalhoub Group, Majid Al
Futtaim (with projects for LEGO), and
Al Tayer Group.
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Onur Tepeli
Managing Director*

CHAPTER 2
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Effective in 2020.

*

Emakina.AT
Vienna

Emakina’s hub for Central and Eastern Europe came into being after

the acquisition of the diamond:dogs group. From its offices in Vienna,
the team - led by Managing Directors Mark Kaslatter and Rainer Friedl
- serves clients like Austrian Standards, Chamberlain, POC Sports,

Silhouette, GEALAN, Kastner & Öhler, Konica Minolta, Mondi, REWE
(BILLA, jö Bonus Club) and the Vienna Tourist Board.

CHAPTER 2
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Rainer Friedl & Mark Kaslatter
Managing Directors

CHAPTER 2
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Tim Wolfs & Pierre Pôlet
Managing Directors

Emakina.BE
Brussels

Born in 2001 from the merger of Ex Machina and Emalaya, Emakina.BE
is the original Emakina agency. Brice Le Blévennec is the founder of the
company and current Chairman of the Board. Today, the agency is managed
by Pierre Pôlet and Tim Wolfs. It proudly serves a mix of international
and Belgian clients like Allergan, Banque de Luxembourg, Bardahl,
BIC, BNP Paribas Fortis, BOZAR, Bridgestone, Brussels Airlines, Candriam,
D’Ieteren, Deutsche Bank, DRiV, Honda, KitchenAid, Lindemans, Philip Morris
International, Renson, Sodexo, Nuskin and WW.
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Emakina.CH
Geneva, Lausanne

CHAPTER 2

The story of Emakina.CH goes back to the acquisition of
LABEL.ch in 2012. Partner and Associate Arnaud Grobet
founded the agency, now headed by Managing Director
Thierry Willer. Clients include Banque Cantonale de Genève,
Dufry, Fédération Internationale de Volleyball, Vaudoise,
Graduate Institute Geneva, Givaudan, MSC, Super Bock,
Peroni and Vacheron Constantin.
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Thierry Willer
Managing Director

Arnaud Grobet
President

Nicolas Borgis
Managing Director

CHAPTER 2
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Manuel Diaz
President

Emakina.FR
Paris, Limoges
Manuel Diaz is the founder and president of the French agency, led
by Managing Director Nicolas Borgis. The team works for clients
like ATPS, Boucheron, Brady, Chopard, Courir, Lacoste, Ladurée,
Lierac, Micromania-Zing, Nike, Orange, Paul, PHYTO, Pierre Hardy,
Renault-Nissan Consulting and Olympique de Marseille.
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Emakina.HR
Zagreb
CHAPTER 2

78
Emakina Group

The Croatian Emakina agency was founded in 2015 in Zagreb.
Under the direction of Managing Director Petar Kozjak,
Emakina.HR is especially known for its expertise in projects
using Kentico technologies. Its team also collaborates in
application and web building projects with other agencies
within Emakina Group. Clients include Daikin, Hoću Knjigu,
Vivad and memoQ.

CHAPTER 2
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Petar Kozjak
Managing Director

Emakina.NL
Amsterdam
The Dutch entity was launched with the acquisition of SunTzu (2007).
The company grew rapidly, gaining more speed with the addition
of Merge Media (2012) and Relephant (2013). Managing Director
Sjoerd van Gelderen leads the agency from its office overlooking
Amsterdam’s West Harbour.
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Clients include Basic-Fit, Bugaboo, ECCO, Floris van Bommel, Heineken,
HEMA, INTERSPORT, Joolz, Marlies Dekkers, OMRON, Paula’s Choice,
Rituals, Robeco, Roompot Recreatie Beheer, Royal FrieslandCampina,
Stockmann, Suitsupply, Unilever, Unilever Food Solutions, WE Fashion,
Wolford and World Press Photo Foundation.
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Sjoerd van Gelderen
Managing Director
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Lukasz Taranta
Chief Operation Officer

Krzysztof Majchrzycki
Managing Director

Emakina.PL
Poznan
Emakina.PL was created in 2018, following Emakina Group’s acquisition
of Predictes, Poland’s main Kentico partner. The team, managed by
Krzysztof Majchrzycki and Lukasz Taranta, provides talented experts in
technologies used by Emakina Group to all its agencies.
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Emakina.RS
Novi Sad
Emakina.RS was founded in April 2018 in Novi Sad, aka the ‘Silicon Valley
of Serbia’. The company has a solid reputation for delivering top strategic
and development support for complex digital and e-commerce projects.
Managing Directors Saša Popović and Vladan Ostojić had been running several
successful IT companies for over a decade before joining Emakina.RS.

Emakina Group

Vladan Ostojić & Saša Popović
Managing Directors

Joel Wahlström
Managing Director
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Emakina.SE-DBG
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The Swedish entity of Emakina became part of the network
in 2016. Consisting of digital bones and creative blood,
the Stockholm based agency is led by Joel Wahlström. With
a main focus on creating bold concepts and brave ideas,
the agency also offers pixel-perfect digital production and
innovative commerce solutions. Main clients are Blocket,
LegolasBet, Norrmejerier, and Unilever.
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Stockholm

Emakina.TR
Izmir
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The Turkish agency joined the Emakina family in
2013 after the acquisition of Relephant. Emakina.TR
focuses on the development, management and
maintenance of top-notch technology projects,
and provides support to other agencies within
Emakina Group. Emakina.TR is well known for its
delivery and support capabilities over several
technologies and frameworks, and is working on
further strengthening its leading position in Turkey.
They deliver high-end projects for brands such as
Arçelik, Beko, Dufry, ECCO, Fédération Internationale
de Volleyball, Hunkemöller, Intersport, Jacob Holm,
ORIS, Baume Watches, Philipp Morris International
and Sunweb.
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Semih Turgut
Managing Director*
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Effective in 2020.

*
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Emakina.US
New York
Emakina.US is America’s premier User Agency, providing
locally based, world-class expert advice in all things digital.
Emakina.US is the latest addition to a global network of
experienced professional technologists that has been
deploying, operating and leveraging top-notch technologies
for business performance since 2001. Emakina USA’s local
experts have started working from their NYC office in
the second half of 2019.
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Rick Minozzi
Managing Director*
*

Effective in 2020.
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User-centric
innovation
experts
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Cloudworks
Dubai
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Souphien Akhrif
Managing Director

Agile innovation expertise and
human-centric strategy
At Cloudworks, we focus on the culture, ambition and
vision of our clients to deliver more than technological
implementation. Always focusing on the users, we guide
our clients through the challenges of their digital
transformation, working as their partner in joint teams
complementing each other’s knowledge, skills and
insights. We see technology as a powerful tool designed
to bring added value to our clients and useful services
to their consumers.

Our team of experts has been successfully implementing
digital transformation projects in the GCC region for over
8 years, providing guidance across various industries.
We understand the challenge of increasing revenue without
compromising the quality of products and services. This can
only be achieved by embedding innovation and efficiency
both into the projects we deliver and into our clients’ own
internal processes.
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Vision
We are a people-centric company, placing our employees
and clients at the centre of all our projects. Immersed
in a creative, vibrant work environment that inspires
successful execution of strategic transformations,
our talented people spur our growth and ambition.
They provide their expertise and innovative skills to
enable constructive disruption. It’s only logical, after all:
employees themselves, surrounded by new ways of living
and working, are most primed and ready to envision and
implement technological and digital innovation.

Mission
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In this transformative age, we see automation as one of
the key ingredients to a successful digital transformation,
along with a human-centric approach and a future-facing
mindset. We pride ourselves on always being ready to
evolve and adapt. We provide all digital automation
services, from sales automation boosting commercial
results, to customer service automation helping to
personalise and optimise user support. And, of course,
marketing automation is the best way to manage the
relationship between brands and users, providing great
customer journeys and delivering tailor-made campaigns
thanks to the harvesting of data and its relevant use.

All these automation initiatives and strategies share
the same goal of providing fantastic omnichannel user
experiences. As a Salesforce Platinum Partner, we provide
expert consultancy services on all Salesforce solutions,

but we never hesitate to recommend other technologies
that best suit your needs. And thanks to our business
expertise, we can help guide the evolution of our client’s
products and services and provide change management to
give them a competitive edge in quickly evolving industries.
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Services
• Sales automation
• Customer service automation
• Marketing automation
• Digital experience platforms
• Business consulting
• Change management
• Data driven digital strategy
• e-Commerce solutions
• Salesforce solutions consultancy
(Salesforce Platinum Partner)
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EFERENCES
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Nec, Tadawul,
Komatsu, CPI Financial,
Dur Hospitality,
Virgin Megastore,
Virtuzone, Dubai
Investments, EMAAR,
Saudi Aramco, Dubai
World Trade Center,
Abdul Latif Jameel,
DP World, Ooredoo,
General Investment
Authority, Global
Village Dubai

Agile
guides
in digital
journeys

Design is Dead
Brussels

CHAPTER 2
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Jeroen Huys
Managing Director

The digital economy has brought us new business
models, technologies, commercial flexibility, plus
big acquisitions and mergers that spark innovation
and create new goals for digital transformation.
Design is Dead’s mission is to help companies make a
breakthrough by analysing their current technological
and organisational situation, helping them create
new business cycles, and boosting their market impact
through advanced tech and strategic investment.

Emakina Group

Vision
Business agility leads to innovation
To bring new user experiences to market swiftly and
efficiently, companies must have flexible internal processes.
Agility is no longer just a buzzword for IT departments: all
internal structures and processes need agile methods that
adapt easily to new areas of application.

At Design is Dead, we invest in people and their ideas.
We encourage our employees and clients to think
outside the box and set their ideas free. Every day is an
opportunity to gain experience. This culture and shared
vision permeate every part of our business.

Emakina Group

Digital experience platforms that deliver personalised
content at a click, tailor-made technologies based on
flexible and lightweight micro-services, agile technical
methods like Scrum and DevOps, and relevant data
strategies: these are the factors that make the difference
in business - now and tomorrow.
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We believe your digital transformation adventure will
rely on the well-designed and smooth integration
of your marketing and back office tools. Based on a
customer-centric approach, every project needs to have
a global view and consider every digital touchpoint in
the customer journey.
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At Design is Dead, we see this day after day, as we
help our clients get their ideas to market as quickly as
possible. We contribute to their agility, achieving short
delivery cycles for new technologies thanks to agile ways
of working such as Scrum and Management 3.0.

Services
“Digital disruption will probably come
from outside your industry.“ ‒ Forrester
Design is Dead gets you started on your digital
transformation adventure by delivering end-to-end
solutions that fit your business needs.

Discover
Identifying the catalyst that will spark your business
agility is a challenge that involves watching the market
every day. From your business goals, we pursue every
branch that can lead us to success, assess the business
value and recommend a combination of quick and
long-term strategies that will keep you moving forward
in your transformation.

Services
• Innovation workshops
• Design thinking workshops
• Service design workshops
• Customer journey workshops
• Digital experience platform selection

CHAPTER 2

• Digital maturity quickscan
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Automation & real-time data

Build & integrate

We encourage and help our partners to automate
as many processes as possible to allow them to
focus on higher purposes. Combined with smart
data analysis and real-time interconnections, this
keeps us highly responsive as we design relevant
and efficient strategies, take the most appropriate
actions, analyse results, and remain faithful to
a simple principle: constantly adapt and improve.

An agile mindset goes beyond delivery
frameworks. We build solutions with teams that
strive for customer centricity, the best-matched
technologies, and quality while delivering
minimum viable products. Our goal is to help you
build a systematic way of delivering product
increments and evaluating success, so you can
invest in the right solution at the right time.

Services

Services

• Automation of business flows

• Digital strategy

• 24/7 maintenance

• Digital Transformation agile consultancy

• DevOps and InfraOps

• UX and digital journey design

• Monitoring

End-to-end projects
• Implementation and integration of
marketing technology
• Adobe Experience Cloud

• Blockchain projects
• Progressive automation

Base, Beko,
Brussels Airport
Company,
ING, Moteo,
Telenet, VOO

Emakina Group

• (Big) data engineering and insights
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• Full-Stack Java web applications

CHAPTER 2

• Real-time event-driven data systems

REFERENCES

Transparent
and trusted
media buying

Robert
& Marien
Brussels

Robert & Marien is an independent media agency
with a full range of services. Our mission:
to create media strategies, design tactical plans
and negotiate online and offline advertising
space. Our strengths: transparency, proximity
to our clients and vast experience.
CHAPTER 2
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Vision
Robert & Marien, Emakina Group’s media division, covers all
channels of advertising communication. Its integration
within the group enables all Emakina Group agencies to
propose a neutral media strategy from the outset of every
campaign. This strategy is then combined with other aspects
contributing to its overall success. The approach is based on
three pillars: financial transparency, expertise and close
collaboration with our clients. Naturally, digital media are at
the heart of our campaigns, yet the scope of our activity as a
trusted media agency extends from television, display
advertising and cinema, to press and radio. Robert & Marien
operates via Icom Media in all European countries.

Alain Marien
Managing Director

CHAPTER 2

Michel Robert
Managing Director
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We develop media strategies, and negotiate and buy advertising
space. Our work covers all traditional media (national and
international television, radio, posters, cinema, press) but also
online (display advertising, native advertising, social networks,
etc.). We execute analysis before campaigns, to define audience
expectation. Post-campaign qualitative and financial assessments
are carried out by external companies we can recommend to our
clients, to guarantee relevant, objective and independent feedback.
Our clients are welcome during media negotiations, to make sure
they get the best rates. In addition, we practice real-time bidding,
the direct online purchase of advertising space. We apply principles
of transparency and proximity for our clients, while ensuring they
get the most for their money. The media do not pay us commissions.
Our advertiser customers pay us instead. This is the best way to
guarantee our neutrality in relation to the media, and to deliver the
best possible service to our clients.

Emakina Group

Services

Services
• Media strategy
• Media planning
• Media buying
• ROI (TV, radio, cinema, press,
billboards)
• Social media advertising
• Advergaming
• Native advertising
• Search engine marketing
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Alternative Films,
Belvilla, Biaform,
Brussels South Charleroi
Airport, Bruxelles Mobilité,
Cewe, Chancellerie
du Premier Ministre,
Chimay, Deezer, Ekornes,
Enow, Fjällräven,
Le Forem, Iles de Paix,
Intermarché, Jack
Wolfskin, Java, Lierac,
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Les Grands Prés,
Maxi Toys, Nationale Borg,
Partenamut, Perfection
Habitat, Pfizer, Poliakov,
Ricoh, Santander,
Somfy, Service Public de
Wallonie, Sowecsom,
Stressless, Suzuki,
Therabel, Unibet, Urgo,
Vins de Bordeaux
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It’s more
than digital,
it’s your
business

CHAPTER 2

The Reference

Ghent, Antwerp, New York
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Helping clients to thrive since 1993, The Reference was
Belgium’s very first web agency and a digital pioneer in
Europe. Since the beginning, the agency has combined
advanced marketing knowledge with technology expertise,
to deliver real business value.
Today, The Reference is a leading Belgian digital agency,
uniting more than 170 highly qualified specialists. Based in
Ghent, Antwerp and New York, The Reference has a strong
results-oriented approach, which is reflected in the motto:
‘It’s more than digital, it’s your business’.

Anja Cappelle
Managing Director

Isabel Donvil
Managing Director*
*

Effective in 2020.

CHAPTER 2

116

Emakina Group

Vision
The Reference focuses on the ambitions of its clients.
Its teams advise, support and assist them in their most
important strategic projects, helping the core of their
businesses adapt to the digital age. The agency draws
together a powerful combination of marketing, business
and technology expertise to help each client reach their
goals – and even to go far beyond them.

Think

Strategy and consultancy
• Digital transformation
• Branding
• Customer experience design
• Product & service design
• Tool selection and architectural design
• Strategy for: mobile, CRM, content
marketing, multichannel, e-commerce,
social media, etc.)
• The Reference On-Site
(onsite consulting)

Emakina Group

The Reference helps its clients choose the most effective
digital tools for their goals. The agency’s teams work
with brands to seize every chance to connect with their
target audiences and convert them to their products and
services. Faced with growing competition and soaring user
expectations, organisations must make the right decisions
for their ongoing digital transformation – and The Ref’ is are
their trusted advisor.
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The agency’s objective is to help clients develop the best
strategy and branding for their markets. With more people
adopting digital technology across the world every day, there
are always new opportunities and channels to better connect
with audiences.

CHAPTER 2

Services

Run
Once we have built a project, the next step is to
introduce it to the market and ensure it works
seamlessly and efficiently. Our multidisciplinary
teams have in-depth knowledge of digital
marketing and an arsenal of tactics to launch
campaigns and communications that stand out from
the competition and build meaningful connections
with target audiences.

Areas of expertise
• Online advertising
• Search engine optimisation (SEO)

Build

CHAPTER 2

A solid strategy is just the start. The next step
is to convert ambitions into robust yet flexible
solutions, from content management and CRM
to mobile apps. This fully integrated approach
guarantees success.

118
Emakina Group

The Reference turns strategy into action. Its
experts design, deploy and maintain websites,
mobile apps, e-commerce platforms, connected
objects and other digital initiatives.
The Reference is a Sitecore Platinum Partner,
Umbraco Gold Partner and member of the Drupal
Organisation.

Skills
• User experience and graphic design
• Web development
• Video and motion
• Content management and copywriting
• IT outsourcing services
• e-Commerce
• Internet of Things (IoT)
• Mobile applications
• API & microservices

• Conversation management
• Experience and personalisation
management
• The Reference On-Site
• Social media marketing
• Mobile marketing and advertising
• Email marketing, CRM and marketing
automation
• Online reputation management
• Analytics and dashboards
• Content marketing
• Data science & artificial intelligence
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Aquafin, Aterno, Barco,
Barry Callebaut, BD MyShopi,
Bekaert, Bridon Bekaert
Ropes Group, Carglass,
Colruyt, Dela, DP World,
Eneco, Fluvius, Fluxys,
FoamGlass, Hudson, Indigo,
Kodak Alaris, Luminus, Makro,
Mathieu Gijbels, Melexis,
Mennens, Nationale Loterij,
Niko, KPMG, SD Work, SEG,
Shurgard, TVH (Group
Thermote & Vanhalst), Unified
Post Group, Vandersanden,
Vivaldis, Vlerick Business
School, Samsonite, Sunweb
Group, Xerius
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The quick
and witty way
to execute
your commerce
vision
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WittyCommerce
Istanbul, Izmir

CHAPTER 2

Aytek Ekici
Managing Director
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Established in 2014 by professionals with 15 years of

experience in digital commerce, serving clients from its
offices in İzmir and İstanbul, WittyCommerce joined
the Emakina Group in 2018.

Since our inception, we have designed, developed and

operated global, future-ready, omnichannel e-commerce
projects, strategies and experiences. Thanks to our

experienced, technologically agnostic and ever-growing
highly skilled team of over 60 people, we provide a
growth mindset to our customers and continue to extend
our client portfolio.
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Positioning
We position ourselves as a digital commerce experience partner,
specialising in e-commerce, mobile commerce, digital
in-store experiences, order management systems, product
catalogue management, platforming, digital marketing and
all relevant solutions for user-facing touchpoints.
Our experts understand the technological aspects and
business processes of our clients’ industries, while
constantly designing innovative solutions to optimise their
business. Quality and attention to detail are paramount:
we implement optimised methodologies and sector-specific
best practices.

Services
Offering strategy, technology, and interactive
marketing services, we consistently deliver
sophisticated end-to-end solutions and commerce
projects across borders, industries and markets.
Our comprehensive service offering is designed
to address every aspect of commerce, by designing
and producing top-notch, unique user experiences
that drive revenue growth while minimising costs
and risks.

Services
•O
 mnichannel commerce
•M
 obile applications development
•e
 -Commerce platforming (SAP

Commerce Cloud, Salesforce Commerce
Cloud, Magento Commerce Cloud, etc.)

•M
 arketing cloud platforming
•D
 igital marketing solutions
•D
 igital store experiences

Mission
Our mission is to explore, identify and seize the best

digital opportunities to design powerful experiences for

our clients and guide them toward international growth
and digital success.
Thanks to our agile, user-centric mindset, we rapidly
deliver high-quality projects using the most appropriate
technologies and offer user experiences that attract
our clients’ customers and keep them engaged with
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their brands.
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Hepsiburada,
Koç Group,
Majid al Futtaim

Putting the
consumer at
the heart of
communication

Jonathan Cerneels
Managing Partner

Elsa Nejman
Managing Director

Your Agency

Ophain-Bois-Seigneur-Isaac
Our goal is to stimulate our clients’ growth by creating a
strong dialogue between brands and their customers.
To achieve this, we work on five key areas: strategy, data,
business, technology and creativity. We reach out to each
target audience through multiple points of contact to
convert them into customers and build long-term loyalty.
Your Agency works through CRM, brand activation,
social media, and on the ground. Our tools include
(big) data, business analysis, analytical technologies,
data intelligence and visualisation.

We create truly omnichannel brand experiences,
tailored to each type of consumer. Marrying creativity,
personal relevance and a real mastery of data,
we achieve everything possible within the limits of
computer power today.

Vision
Understanding today’s consumers...
Consumers nowadays are bombarded with offers.
The number of touchpoints between people and
brands is exploding. When companies understand
why, how and when to use the wide range of tools
available, they gain a powerful competitive
advantage. We deploy, test, measure and analyse
behaviours and interactions, to develop smart
strategies for relationships with consumers that
save both time and money.
Consumer insights are at the heart of our creative
approach. To know what they think, we combine a
mixture of strategies, generating qualitative and
quantitative information. Developing a better
understanding of our clients’ business is an equally
strategic must. Rapidly changing markets,
technologies and new business models are constantly
altering aspirations and consumption patterns.

Cosy with the client
We focus on a limited number of clients, offering a
highly personalised service where our skills and
expertise bring real business value. Flexible, fast,
agile and passionate, our employees strive to
provide high-quality, professional services to each
client. We strive for accessibility and create a close,
trusting relationship with client teams.

Emakina Group

Mission
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The team uses big data and social media intelligence,
to extract extremely precise information. These
insights are so focused that we have the power to
influence the very place where consumers express
their expectations and needs. By combining this
knowledge with our creative talents, we also help
advertisers to create clever new proposals, and reach
the most promising groups of potential customers.
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...thanks to big data and SoMe
intelligence

Your Agency has expertise in targeting the people you
want to convert to customers, via both traditional
and digital media. We integrate strategic and
creative thinking and have a wealth of experience
in point-of-sale and physical activation campaigns.
The agency’s teams manage engagement, loyalty
and after-sales programs, activations (brand,
promotional and social), CRM programs and
marketing automation strategies. We use social
media intelligence, database management and data
qualification processes. Then, we analyse results,
map potential conversion and plan your next action.
Our specialists base everything on our expertise in
how people behave and what they expect, to control
the funnels of engagement, transforming leads and
creating loyal customers.

Services
• Big data and analytics
• Creative strategy
• Conversion and commitment strategies
• Loyalty and after sales programs
• Activations (brand, promotional, social)
• CRM
• Marketing automation
• Social campaigns
• Social media intelligence
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Biotherm, Brico, Citroën,
Côte d’Or, DS Automobiles,
Electrolux, essie, Galler,
Garnier, JCDecaux, Kérastase,
Kiehl’s, LafargeHolcim,
Lancôme, Levi’s, L’Oréal Group,
L’Oréal Professionnel,
Mamma Roma, Maybelline,
Mixa, Mons 2015, NYX,
Opel, Peugeot, PSA Group,
PSA Banque, QlikBeton,
Redken, Ricoh, Victoire
Immobilier, Villo!, Wiko
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Brussels

Partners
Emakina Group’s strength comes not only from the expertise and talent
of its employees, but also from the partnerships it has carefully built
over the years. Its strategic partners help to extend the Group’s geographic
scope and commercial reach, while its technological partners enable
Emakina Group's teams to constantly adapt to the latest developments in
the market’s best tools and platforms.
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p.134

Strategic partners

p.139

Technological partners

Strategic
partners
Emakina Group and its international partners, all leading agencies in
their markets, share an ambition to be enablers of growth and success
in a changing world. Together, they work across borders to deliver
global services with the expertise and know-how necessary to address
local needs efficiently and on the field.
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Air
Brussels
A communication agency based in Brussels,
Air is the partner of choice for many leading brands
operating in Belgium.
The union of Air’s strategic and creative forces
and Emakina Group’s digital expertise make it
possible to offer an unprecedented level of campaign
integration. This partnership makes clients’ lives
simpler, and the lives of their users as well.

Asiance is a leading force in digital marketing, able to provide
multilingual services over a vast area.
Based in the world’s most sophisticated digital market,
this partner specialises in helping European companies
enter Asia.
It offers Emakina Group a strong foothold in South Korea
and Japan, where the most avant-garde digital ideas are
tested and refined.

Asiance
Seoul, Tokyo
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Bubblegum
Barcelona, Madrid
Spanish agency Bubblegum has a strong
reputation for excellent pharmaceutical and
consumer communication.
It offers its clients a full range of services, and
campaigns with a dash of scientific creativity.
As a structural partner, the agency provides
Emakina Group with valuable insights into the
local Spanish market.

Digital Jungle
Beijing, Shanghai,
Sydney
As Asia’s leader in social influence marketing,
Digital Jungle was the first agency to sign a partnership
agreement with Emakina Group.
CHAPTER 2

It has the on-the-ground knowledge to understand the
quirks of Asian markets, and engages audiences through
content marketing and social media campaigns precisely
adapted to every market.
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Domino
Turin, Venice
Domino is an Italian interactive digital agency.
Alongside its strategic and digital marketing
experience, it adds just the right Italian flair and
know-how to Emakina Group's international
service offering.

Metia Group
Austin, London,
Seattle, Singapore
CHAPTER 2

specialises in assisting international B2B
companies and technology firms.
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This global agency brings together top-notch

Emakina Group

With more than 200 experts covering everything
from marketing to performance, Metia Group

content and digital channels to maximise
performance, boosting user experience,
interactivity and brand impact among target
audiences.

SinnerSchrader
Berlin, Frankfurt, Hamburg,
Munich, Prague
CHAPTER 2

138
Emakina Group

SinnerSchrader specialises in UX and
transformational products that connect
with users and influence their behaviour.
One of the leading full-service digital
agencies in Germany, SinnerSchrader
employs more than 600 marketing and
digital experts, based at four offices in
Germany and one in Czechia.

SinnerSchrader positions itself as a guide
that helps clients adapt their offering
and business models to the imperatives
of the digital economy.

Technological
partners
Emakina Group prides itself in providing its
clients with the most efficient technical solutions
for their needs. Over the years, digital tools have
increasingly been consolidated into integrated
digital experience platforms.
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Emakina.CH,
Geneva

Digital experience
platforms
Emakina Group benefits from long-established partnerships with
publishers of digital experience platforms that combine management
of content, marketing, and aftersales in a single consistent technical
environment, enabling clients to deliver coherent, fluid and efficient
user experiences in their markets.
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Salesforce
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Salesforce provides a comprehensive and integrated
set of cloud applications that can be combined to
acquire new business, manage client relationships,
communicate in a highly targeted way, support
customers, and sell to consumers and businesses.
Extensive use of data produced throughout the client’s
cycle of interactions enables data-driven and/or
AI-powered decision-making.
Emakina Group possesses deep expertise in Salesforce
Commerce Cloud, Salesforce Marketing Cloud,
Salesforce CPQ, Salesforce Integration (formerly
Mulesoft), as well as the core clouds of Salesforce
(Sales Cloud, Service Cloud). The Group has over 200
experts with 241 professional certifications dedicated to
Salesforce technologies, including 32 architects.
The Group’s agencies have been the first in Europe to
deliver multi-cloud Salesforce projects
for international players. They proudly serve
prestigious clients such as Intersport, Rituals, ECCO,
Hema, Chalhoub Group, OMRON, Wolford, Hartlauer,
L’Occitane, Yves Saint Laurent and Courir.

Sitecore
Experience
Platform
Sitecore provides a set of tools to put marketing into context,
based around its market-leading content management
system. Thanks to real-time personalisation to control
multiple channels and ensure contextual relevance, Sitecore
allows management of the user experience on a large scale.
Emakina Group is a Sitecore Platinum partner through
The Reference in Belgium, enjoying more than a decade of
experience with the technology and benefiting from the
expertise of several MVPs among its technology staff.
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The Reference has deployed advanced Sitecore solutions
in Europe, the US and the Middle East for world-class clients
like Ansell, Kodak Alaris, Bekaert, Schlumberger, Carglass,
CohnReznick and Fédération Internationale de Volley.
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Kentico
Kentico is a robust digital experience platform
and content hub tech player that enables upper
mid-market as well as enterprise clients with
simple requirements to deploy consistent content,
marketing automation and commerce capabilities.
Emakina Group has been a partner of Kentico from
its inception almost 15 years ago, thanks to its
Central and Eastern European teams. The Group’s
competence centre and delivery centres of Vienna,
Zagreb and Poznan collaborate closely with client
teams working for companies such as Konica Minolta,
Segway, Bardahl, REWE or Hyundai.

Emakina Group

Emakina.FR, Limoges

Adobe
Experience
Cloud
Adobe is a world leader in state-of-the-art digital
experience platforms that continually evolve to
meet the increasingly demanding requirements of
modern business.

CHAPTER 2

142
Emakina Group

Emakina Group has acquired extensive expertise in
Adobe Experience Cloud and a stellar track record of
successful deployments for clients in highly competitive
industries (Telenet, VOO, Arçelik, BEKO, Moteo, etc.).
From digital platforms with telcos in Western Europe and
the Middle East to bringing advanced digital capabilities
to automotive clients and deploying sophisticated,
highly integrated solutions for a Fortune 500 company,
our teams are uniquely positioned to guide Adobe
technology projects, inject business agility and provide
entrepreneurial drive even in the most established
international companies.

SAP Hybris
SAP is a European leader in software dedicated to
the management of business operations and customer
relations. Emakina Group’s teams have extensive
experience in leveraging SAP technologies for commerce,
product information, warehouse and logistics and
customer relationships management. They master all
aspects of SAP CX and have particular expertise
in SAP Hybris.
Along with the commerce experts at WittyCommerce, the
Group has delivered major projects for domestic leaders
(such as Teknosa and Arçelik), international retailers and
for global leader highly ranked in the Fortune 500 list.

Omnichannel & unified
commerce solutions
In close collaboration with its unified commerce technology partners,
Emakina Group helps its clients deploy state-of-the-art methods, processes
and tools for modern commerce. Thus, clients are able to orchestrate their
distribution channels and to offer omnichannel experience to their customers.

Akeneo

Proximis
French publisher Proximis offers a top-tier
platform for omnichannel commerce and
digitisation of points of sale. They have long
been partners of Emakina Group, first in France
and then on the global scale, involved in projects
such as deployments for Alès Group (Phyto,
Liérac, Jowaé, Caron Parfums) and Ladurée.

Emakina Group

Fluent Commerce is a global challenger in
the omnichannel order management space that
redefines the rules in the category by bringing
to the market flexible solutions competing with
legacy monolithic systems. Emakina Group’s
teams have been cooperating closely with
Fluent Commerce since the first half of 2019 on
major retail engagement in the Middle East and
in Europe.
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Akeneo is a leading product information system
solution that extends into aspects of product
information that have direct impact on customer
experience. Emakina Group’s teams in the Middle
East and France have been engaging actively with
Akeneo on major client projects for retailers.
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Fluent
Commerce

Content
management solutions
Emakina Group's partners offer premier solutions that
allow its clients to easily manage their online content and
rapidly deliver it to the right audiences in the appropriate
context, along with all relevant available online services.

Progress Sitefinity

CHAPTER 2

Sitefinity is an integrated solution for web content
management, user journey personalisation,
electronic commerce and campaign impact
optimisation. Emakina Group is an elite partner of
Progress, the publisher of Sitefinity. Emakina Group
has worked for major international organisations on
projects involving Sitefinity deployments.
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Umbraco
Umbraco is a web content management system
under free MIT licensing, built on Microsoft’s .NET
technologies. It is a robust framework, enabling
online sites and services to be rolled out in an agile
way, for customers who care about technical
independence as well as budget. The Emakina Group
agencies’.NET teams have great expertise in working
with Umbraco solutions. Emakina Group and Umbraco
have been partners since 2015.

Acquia /
Drupal

Acquia is a software as a service (SaaS) company that provides
products, services and technical support for the open-source web
content management platform Drupal. Drupal offers first-class
features regarding content authoring, reliable performance and
security. Drupal has very strong flexibility, with modularity being
one of its core principles.
Emakina Group’s agencies have been active on Drupal for over
a decade, mainly through The Reference, while, in the same period,
strengthening the partnership with Acquia to support business
requirements in digital experience management.
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WittyCommerce, Izmir

Marketing
and customer
engagement
solutions
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Emakina.PL, Poznan

Selligent

Selligent is an integrated set of contextualised marketing tools
designed to optimise the engagement of audiences and consumers
with brands, products or causes. It makes marketing simple and
consumer-centric, without any loss to the range of features.
It aims to keep the total cost low enough to guarantee a return
on investment for contextual and relationship marketing.
Emakina Group has been a Selligent partner for many years,
with unmatched expertise in its technology.

Emakina Group can count on world-class partners to manage customer
relationships, provide user-centric marketing, marketing automation and
aftersales initiatives that engage our clients’ customers while strengthening
their loyalty and customer lifetime value.

Splio
CHAPTER 2

Splio is a leading software as a service (SaaS) loyalty
marketing platform that helps organisations
increase revenues on and offline through targeted
loyalty marketing campaigns. Emakina Group is
actively engaged with Splio through Emakina.FR.
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Microsoft
Dynamics
365
Dynamics 365 is a software as a service (SaaS)
platform published by Microsoft that offers CRM
and ERP functions. Emakina Group has been a
Microsoft partner since 2008, with extensive
experience on this platform, particularly regarding
its CRM capabilities.

Google Analytics
360 Suite

Google Analytics 360 Suite is a set of integrated data
and marketing analytics products, designed specifically for
the needs of professional marketers. It helps organisations
to identify and analyse consumer behaviour by providing
the data and insights necessary to understand user
journeys across all customer touchpoints, devices and
channels. These are key elements essential to making
brands useful to consumers. Emakina Group has developed
extensive, advanced expertise on GA360 through its Perform
unit and The Reference’s performance marketing team.

Digital
Infrastructure
The Group's partners offer solid, future-ready, state-of-the-art digital
infrastructure solutions provide enable its clients' all the tools
necessary to the deployment of high-performance digital ecosystems.
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Microsoft
Azure
Microsoft Azure is a cloud computing service created
by Microsoft to build, test, deploy and manage
applications and services through Microsoft-managed
data centres. It provides software as a service (SaaS),
platform as a service (PaaS) and infrastructure
as a service (IaaS), and supports many different
programming languages, tools and frameworks,
including both Microsoft-specific and third-party
software and systems.
Emakina Group is active in reselling, deploying and
managing solutions on Microsoft Azure through all
its agencies, making a major commitment to this
family of infrastructure solutions across all markets,
particularly in the Middle East.

Amazon AWS

Emakina.TR, Izmir

Amazon Web Services offers reliable, scalable and
inexpensive cloud computing services, providing
on-demand cloud computing platforms and APIs
on a metered pay-as-you-go basis. These cloud
computing web services provide a set of primitive
abstract technical infrastructure and distributed
computing building blocks and tools.
Emakina Group has advanced expertise in AWS,
with numerous deployments of solutions for
major global players in B2C and B2B, including
Fortune 500 companies.
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Google
Cloud Platform
Google Cloud Platform is a provider of computing
resources for deploying and operating applications
on the Web. It specialises in providing a place for
individuals and organisations to build and run
software, and it uses the Web to connect to its users.
Emakina Group’s teams have advanced expertise on
Google Cloud Platform, with numerous deployments
of solutions in the retail sector, among others.
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Corporate
governance,
management
and auditing

This section focuses on Emakina Group’s implementation of good
governance rules in 2019, following the recommendations of
the Belgian Code on Corporate Governance. It is important to remember
that since Emakina Group is a company listed on Euronext Growth
Brussels (formerly Alternext, an unregulated market), it is not actually
subject to the code, because it is not a ‘listed’ company as defined in
the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations (C. Soc. Art. 11).
However, the management of Emakina Group voluntarily decided to
adopt a corporate governance charter in 2006 (last modified on
19 March 2015). This is largely inspired by the provisions of the Belgian
Code on Corporate Governance but does not meet all obligations for
companies listed on a regulated market.
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Emakina Group
articles of
association and
shareholding body

Emakina Group is a public limited company under Belgian law,
with its registered office at 64A rue Middelbourg, 1170 Brussels, Belgium.
Its articles of association (last updated on 24 April 2017) are available
on its website at the following address: www.emakina.group ,
in the Investor relations section. Emakina Group shares have been listed
on Euronext Growth Brussels (formerly Alternext) since 14 July 2006.
On 31 December 2019,the capital of Emakina Group amounted to €9,347,962.
This is made up of 3,893,353 shares, corresponding to the total voting
rights (or ‘denominator’) and is broken down as follows:
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Shareholder

Shares

%

1,004,591

25.803

Mr Pierre Gatz

765,780

19.669

Two4Two SA

629,326

16.164

Mr Brice Le Blévennec

557,307

14.314

Mr Denis Steisel

550,475

14.139

Tarraco Holding SARL

296,052

7.604

80,637

2.071

8,243

0.212

942

0.024

3,893,353

100

Others

Mr Frédéric Desonnay & Sofrin SPRL
Mediadreams SA
Emakina Group SA
Total:

The significant interest held by Mr Pierre Gatz was the subject of
a transparency declaration on 13 December 2010, in accordance with
legislation (Royal Decree of 14 December 2006 for the Alternext
market). On 31 December 2019, Emakina Group held a balance of
942 of its own shares from various buyback plans (off-exchange
traded shares). These are held to remunerate former shareholders of
certain subsidiaries.
In accordance with obligations related to transparency (Article 15
of the Act of 2 May 2007), the capital and the number of securities
conferring voting rights were published on 8 June 2015, following
the capital increase undertaken on 2 June 2015.
CHAPTER 3
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The history of the capital over the last ten book years is summarised below:

Form

Increase
(EUR)

Shares
created

Share
premium
(EUR)

Capital
(EUR)

Total
shares

14 July 2009

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

89,257.96

37,175

245,317.04

8,395,670.14

3,496,708

1 July 2010

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

120,593.68

50,226

376,643.72

8,516,263.82

3,546,934

1 July 2010

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

600,099.20

249,935

1,874,257.30

9,116,363.02

3,796,869

15 July 2011

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

28,562.55

11,896

89,207.45

9,144,925.57

3,808,765

15 July 2011

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

59,963.10

24,974

172,044.90

9,204,888.67

3,833,739

15 July 2013

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

102,187.80

10,322

77,415.00

9,229,661.47

3,844,061

02 June 2015

contribution
in kind

authorised
capital

118,300.80

49,292

335,185.60

9,347,926.27

3,893,353
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The stock market capitalisation of Emakina Group stood at €40,880,206.50 on 31 December 2019.

Structure of
Emakina Group
On 31 December 2019, Emakina Group consisted
of 26 separate legal entities, interlinked as follows:
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All subsidiaries are consolidated using a global
integration method, recognising minority
interests, with the exception of the company
Robert & Marien, which is classified under
‘Other Investments’ (as follows).

wholly owned

Emakina.BE SA

90% holding

Emakina.CH SA

wholly owned

Emakina.FR SA
Emakina / Influx SAS
Emakina.NL BV

89,9% holding

Emakina Bilgisayar
Yazilim LTD. Şti.
(Emakina Turkey LTD)
Mye Bilgisayar Yazilim
Ticaret AŞ
(WittyCommerce)

Emakina.RS d.o.o.
Novi Sad

wholly owned by Emakina Turkey LTD

wholly owned

wholly owned

Emakina.PL Sp. z.o.o.

75,20% held by Emakina CEE GmbH

62% held by Emakina CEE GmbH
70% held by Emakina CEE GmbH
wholly owned

Emakina / Insights SPRL

wholly owned

The Reference NV
Emakina.US INC
The Reference.US INC

wholly owned by The Reference NV
wholly owned by Emakina.US INC
wholly owned

Design is Dead BVBA

wholly owned

Your Agency SA

wholly owned

Emakina Asia PTE LTD
Emakina.SG PTE LTD
Emakina FZ-LLC
Cloudworks Consulting
DMCC

wholly owned by Emakina Asia PTE LTD
90% held by Emakina Asia PTE LTD
wholly owned by Emakina FZ-LLC
25% holding

Financial Information

Emakina Inbound
Marketing GmbH

wholly owned by Emakina CEE GmbH
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Emakina.HR d.o.o.

wholly owned by Emakina CEE GmbH

CHAPTER 3

diamond dogs
switzerland GmbH
NetLounge Internet
Media Services GmbH

Robert & Marien SPRL

wholly owned by Emakina.NL BV

70% holding

Emakina DBG AB
Emakina Central
& Eastern Europe
GmbH

60% held by Emakina.FR
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During the financial year 2019, the consolidation
scope of Emakina Group evolved as follows, following
the investments made:

Financial Information

Acquisition of Cloudworks
Consulting DMCC
The capital of Cloudworks, based in Dubai, was fully acquired by
Emakina FZ-LLC in October 2019.
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Merger of k.section
business solutions GmbH with
Emakina CEE GmbH
The k.section entity merged at the end of 2019 with Emakina Central & Eastern
Europe GmbH for the purpose of rationalising and merging the teams.
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Board
of Directors

Report on activities
Composition and meeting attendance rate:

The Board of Directors met four times in 2019.
It dealt mainly with the following subjects:

Chairman:

•	approval and closure of the Annual Accounts and
Half-Year Accounts;

•	Denis Steisel 4/4

• approval of press releases;

Executive members:

• approval of budgets;
•	development strategy: review and approval of acquisitions,
strategic partnerships and commercial dossiers;
•	monitoring of cash aspects and working capital
requirements;
•	monitoring of the work of the audit and the appointment
and remuneration committees;
•	analysis of the Group’s performance over the year
on the basis of financial, commercial and operational
key performance indicators;
• monitoring of the risk management policy;

•	Karim Chouikri 4/4
•	Pierre Gatz 4/4
•	Brice Le Blévennec 3/4
Non-executive members:
•	Denis Steisel 4/4
•	François Gillet 3/4
•	Clife Consulting Ltd
represented by Daisy Foquet 4/4
•	Anne Pinchart 3/4
•	Valentin Cogels 3/4

CHAPTER 3

•	monitoring of the integration of subsidiaries and
the implementation of the the Workfront and Navision
Dynamics ERPs within the Group;
• convening of the General Assembly.
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The Board of Directors is composed of eight members, all of whom have elected domicile
at the Company’s registered office for the purpose of their duties.
Directors

Executive

Mr Denis Steisel

Non-executive

Independent

V

Date of end of term
General Assembly 2022

Mr Brice Le Blévennec

V

General Assembly 2022

Mr Karim Chouikri

V

General Assembly 2021

Mr Pierre Gatz

V

General Assembly 2021

Mr François Gillet

V

V

General Assembly 2021

Mrs Anne Pinchart

V

V

General Assembly 2022

Clife Consulting Ltd,
represented by Mrs Daisy Foquet

V

V

General Assembly 2022

Mr Valentin Cogels

V

V

General Assembly 2022

Brice Le Blévennec
Mr Brice Le Blévennec has been a director of the company since its
creation in 2001.
At the time of the Emakina Group IPO in 2006, he became Chief Visionary
Officer and was elected Chairman of the Board of Directors. In 2012,
he succeeded Mr Denis Steisel as Managing Director of Emakina.BE.
In January 2014, he was appointed joint CEO in charge of Emakina Group,
with Mr Karim Chouikri.
In 1991, Brice Le Blévennec founded Ex Machina, a company working
in graphic design and multimedia production. Building on the success
of this firm, in 1998 he created Ex Machina Graphic Design (a graphic
design studio) and Ex Machina Interactive Architects (a web agency,
which would merge with Emalaya in 2001 to form Emakina).
In 1999, he co-founded NetBusiness (now ContactOffice Group),
which develops the groupware, Contactoffice.com. For 12 years,
Brice Le Blévennec created and hosted radio and television programmes,
including CyberCafe21 (Radio21), CyberCafe 2.0 (RTBF’s La Deux),
NetBusinessNews (BFM), Single (Pure FM) and Elle et Lui (Pure FM).
In 2007, he co-founded Tunz.com, a company specialising in mobile
payments. Since 2019, he has been hosting the podcast, Emakina Inside.
As a specialist in new technologies, he is regularly invited to speak at
seminars, congresses and conferences in Belgium and abroad.

Mr Brice Le Blévennec is or has been a director or manager
of the following companies in the past five years:
Emakina Group*, Emakina.BE*, Emakina.CH*, Emakina.NL*,
Emakina.AT*, Emakina / Insights*, Emakina.US*, ContactOffice
Group*, Ex Machina Television* and Ex Cursus.
*

Current positions

Karim Chouikri
M. Karim Chouikri has been a director of the company
since March 2006.
Karim Chouikri is a commercial engineer (Solvay
Brussels School of Economics & Management, 1994).
As a shareholder, director or consultant, he has
helped develop various companies involved in new
technologies, internet business, media and marketing.
Since 2013, he has been academic director of the
EMM/CEPAC Solvay Brussels School.
At the beginning of January 2014, he was appointed
joint CEO of Emakina Group with Brice Le Blévennec,
replacing Mr Denis Steisel, who became Chairman of
the Board of Directors.

Mr Karim Chouikri is or has been a director of the
following companies in the past five years: Emakina Group*,
Mediadreams*, B.C.I.*, Netholding* and Property Dreams*.

*

Current positions

Pierre Gatz
Mr Pierre Gatz has been a director of the company since 2009.
Between 1986 and 2004, he was a director and partner at
Bureau van Dijk Electronic Publishing, an electronic publishing
company that he co-founded. He developed several innovative
technologies, including search engines for CD-Rom and the
Internet. He also developed commercial activities in Europe
and the USA.
In 2004 and 2005, Mr Pierre Gatz worked as a technology
consultant for various private equity firms in London
and New York.
From July 2005 to June 2010, Mr Pierre Gatz was Chief
Technology Officer (CTO) at Truvo, publisher of the Pages d’Or
and Pages Blanches (telephone directories) in Belgium,
Ireland, Portugal, Romania, South Africa and Puerto Rico.
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Mr Pierre Gatz is or has been a director or manager of the following
companies in the last five years: Emakina Group*, Emakina.CH*,
Emakina.NL*, Emakina.AT*, Emakina.SE*, Emakina.US*, Your Agency*,
The Reference*, The Reference.US* and Design is Dead*.
*

Current positions

Denis Steisel
Mr Denis Steisel has been a director of the company since 2000.
He graduated from the Catholic University of Leuven with
a degree in Economic Science. He began his career as an SAP
specialist, worked as Business Unit Manager at Econocom,
then co-founded Expert Finance Consulting before devoting
himself to the Internet and e-commerce.
In 1999, he founded Emalaya, the E Business agency, which is
now known as Emakina.
Between 2001 and the end of 2013, Mr Denis Steisel was CEO
of the company with responsibilities including business
development within the Emakina Group.
Since 1 January 2014, Mr Denis Steisel has been non-executive
chairman of the Emakina Group Board of Directors.
He is also a director of the ‘Entrepreneurs’ Network
Brussels’ (Réseau Entreprendre Bruxelles) which supports
entrepreneurialism and an advisory member of the WinG
fund which supports the development of digital startups in
the Walloon Region.

Mr Denis Steisel is or has been a director of the following
companies: Emakina Group*, Emakina.BE, Design is Dead,
Emakina.NL, Emakina.FR, Your Agency, The Reference,
IPM Group*, Eezee-it* and Be-open*.
*

Current positions

François Gillet
Mr François Gillet has been a director and chairman of the
company’s audit committee since 2006.
He graduated from the Louvain School of Management in 1983
with a degree in Commercial Engineering and Management.
The following year he joined the ‘Union Minière’, where he
was deputy Chief Financial Officer, responsible for financial
aspects of acquisitions, strategic plans and specific projects.
In 1988 he joined the financial holding company Sofina,
where he participates in the overall management of the group
as a member of the executive committee. He is in charge of
monitoring several investments in which he holds directorships,
currently including Colruyt, Luxempart, Groupe Petit Forestier
and JF Hillebrand.
He is a member of various audit, appointment and
remuneration committees, and also oversees the financial
and support functions within Sofina.
In addition to his training at the Louvain School of
Management, during which he participated in an international
exchange program with the University of Western Ontario
(Canada), he has taken the Cepac (ULB) program, the Advanced
Management program (INSEAD), Challenge of Leadership
program (INSEAD) and obtained the certificate of the
International Directors Program (INSEAD). He also studied tax
at the École de Commerce Saint Louis.

Daisy Foquet
Mrs Daisy Foquet has been a director of Emakina Group since
March 2011.
Mrs Foquet graduated from Solvay Brussels School of
Economics & Management in 1994 with a Commercial
Engineering Business degree and began her career at
Banque Indosuez in Brussels. In 1996, she joined JP Morgan
Investment Management in London.
Mrs Foquet spent the following 12 years in financial
management in London as an analyst covering companies
in the consumer sector. She then worked for Dresdner RCM,
Putnam Investment Management and Generation Investment
Management, a management company established by
Al Gore, the former US vice president, which looks at
financial analysis and sustainable development issues.
In 2008, Mrs Foquet joined Nestlé in Vevey (Switzerland)
as Director of Financial Communications.
In 2010, she moved to Boston, offering local startups
her services in constructing financial models and formalising
budgets and reporting. In 2014, she returned to London to
take up a role as COO in the investment company Anthemis.
In 2018, she joined Hatch, an affordable housing startup
that works in the modular construction sector.

Valentin Cogels
Mr Valentin Cogels joined the Emakina Group in 2018
as director and member of the appointment and
remuneration committee. He has a wealth of digital, global,
entrepreneurial and management experience.
He studied Management Science at IAG (Louvain-la-Neuve)
and has an MBA from INSEAD (Fontainebleau and Singapore).
After two years as a consultant at Bain & Company,
he worked for four years at eBay, and then co-founded
an e-commerce agency in Lausanne in 2010. He sold
the agency in 2014 to become CEO of Belgian company
Victoria, where he stayed until 2016.
He is currently CEO of Immoweb, where he is tasked
with turning this leading Belgian property website back
into an innovative business leader. In 2018, he also
created the gourmet restaurant 65 degrés, which has a
mission to integrate, train and employ people who have
a mental handicap.
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Anne Pinchart
Mrs Anne Pinchart has been a director of the company
since March 2011. She is a member of the audit and
appointment and remuneration committee.
She has a degree in Commercial and Consular Sciences
(ICHEC 1986) and has extensive experience in banking,
especially in the area of risk management.
She began her career at Citibank Belgium SA in 1988 as a
Junior Credit Officer. After two years at Citibank Luxembourg,
she worked in various credit and risk roles.
In 1995, she was appointed Credit Director for Citibank
Belgium and France, and is still a member of its executive
committee. In 2004, she became member of the Board of
Directors of Citibank SA, managing risk for the entire bank
in her role as country risk manager.
In September 2008, she began lecturing in Management,
Financial Management and Risk Management at the EPHEC
college in Brussels. At the same time, she worked as an
independent consultant in credit risk and senior management.
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Since June 2017, she has been in charge of the professional
and mortgage loans department at Beobank SA, in the role
of Director.
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In June 2012, she obtained an executive master’s diploma in
Business Coaching, and she now regularly participates in
reorientation sessions for business leaders and executives.
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Board
of Directors’
committees
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General
The Emakina Group Board of Directors creates specialised
committees to help it with its work. Committees are
advisory bodies which examine specific issues and give
guidance on these subjects. Decision-making remains
the collective responsibility of the Board of Directors.
In 2006, the Board had three special committees
choosing members from within the Board: an audit
committee, a remuneration committee and an
appointment committee.
On 18 March 2008, the Board of Directors decided
(as permitted by the articles of association) to merge
the appointment and remuneration committees.

Audit committee
CHAPTER 3

The audit committee’s role is to assist the Board of Directors in
upholding the financial integrity of the Company, overseeing
financial reporting, internal and external auditing, internal
controls and financial relationships between the Company and
its shareholders. Members of this committee have extensive
powers of investigation when exercising their assistance and
surveillance mission, in particular powers of investigation that
are identical to the legal powers of the auditor.
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During 2019, the audit committee met five times and essentially
worked on:
• a
 nalysis of the Annual and Consolidated Accounts and
the auditor’s report;
• analysis of Half-Year Accounts;
• discussion of audit findings with the auditor;
• review of press releases;
•	aspects of internal monitoring, especially financial and
operational monitoring and risk management through
the analysis of key performance indicators as well as follow-up
of risk management;
•	monitoring the formalisation and compliance with internal
procedures for financial closures and financial reporting;
•	following up on the advice and recommendations of
the external auditor;
•	monitoring the cash management and optimisation of working
capital needs;
•	monitoring the implementation and improvement of
the Navision Dynamics integrated ERP project and the cash
management tool within the Group and overseeing the
implementation of a group business intelligence reporting tool;
•	monitoring the integration of new acquisitions in terms
of internal processes;
• monitoring the valuation of investments in subsidiaries;
• monitoring the reappointment process of the auditor.

Composition and meeting
attendance rate  
The audit committee consists of three
members who are all non-executive directors
and the majority of whom are independent.
Chairman:
•	François Gillet 5/5
Members:
•	Anne Pinchart 4/5
•	Clife Consulting Ltd represented
by Daisy Foquet 5/5
Co-CEO Karim Chouikri and
CFO Frédéric Desonnay attended all five
committee meetings in 2019 as guests.
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Emakina.AE, Dubai

Appointment and
remuneration committee
The appointment and remuneration committee is formed
from the Board of Directors and is responsible for:
•	making recommendations on the appointment
of directors;
•	ensuring that appointments and re-elections are
organised objectively and professionally;

•	issuing recommendations on human resources and
employee remuneration policies.

The appointment and remuneration committee met once
during 2019.
Members:
•	Clife Consulting Ltd
represented by Daisy Foquet 1/1,
•	Anne Pinchart 1/1,
•	Valentin Cogels 1/1.

Financial Information

The appointment and remuneration committee
consists of three members who are all non-executive,
independent directors.
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Composition and meeting attendance rates

CHAPTER 3

•	making recommendations on individual remuneration
for executives, including bonuses and long-term
incentives (such as stock options);

Executive
committee

CHAPTER 3
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General
The Board of Directors has appointed two Managing
Directors who are assisted by the executive directors.
Together they form the executive committee.
The Board of Directors defines the executive
committee's internal rules. The executive committee
is not a management committee within the meaning
of Article 7:104 of the Belgian Code on Companies
and Associations.

Composition
of the executive
committee
The executive committee, set up by the Board,
is responsible for the management of Group
activities in terms of the overall policy as defined
by the Board of Directors.

Since 1 January 2014, the role of Managing Director
and CEO has been fulfilled by Mr Brice Le Blévennec
and Mr Karim Chouikri. The CEOs lead and supervise
different central departments and units of the
Emakina Group and report back to the Board on
their activities.

•	Brice Le Blévennec (Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Visionary Officer);

Financial Information

The Board also named Mr Denis Steisel CEO.
He was ultimately responsible for company
management and implementation of the Board’s
decisions regarding strategy, planning, values and
budget approved by the Board. The Managing
Director is appointed by the Board and is responsible
for the daily management of the company.

On 31 December 2019, the executive committee
consisted of four members:

177

The Board of Directors named a Managing Director at
the first meeting that followed the start of trading in
July 2006: Mr Denis Steisel. The appointment could
be revoked by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and
Managing Director

It has been given decision-making powers and
authority by the Board of Directors to represent the
company in relations with staff, clients, other credit
institutions, the social and economic environment
and the authorities. It also has decision-making and
representation powers in dealing with subsidiaries.

•	Karim Chouikri
(Chief Executive Officer);
•	Pierre Gatz
(Executive director);
•	Frédéric Desonnay
(Chief Financial Officer).
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Remuneration
of directors
and the executive
committee

The total amount paid by the Company to
executive directors in 2019 was €1,104,668.
Excluding statutory pay required by
labour law, the Company is not liable
to pay any amount if a member of
the executive committee is dismissed.

Financial Information

Directors who are members of the audit
committee also receive €1,000 for each
meeting they attend. Directors who
are members of the remuneration and
appointment committee receive €500 for
each meeting they attend.
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The Board of Directors decided on
annual remuneration of €67,000 for all
non-executive directors.

Executive
directors
(executive
committee)

CHAPTER 3

Non-executive
directors

CHAPTER 3

180
Financial Information

Shares held
by non-executive
directors
and members
of the executive
committee

Shares held by the non-executive directors
The table below shows shares directly or indirectly held by directors who were not members
of the executive committee on 31 December 2019.
Non-executive directors

Directly held shares

Indirectly /transitively held shares

Shares

% of capital

Shares

% of capital

550,475

14.14

0

0

200

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Clife Consulting LTD
represented by Mrs Daisy Foquet (1)

0

0

675(2)

0

Mr Vincent Cogels (1)

0

0

0

0

Mr Denis Steisel
Mr François Gillet

(1)

Mrs Anne Pinchart

(1)

(1)

Independent directors

(2)

Shares held by Mrs Daisy Foquet
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Shares held by members
of the executive committee
The table below shows shares directly or indirectly held by executive directors
on 31 December 2019.
Executive directors

Mr Brice Le Blévennec
Mr Karim Chouikri
Mr Pierre Gatz
Mr Frédéric Desonnay

Directly held shares
Shares

% of capital

557,307

14.31

0

0

765,780
42,686

Indirectly /transitively held shares
Shares

% of capital

0

0

(1)

16.38 /4.90

19.67

0

0

1.10

37,951(2)

0.97

637,644 /190,656

 he Two4Two company is a holding company wholly owned by Mediadreams. Mediadreams is a holding company in which Mr Karim Chouikri owns a 29.9% share.
T
Two4Two’s total holding in Emakina Group is 629,326 shares. Mediadreams owns 8,318 shares in Emakina Group. The figure of 190,656 is Mr Chouikri’s transitive
participation in Emakina Group, obtained by multiplying 629,326 by Mediadreams’ ownership of Two4Two, and Mr Chouikri’s share in Mediadreams, to which is
added 8,318 multiplied by Mr Chouikri’s ownership of Mediadreams.
(2) Shares held by SOFRIN SPRL.
(1)
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The auditor
Financial Information

She is responsible for auditing the Statutory
Accounts and controlling the Group and for
certification of the Company’s Consolidated
Financial Accounts.

In 2014, EY Réviseurs d’Entreprises was appointed
auditor of the Belgian subsidiary Your Agency and
its mandate was renewed in 2017 for three years.

On 20 March 2006, EY Réviseurs d’Entreprises was
also appointed auditor of the Belgian subsidiary,
Emakina.BE, and its mandate was renewed in 2017
for three years.

In 2015, EY Réviseurs d’Entreprises was appointed
auditor of the Belgian subsidiary Emakina / Insights
for three years.
The fees for the auditing services of EY Réviseurs
d’Entreprises for the Company and its subsidiaries
amounted to €85,472 for the 2019 financial year.

Emakina.BE, Brussels

Financial Information

The three-year term (for the financial years
ending 31 December 2017, 2018 and 2019) was
renewed at the 2017 AGM, on the recommendation
of the audit committee.
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In 2008, EY Réviseurs d’Entreprises was appointed
auditor of the Belgian subsidiaries Design is Dead
and The Reference and its mandate was renewed in
2017 for three years.
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Since 17 March 2006, the Company auditor has
been EY Réviseurs d’Entreprises based at
De Kleetlaan 2, 1831 Diegem and represented by
Marie Kaisin, administrator.
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Conflicts of interest
involving directors,
members of the
executive committee
and transactions
with affiliates

The Board of Directors does not have an established
policy for transactions and other contractual
relationships entered into by the Company, including
affiliated companies, with directors or executive
managers other than those covered by legal conflict of
interest provisions (Article 7:96 of Belgian Code on
Companies and Associations).

Financial Information

These contractual operations are insignificant since
the total value of the services provided by these
executive directors in fulfilment of these contracts did
not exceed 0.5% of the Company’s consolidated revenue.
These contracts were concluded at market conditions.
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During the 2019 financial year, there were occasional
and sporadic contractual operations between
Emakina Group and/or affiliates and one or more
executive directors.
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However, the directors are required to ensure that
transactions between themselves and the Company
are concluded under normal market conditions.
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Financial Information

Corporate
governance
charter

This charter is regularly updated. The Board made its
most recent changes on 19 March 2015.

Financial Information

The charter is available at www.emakina.group ,
Investor relations section and can be obtained free
of charge at the Company’s registered office.
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The Company has therefore adopted an appropriate
charter based on the ‘comply or explain’ principle.
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In 2006, the Emakina Group Board of Directors
decided to adopt a voluntary corporate governance
charter, largely inspired by the provisions of the
Belgian Code on Corporate Governance, but which
does not fulfil all of its obligations for listed firms on
a regulated market.

Relationships
with significant
shareholders
CHAPTER 3
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Current trade and business relations between
shareholders and their affiliates and the Company
and its subsidiaries include relationships between
shareholder-managers’ management companies
and Emakina Group.
Amounts charged by shareholder-managers to
the Company and its subsidiaries are included in
the amounts listed on page 179 of this section of the
report for the 2019 financial year and are determined
by the Board of Directors on the recommendation
of the appointment and remuneration committee.
In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries
occasionally use the services of companies
that indirectly have common shareholders with
the Company.
These services are not significant for
Emakina Group. The contracts are concluded under
market conditions.

Relationships
with affiliates
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Emakina Group is listed on Euronext Growth
Brussels, (Ex Alternext), so it is not a listed
company in the sense of Article 4 of the Belgian
Code on Companies and Associations.
The Article 7:97 of the Belgian Code on Companies
and Associations – which outlines a special
procedure for relations between a company and
any related company (other than its subsidiaries)
– does not apply to Emakina Group.
However, the management ensures that such
transactions and decisions are effected under
normal market conditions and with the safeguards
that are customary for such transactions.
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Compliance
with legislation
on insider dealing
and market
manipulation

(market abuse)

Financial Information

On 19 March 2015, the Board of Directors
appointed Mr Frédéric Desonnay as compliance
officer (according to our charter and the Belgian
Code on Corporate Governance), responsible for
monitoring compliance with these rules (closed
periods and blackout).
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During 2019, the directors were forbidden from
conducting transactions in company securities
during the period preceding the publication of its
financial results (closed period) and during any
other period considered sensitive (blackout).
The list of insiders was kept up to date by the Board
of Directors throughout 2019.
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Emakina Group aims to comply with the Directive
2003/6/EC on insider dealing and market
manipulation (market abuse).
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Main features of
the Company’s
internal auditing
systems
(during the process of preparing
financial information)

Business growth and changes in the scope of consolidation of the
Company have led naturally to greater formalisation and strengthening
of the procedures relating to the establishment of financial
information (the extent of financial reporting and respecting of
deadlines, for example).
As a result, the system of internal auditing within the Group has been
strengthened in recent years by the following measures:

•	establishing standardised monthly financial reporting, interfaced
with the central management tool;
•	establishing a monthly report tracking cash flow within the Group;
•	formalising payroll management and the administration of human
resources through affiliation to an accredited payroll administration
agency and the implementation of the new staff management tool eBlox;
•	introducing a ‘cash management’ tool as well as a ‘business intelligence’
reporting tool throughout the Group;
•	implementing a tool to draw up centralised Consolidated Accounts
in the Group’s financial department and of auditing procedures to
control this.

Financial Information

•	formalising and systematically documenting the main auditing
procedures performed by the accounting department;
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• s
 etting up ‘integrated’ and ‘standardised’ management for current
projects and recognising revenues, which has improved the reliability
of key processes;
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•	implementing a centralised management system for operational
and financial processes (the Navision Dynamics ERP) which offers
managers an oversight of operational aspects and financial results
in the making. This integrated system, introduced early in 2008 and
implemented in almost all entities of the Group in 2010, is the main
form of internal auditing;

Financial
Data

WittyCommerce, Izmir

This chapter contains the Consolidated Annual Accounts of Emakina Group
as at 31 December 2019 with comparative figures from 31 December 2018 and
the Statutory Annual Accounts of Emakina Group as at 31 December 2019
with comparative figures from 31 December 2018.
The Statutory Annual and Consolidated Annual Accounts of Emakina Group for
2019 are to be presented for approval to the General Assembly of shareholders
on 22 April 2020, after being approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020.

p.196

p.236

Auditor’s report
• Independent auditor’s report to the General Assembly of
Emakina Group SA for the year ended 31 December 2019
		 • R
 eport on the audit of the Annual Accounts
		 • R
 eport on other legal and regulatory requirements
• Independent auditor’s report to the General Assembly of
Emakina Group SA for the year ended 31 December 2019
		 • R
 eport on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
• R
 eport on other legal and regulatory requirements
p.246

Statement from the company directors

p.248

Share price fluctuation in 2019 and financial schedule
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p.232 Statutory financial statements 2019 of Emakina Group SA
		 • S tatutory balance sheet established according to Belgian accounting
standards (Belgian GAAP), after distribution
		 • S tatutory income statement established according to Belgian accounting
standards (Belgian GAAP)
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p.212 Consolidated Accounts as at 31 December 2019
		 • C
 onsolidation method
		 • S cope of consolidation
		 • C
 onsolidated balance sheet established according to Belgian accounting
standards (Belgian GAAP)
		 • C
 onsolidated income statement established according to Belgian
accounting standards (Belgian GAAP) after distribution
		 • C
 ash flow statement (EUR)
		 • B
 alance sheet indicators (EUR)
		 • A
 ppendices to the Consolidated Accounts
		 • S ummary of consolidated valuation rules
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Management report
• H
 ighlights of the financial year and developments in Emakina Group activities
		• Comments on Emakina Group SA’s Consolidated Annual Accounts
		• Comments on Emakina Group SA’s Statutory Annual Accounts
		• Risk analysis
		• Outlook for 2020
		• Conflicts of interest between directors and the Company
		• Legal information regarding the transposition of the takeover directive
		 • Increase in the authorised capital (Art. 7:203 Belgian Code on
Companies and Associations)
		 • A
 bolition of the shareholders’ preferential subscription right on the issuing
of warrants in the Emakina Group SA
		 • R
 esearch and development activities
		 • C
 ompany branches
		 • P
 roposed appropriation of profits
		 • D
 ischarge granted to directors and the auditor

Management
report
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This is a management report on the Consolidated
Accounts combined with a management report on
the Statutory Accounts of Emakina Group SA,
in accordance with Article 3:34 of the Belgian Code
on Companies and Associations (final paragraph).

Highlights of the financial year
and developments in Emakina
Group activities
Growth in activities on the international
scene in particular

at constant scope).

Consolidated earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) amounted
to €5,881,414 (€5,820,909 at constant scope) in
2019, compared with €6,107,455 in 2018, a fall in
absolute terms of 3.7% (4.7% at constant scope).
Expressed as a percentage of total sales, EBITDA
passed from 6.6% to 6.1% (6.0% at constant scope)
between 2018 and 2019.
Despite keeping selling prices and staff costs under
control, the need for more complex planning
weighed on the average rate of use of resources and
hence on the performance posted in 2019 compared
with 2018. Aligning clients’ requests and the talents
available remains a constant and major challenge
in a context of ever-evolving technologies.

Financial Information

Development of EBITDA
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This progression is driven in particular by the
growth in activities ‘outside Belgium’ of 5.4%.
The commercial pipeline and the group’s
expansion policy continue to support this growing
share of activities located outside Belgium.
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In 2019, Emakina Group’s consolidated sales
amounted to €96,618,148 compared with
€92,389,601 in 2018, an increase of +4.6% (+4.2%

CHAPTER 3
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Current profits under control and net result close
to break-even
The current profit before tax amounted to €1,256,070 in
2019, down 9.2% compared with 2018.
This may be attributed to the operating performance,
as explained above, and the increase in amortisation and
write-downs, partly offset by a better financial result
owing in particular to the fall in goodwill amortisation
charges linked to the lengthening of the amortisation
period from 8 to 10 years so as to reflect a period more
commonly seen in the sector.
The fall in the net result to -€71,265 in 2019 compared
with €56,727 in 2018 may be attributed to the development
of the current result, a substantial non-recurrent element
(-€1,020,792) mainly linked to a reorganisation programme,
offset by tax credit linked to innovative activities. Despite
this fall, the net profit nevertheless remains close to zero,
making it possible to maintain the level of the Group’s
equity base.
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Financial health
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Emakina.RS, Novi Sad

Financial Information

At the end of 2019, the Group’s financial health was
maintained thanks to a net result close to zero (despite
the goodwill amortisation charges), a level of financial
indebtedness in line with the growth in activities and the
availability of adequate credit lines. It is important to keep
a constant eye on the impact of the growth on working
capital requirements and liquid assets.

Changes in the Group in 2019
and key projects
New business

CHAPTER 3

In 2019, many national and international
companies chose an Emakina Group
agency as their partner. These include,
among others: Allergan,
Al Tayer Group (Bloomingdales),
Arçelik, Basic-Fit, Beko, Brussels Expo,
Chalhoub Group, Courrèges,
Fluxys, Royal FrieslandCampina,
Gulf Marketing Group, Heineken Blade,
Honda, Majid Al Futtaim Fashion,
LEGO, Moteo, Nike, Nuskin,
Olympique de Marseille, Sodexo,
Stockmann, Suitsupply, Sunweb, TVH,
UnifiedPost et VOO.

growing share of activities located

New activities

Finally, the Emakina Group teams
worked hard to ensure that the Group’s
processes comply with the new European
General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).
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In 2019, the Group continued its
strategy of expanding its service range,
in particular in the field of marketplace
activity, influencer marketing and
e-commerce. In this context,
selecting the best technological
partners is a crucial factor in providing
clients with optimal support with their
digital challenges.

Continued acquisitions
The Group’s policy of expanding via
external operations is continuing

outside Belgium in the coming months.

Integration and processes
In 2019, Emakina Group continued to
invest in integration and synergies
within its network, particularly in

the Netherlands and in France, where
the new centralised project management
platform combined with the new version
of the ERP was successfully deployed.
These platforms will be introduced in
the Group’s main operating entities over
the course of the next two financial years.

Talents
The management of human capital remains
a key element in the Group’s development.
With over 1,000 talented individuals at
Emakina Group, management’s priority is
to attract the best people and accompany
them in their career while maintaining
a subtle balance between the skills required
by clients, technological progress and the
need to keep costs under control.

in line with the strategy it has set out.
In October 2019, Emakina Group
acquired 100% Cloudworks Consulting
DMCC (Dubai Multi Commodities
Center), an innovative Cloud IT

consultancy firm with offices in Dubai
and 27 experts, its Dubai-based
subsidiary Emakina FZ-LLC. This
operation confirms the Group’s
ambition to be a sound partner in
the Middle East.

Geography
In geographic terms, international
income increased by over 5.4% during
2019 and accounted for 63% of

the consolidated income in 2019. The
commercial pipeline and the expansion
policy of the Group (in particular with
the new Dubai offices) will support this

Partnerships
Emakina Group continues to offer its
clients a wide geographic scope with
in-depth local knowledge through

its commercial partners: Air (Belgium);
Asiance (South Korea, Japan);
Bubblegum (Spain); Domino (Italy);
Metia (Great Britain, USA, Singapore)
and SinnerSchrader (Germany).

Emakina.CH, Geneva
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Prizes and awards
In 2019, Emakina Group won several awards, including five ‘AVA Website Awards’, with

The Athlete’s Foot, Van Cleef & Arpels, ECCO and Boucheron, as well as a special award for
its own brand communication platform. Other awards include the ‘Trends Digital Pioneer
Award’ with DP World, the ‘Gold Best e-commerce SpinAward’ with Rituals, the ‘YouTube
Works Award’ and two ‘Swedish Content Awards’ with SBAB.

The teams also won several technological awards including the ‘Best Kentico Website of

the Year Award’ with Bardahl and the ‘Kentico MVP Award’, the ‘Umbraco Best Cloud Solution
Award’ with Vivaldis Interim and four ‘Sitecore MVP Awards’.

Consolidated income statements

Comments on
Emakina Group SA’s
Consolidated Annual
Accounts
During the 2019 financial year, Emakina Group’s scope of
consolidation changed as follows:
•	the capital of Cloudworks Consulting DMCC (Dubai Multi
Commodities Center) based in Dubai was acquired in full
on 1 October 2019 by Emakina FZ-LLC, through a new
entity also established in Dubai;
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•	the company k.section business solutions GmbH merged
with the holding company Emakina Central & Eastern
Europe in the last quarter of 2019 to streamline operations
and bring teams closer together.
These Consolidated Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with Belgian accounting standards.

In 2019, Emakina Group’s sales amounted to €96,618,148
compared to €92,389,601 the previous year, an increase
of 4.6%. At constant scope (considering 12 months of
results in 2019 for all subsidiaries under Emakina Group’s
control on 31 December 2018, in other words, excluding
Cloudworks) sales increased to €96.3 million, compared to
€92.4 million during the same period in the previous year.
The growth rate for entities ‘outside Belgium’ was 5.4%
in 2019, which demonstrates the wisdom of the Group’s
internationalisation strategy. In terms of clients, 63% of 2019
consolidated income was generated from clients outside
Belgium. Sales in Belgium were relatively stable in 2019.
The cost of sales and services represented 96.0% of total
sales in 2019, up slightly (rising 0.8%) compared to 2018.
In more detail, the cost of purchases connected with projects
remained relatively stable compared to 2018, at 13.4% of
total sales in 2019. The amount of expenses for services and
other goods corresponded to 28.3% of total sales in 2019
compared with 29.2% in 2018; this reflects cost control.
Staff expenses relative to total sales were up slightly in 2019
(51.9%) compared to 2018 (50.2%).
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Depreciation on tangible and intangible fixed assets increased
from €1,729,416 to €1,830,219, reflecting major development
work at Emakina.NL, Emakina.FR, Emakina.CH, The Reference
and Design is Dead in 2018 and 2019, as well as major
investments in ERP, notably in Vienna and on our new
global platform (Workfront/Navision Dynamics) but also in
the development of website and e-commerce services.
Operating income before depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) was €5,881,414 (or 6.1% of sales) compared
to €6,107,455 in 2018 (or 6.6% of sales): a decrease of
3.7% in absolute terms. At constant scope (i.e. excluding
Cloudworks), EBITDA for 2019 was 6.0% of sales.
The amount of amortisation on goodwill recorded in
financial expenses, in accordance with Belgian accounting
standards, changed from €2,553,237 in 2018 to €1,850,573
in 2019, mainly due to the change in the duration of goodwill
amortisation from 8 years to 10 years on 1 January 2019,
in this way, the original amount of goodwill recognised on
an acquisition does not change, only the amortisation period.
With this new approach, historical goodwill amortisations
have not been corrected, but the amortisation period for
the residual value of goodwill has been extended by 2 years.
The positive impact of this change in valuation rule on
net income represents K€896 in the 2019 financial year.
This element of Belgian accounting law weighed heavily on
the Group’s consolidated net income in 2019, as it does
every year. IFRS international accounting standards do not
require such systematic amortisation of goodwill.

Financial charges (excluding amortisation of goodwill)
decreased from €1,908,772 in 2018 to €1,415,777 in 2019 and
financial income decreased from €1,375,494 in 2018 to
€636,275 in 2019. Other financial income and charges include
the effect of exchange rate differences. In this way, the net
financial result (excluding amortisation of goodwill)
decreased by €246,224.

The net book value of tangible fixed assets rose by
€327,959 at the end of 2019 compared to the end of 2018.
This is mainly due to investments of K€1,101 offset
by depreciation of -K€773. Investments in tangible fixed
assets are mainly in the categories of furniture (K€519),
computer equipment (K€427) and renovations and
installations (K€155).

The difference (€1,020,792) between the recurring operating
profit of €3,886,145 and the operating profit of €2,865,353
consists of non-recurring charges of K€1,119 and exceptional
income of K€98, The non-recurring charges consist of
severance pay for eight executives in different group entities
as part of a management reorganisation.

Contracts in progress increased by K€1,303 between
the end of 2018 and the end of 2019. This increase should
be seen alongside the change in advances received
on orders (see below) which increased by K€2,454
between the end of 2018 and the end of 2019. In other
words, the consolidated net position on ongoing projects
decreased by K€1,151 between the end of 2018 and the
end of 2019 (more net pre-financing), which positively
influences the Group’s working capital needs.

Pre-tax profit fell between 2018 and 2019, from €1,093,232
to €235,278.
The amount of income tax fell from €1,037,475 in 2018
to €307,028 in 2019 as a result of a tax credit linked to
innovative activities.

Formation expenses – mainly past reorganisation costs –
decreased in 2019.
The net book value of intangible assets rose by €925,562 at
the end of 2019 compared to the end of 2018. This is due to
investments of K€1,795 offset by amortisation of K€869.
Investments consisted mainly of capitalised costs related to
the implementation of new integrated management platforms
and a new centralised ERP, plus website development costs
and e-commerce services.
The ‘consolidation differences’ item corresponds to the
goodwill, including related expenses, arising on the acquisition
of participating interests. It decreased from €15,088,160 at
the end of 2018 to €14,912,079 at the end of 2019 due to price
supplements (Emakina.CEE, Emakina DBG, WittyCommerce)
and new acquisitions (Cloudworks) offset by amortisation,
now, since 1 January 2019 charged over a 10-year rather than
an 8-year period.

The Company’s consolidated equity amounted to
€10,082,940 on 31 December 2019 compared to
€10,542,269 on 31 December 2018. This change was due
to a fall in reserves of €223,109 and the negative impact
of conversion differences amounting to €236,219.
As of 31 December 2019, the equity position was:

Capital:
Share premium:
Reserves:
Foreign currency
conversion differences:
Total :

€9,347,962
€3,436,644
-€2,393,811
-€307,855
€10,082,940

Financial Information

Consolidated balance sheet

The deferred charges and accrued income relate to
non-material amounts.
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The third party share of €152,933 in net income in 2019
represents the portion of the result of certain subsidiaries
attributed to minority shareholders in these subsidiaries,
recorded in this way in accordance with the principles
of the full consolidation method. The amount is reflects
primarily the strong performance of the Group’s Dutch and
Turkish operations.

The changes in cash in hand and in bank are explained in
the cash flow statement.
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The net result of the year decreased from €56,727 in 2018
to -€71,265 in 2019, breaking down into €152,933 for third
parties and -€224,198 for the Group’s share. Excluding
amortisation of goodwill, the Group’s 2019 consolidated net
result was €1,779,308 compared to €2,609,964 in 2018.

Amounts receivable within one year increased by 7.8% at
31 December 2019 (€20,875,917) compared to 31 December
2018 (€19,371.195). This reflects slower settlement by clients.

The amount of third-party interests, which
stood at €377,994, corresponds to the share of
minority shareholders in the profits of
individual subsidiaries, viz. Emakina.NL (10.1%),
Emakina.CH (10%), Emakina FZ-LLC (10%),
Emakina Influx (40%), Emakina.RS (30%),
Emakina Turkey and WittyCommerce
(i.e. Emakina.NL BV, which owns 10.1%),
Cloudworks (i.e. Emakina FZ-LLC which owns
10%) as well as Emakina.HR, Emakina Inbound
Marketing and Emakina.PL (subsidiaries of
Emakina.CEE, which hold 24.8%, 38% and 30%
of the shares respectively).
Provisions for liabilities and charges amounted
to €161,700 and concerned a legal provision
related to Austrian social law as well as a provision
linked to a unilateral breach of a commercial
contract by a client.
Deferred taxes correspond to ancillary costs
linked to acquisitions, capitalised in consolidation

through goodwill. Given that such costs have not
been capitalised for several years, this heading
no longer holds a significant balance.
CHAPTER 3
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Amounts payable after one year and those payable
after one year due within the year mainly
correspond to financing obtained over periods
ranging from three to six years for major
investments in furniture and IT or for new
acquisitions in line with Emakina Group’s
international development. These debts rose
by €747,056 over the period, in line with
the Company’s growth.
Financial debts consist of short-term straight
loans and other short-term financing to cover
temporary cash shortfalls (holiday payments,
year-end bonuses, etc.). These debts increased
by €1,453,621 over the period as a result of the
increase in working capital requirements.
Trade debts were up at the end of 2019
compared to the end of 2018. The amount of
supplier credit days increased from 46 days at
31 December 2018 to 54 days at 31 December 2019.
This ratio directly impacts the level of the working
capital requirements.

Advance payments on orders increased by K€2,454
between the end of 2018 and the end of 2019.
This increase should be seen alongside the changes
in contracts in progress (see above) which increased
by K€1,303 between the end of 2018 and the end
of 2019. In other words, the consolidated net
position on ongoing projects decreased by
K€1,151 between the end of 2018 and the end of
2019 (more net pre-financing) which positively
influences the Group’s working capital needs.
Debts relating to taxes, wages and social security
evolved in line with the Group’s activity.
The significant amount of other debts is mainly
due to pre-financing by factoring trade
receivables, as well as debts owed to former
shareholders of certain subsidiaries (earn-out
debts) and directors.
The deferred income and accrued charges relate
to non-material amounts.

Comments on
Emakina Group SA's
Statutory
Annual Accounts
The (Statutory) Annual Accounts reflect only the
financial position of the parent company after
appropriation of the 2019 income, and are prepared
in accordance with Belgian accounting standards.

Statutory income statement

Statutory balance sheet

Most of Emakina Group’s operating revenues in 2019
came from management fees, royalties and other
revenue streams totalling €6,410,893 as well as the
receipt of dividends from subsidiaries, which
amounted to €1,263,225. Income from current assets
came from the collection of interest on cash
investments amounting to €19,849 as well as €348 in
other financial income such as foreign exchange
profits and capital gains on share disposals. Finally,
revenues also included capitalised production
income of €197,738 (capitalised costs related to the
development of the planning tool and the ERP).

In terms of assets, the major changes at 31 December
2019 compared to 31 December 2018 related to:

•	changes in the amount of participating interests
(up €477,384) owing to changes in the consolidation
scope and price supplements and ancillary costs
relating to earn-outs.
The relatively high level of trade receivables,
which stood at €1,681,000 on 31 December 2019, is
due to amounts receivable from affiliated companies
or partners.
On 31 December 2019, the Company’s equity after
distribution amounted to €23,834,708, compared to
€23,076,556 at the end of 2018. The variation in
equity is due to the appropriation of the result of the
2019 financial year (see below).

Subscribed capital:
Reserves:
Share premium:
Retained earnings:
Total:

€9,347,962
€676,380
€3,436,644
€10,373,722
€23,834,708

Financial Information

The 2019 financial year closed with a net profit of
€758,151. This profit for the year will be carried over
in full (see the appropriation of income in 2019 proposed
at the General Assembly of shareholders below).

•	a decrease in tangible assets of €687,251, explained
mainly by the transfer from tangible assets (work
in progress) to intangible assets of €682,219 of
capitalised expenses for the implementation
of new integrated management platforms and the
deployment of a new centralised ERP;
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The depreciation amount of €493,960 corresponds
mainly to costs related to website development and
ERP, depreciated over a period of three years.

development of the website and ERP tool) offset by
depreciation and amortisation charges of €484,942;
CHAPTER 3

The operating costs ‘costs of sales and services’ of
€6,722,675 borne by Emakina Group SA in 2019
comprised executive management fees (including
non-executive directors), external fees related to legal
and contractual obligations (lawyers, commissioners,
notaries, and so forth) staff costs, various goods
and services, IT costs, purchases related to internal
projects, amortisation and impairment.

•	an increase in intangible assets of €1,453,671, due
to a transfer of €682,219 of work in progress and
investments of €1,256,394 (mainly related to

History of capital over the last eleven fiscal years:
Type

Form

Increase
(EUR)

Shares
created

Share
premium
(EUR)

Capital
(EUR)

Total
shares

1 July 2008

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

57,897.60

24,124

266,572.59

8,306,412.18

3,459,533

14 July 2009

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

89,257.96

37,175

245,317.04

8,395,670.14

3,496,708

1 July 2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

120,593.68

50,226

376,643.72

8,516,263.82

3,546,934

1 July 2010

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

600,099.20

249,935

1,874,257.30

9,116,363.02

3,796,869

15 July 2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

28,562.55

11,896

89,207.45

9,144,925.57

3,808,765

15 July 2011

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

59,963.10

24,974

172,044.90

9,204,888.67

3,833,739

15 July 2013

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

102,187.8

10,322

77,415.00

9,229,661.47

3,844,061

2 June 2015

Contribution
in kind

Authorised
Capital

118,300.8

49,292

335,185.60

9,347,962.27

3,893,353

Increase date

CHAPTER 3
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The sums of €3,344,441 in debts payable after one year
and €1,839,442 in debts payable after one year due within
the year relate to loans taken out to finance the acquisitions
of new subsidiaries under Emakina Group’s international
expansion policy.

The sum of €1,900,000 in financial debts relates to
a straight loan.

Financial Information

Finally, the sum recorded under other debts, standing at
€9,007,522 on 31 December 2019 concerns amounts payable
to former shareholders of certain subsidiaries (earn-out
debts) and directors.

Risk analysis
The main risk factors facing the Group are:

Operational risks
Client-related risks
The Group’s companies regularly work in complex and
innovative technological environments. As a result, clients
could take issue with whether or not their projects have been
properly implemented. In this context, the possibility that
an Emakina Group company might be sued and forced to
pay damages or to negotiate to resolve the dispute cannot be
ruled out.
Faced with these kinds of risks, at the end of 2013 Emakina
Group renegotiated a comprehensive professional civil
liability policy. This covers the risks related to project
implementation (delivery and warranty), plus indirect risks

(impact on image, for instance), for which all Group company
employees are liable (as well as their subcontractors, under
certain conditions).
In addition, it should be noted that Emakina Group has a
client portfolio of more than 300 accounts in Europe.
The Group’s three largest clients account for about 17%
of total consolidated revenues, which limits the systemic
impact of losing a major account.
Finally, Emakina Group works primarily with major national
or international accounts and public bodies, which limits
the risk of client insolvency.

Risks associated with sub-contractors

Technological risks

Group companies outsource work to third
parties if there are scheduling difficulties or a
lack of specific skills. These subcontractors are
subject to prior vetting by our experts and are
closely supervised.

Technological innovation has been the cornerstone
of the Group’s strategy since its inception. So
Emakina Group, an internet pioneer, continuously
monitors developments in technology in order to
maintain a competitive edge. One of the Group’s
main management concerns is to ensure ongoing
training for its staff in these innovations.

Our comprehensive professional civil liability
policy covers the liability of subcontractors under
certain conditions (such as their prior vetting by
our experts).

Risks related to profitability

Risks related to contracts

The capacity of management in the Company
and its subsidiaries to retain and motivate key
employees in each company is a major factor in
the Group’s performance and success. It is essential
to retain talent through relevant HR policies.

Risks related to the market and competition
For some years now, the digital agency market
has been highly concentrated: big businesses take
over the small ones, or the small ones disappear
naturally due to a lack of critical size. Since its IPO,
Emakina Group’s policy has been to continue to
grow organically, but also play an active role in
the process of concentrating the sector, in order
to offer a better service to its major accounts and
improve its geographic presence.

Financial Information

In addition, a significant portion of revenues are
generated through framework agreements with
public institutions or major private accounts.
These contracts stipulate that the relationship
is preferential or even exclusive, and lay out the
terms of service (such as rates, payment terms and
a billing plan). These contracts range from several
months to multiple years but do not commit
clients to a specific volume of work, which results
in risk around the unpredictability of revenue and
related margin.

Risks related to talent retention
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Most of the Group’s consolidated income is
generated by fixed-price contracts. Their
profitability depends on the ability of managers
to meet deadlines and control costs: cost overruns
directly impact the profitability of the project.
To reduce these risks, managers try to limit
penalties to the level of their insurance cover and
deliver work in a series of steps agreed with clients.

Emakina Group’s standard contract with clients
stipulates that intellectual property rights on
computer code remain the property of the Group
unless otherwise negotiated and stated. However,
subcontractors are required to transfer their
intellectual property rights to Emakina Group
where relevant.
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The profitability of the companies in the Group is
analysed on a monthly basis through performance
indicators, such as their use of operational
resources, the level of selling prices, staff costs,
subcontracting margins and any cost overruns on
fixed-price projects.

Intellectual property risks

Financial risks
Through its activities, the Emakina Group is exposed to
different kinds of financial risks. A table monitoring major
risks is regularly reviewed with the audit committee
in order to anticipate issues and minimise their impact
on Group performance.

Currency risk
About 20% of the turnover is generated in non-euro
currencies, the vast majority being the Swiss franc, Swedish
krona and Turkish lira. Much of this currency risk is
naturally offset by the corresponding production costs
structure, which is in the local currency. The Group’s
management keeps a close eye on currency fluctuations and
has dashboards to ensure adequate follow-up.
The Group’s international expansion will naturally increase
its exposure to this specific risk. Emakina Group’s
management does not rule out the possibility, in due course,
of hedging by means of forward exchange contracts or
currency swaps in the context of major contracts.

Interest rate risk

CHAPTER 3
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The interest rate risk is mainly related to the variable
EURIBOR rate, which is the reference for all our short-term
financing of up to 12 months. This means that the Group
is currently benefiting from low short-term interest
rates, while limiting the risk of long-term interest rate
rises through fixed rates for financing of over 12 months.
In actual fact, the probability of a sharp rise in very
short-term rates remains low.

Credit risk
Because of the diversity of the client portfolio, the Group
does not have a significant concentration of credit risk.
It has put in place policies such as validating new clients on
the basis of their historical credit risk (through subscription
to a credit rating database).

Liquidity and debt risk
The Group maintained its financial stability in 2019 thanks to
a net profit close to break-even, a level of financial
indebtedness in line with its internationalisation strategy,
well-controlled working capital requirements and adequate
credit lines available.
As of 31 December 2019, the Group fulfilled all its
banking covenants.

Outlook for 2020
Significant events after the balance sheet date and
other events likely to have a significant influence on
the activities and development of the business
The coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic and the impact of
the confinement measures will affect Emakina Group’s
economic performance from March 2020. However, it
is not possible at this moment to quantify the financial
impact. This will be the subject of a specific communication
at a later stage, as soon as it is possible to calculate it.
The management has already set in motion a raft of
precautionary measures needed to limit the impact of this
pandemic on the Group’s margins and cash position.

Conflicts of interest
between Directors and
the Company
The Emakina Group Board of Directors did not have to
make any decision requiring the application of Article 7:96
of the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations.

Legal information regarding the transposition
of the takeover directive
Capital structure:
As of 31 December 2019, Emakina Group SA’s capital consisted of 3,893,353 shares, broken down as follows:

Shareholder

%

1,004,591

25.803

Mr Pierre Gatz

765,780

19.669

Two4Two SA

629,326

16.164

Mr Brice Le Blévennec

557,307

14.314

Mr Denis Steisel

550,475

14.139

Tarraco Holding SARL

296,052

7.604

80,637

2.071

8,243

0.212

942

0.024

3,893,353

100

Others

Mr Frédéric Desonnay & Sofrin SPRL
Mediadreams SA
Emakina Group SA
Total
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Shares
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Shareholders’ agreement
As stated in our corporate governance charter, available on
the website www.emakina.group , the ‘original’ shareholders
of Emakina Group (Denis Steisel, Brice Le Blévennec,
Karim Chouikri and John Deprez) have signed a shareholders’
agreement, to which the Company is not a party. This has
been in place since the IPO in July 2006. Its provisions are:
•	shareholders commit to vote in favour of maintaining
and renewing the mandate of the directors appointed at the
Company’s extraordinary General Assembly on 17 March
2006, namely Mr Denis Steisel, Mr Brice Le Blévennec,
Mr Karim Chouikri and Mr John Deprez, unless there is
cause for dismissal based on gross misconduct in exercising
the mandate;
•	in addition, each shareholder holding at least 20% of the
voting rights of the Company will have the right to propose
a director for every 20% of the voting rights he or she holds;
•	each shareholder agrees to vote in favour of the director(s)
proposed by another shareholder provided that the latter
has the right to nominate this director or directors based on
the number of 20% blocks of voting rights in the Company
he or she owns;
CHAPTER 3

•	each share entitles the holder to one vote, so the major
shareholders do not have different voting rights.
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Increase in the authorised
capital (Art. 7:203 Belgian
Code on Companies and
Associations)

Financial Information

During the 2019 financial year, the Emakina Group Board of
Directors did not carry out a capital increase in the context of
the authorised capital in accordance with Article 17bis of
the Emakina Group articles of association.

Abolition of the
shareholders’ preferential
subscription rights upon
the issuing of warrants in
the Emakina Group SA
The Emakina Group SA Board of Directors did not issue any
warrants in 2019.

Research
and development
activities
As part of its business, Emakina Group continues
to carry out research into the development and
implementation of technological solutions,
particularly in engagement techniques related
to gamification.
At its December 2011 meeting, the Company’s
Board of Directors decided to authorise certain
research and development costs in specific cases:
•	solely for R&D projects representing an
investment of more than €50,000. In addition,
these projects must be backed up by subsidies
from a public body;
•	based on real costs (to the extent that these
do not exceed a cautious estimate of the
practical value of the fixed assets or their future
profitability for the Company) and amortised on
a straight-line basis over three years;

In 2019, no costs related to R&D were recorded.

The Company has no branches.

Proposed appropriation
of profits
We propose that the General Assembly should allocate the 2019
statutory profit (net and deferred) of €9,835,610 as follows:
• no appropriation to other reserves;
• €10,373,722 carried over.
The lack of dividend payments is justified by management’s
desire to strengthen equity and reinvest financial resources in
the Group’s expansion.

Discharge granted to
directors and to the auditor
It is proposed that discharge be granted to the directors and
the auditor.
The Board of Directors would like to thank the shareholders,
employees, clients and partners for their constant and constructive
support in developing Emakina Group’s business.
Brussels, 26 March 2020
On behalf of the Board of Directors
Mr Brice Le Blévennec
Managing Director
Mr Karim Chouikri
Managing Director
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• deduction from the reserves of €576,019;
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• appropriation to the legal reserve of €37,908;
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•	activated by ‘capitalising’ the item in the income
statement, in compliance with the provisions of
regulation CNC 2011/13 (4 May 2011).

Company branches

Consolidated
Accounts as at
31 December 2019
CHAPTER 3

Consolidation
method
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All the Emakina Group subsidiaries (see following
page) are consolidated according to the full
consolidation method, with the exception of the
participating interest in Robert & Marien which is
classed among ‘Other Investments’.
The full consolidation method is adopted when
a subsidiary is controlled by the parent company
to the extent that:
• either the parent company owns more than 50%
of the capital, either directly or indirectly;
• or the parent company has control over the
management bodies of the company concerned.
This method involves incorporating each element
of the assets and liabilities of the integrated
subsidiaries in the accounts of the parent company,
substituting the book value of these holdings.
It reveals goodwill and shows the share of
minority third parties. Similarly, the charges
and income of these subsidiaries are cumulated
with those of the parent company and their results
for the financial year are divided into the share
of the Group and the share of third parties.
The internal transactions affecting the assets and
liabilities, such as holdings, amounts payable and
amounts receivable, as well as income and expense
items are cancelled in the overall consolidation.

Scope of consolidation
The following companies were included in the scope
of consolidation as at 31 December 2019:
•	Emakina Group SA, parent company;
• Emakina.BE SA, wholly owned;
• Emakina.CH SA, 90% held;
• Emakina.FR SA, wholly owned:

• Emakina.NL BV, 89.9% held:

• Emakina / Insights SPRL, wholly owned;
• Emakina.RS d.o.o. Novi Sad, 70% held;
• The Reference NV, wholly owned;

- E
 makina FZ-LLC 90% held
by Emakina Asia PTE LTD;

- C
 loudworks Consulting DMCC
wholly owned by Emakina FZ-LLC;

- E
 makina.SG PTE LTD, wholly owned
by Emakina Asia PTE LTD;

•	Robert & Marien SPRL, 25% held.

- E
 makina.US INC, wholly owned
by The Reference NV;

Individual information on each subsidiary can
be found on page 220 (Appendix 1) of this section
of the report.

• Design is Dead BVBA, wholly owned;

As previously mentioned, during the 2019 financial
year, the consolidation scope of Emakina Group
evolved as follows further to the investments made
by the Company:

- T
 he Reference.US INC, wholly owned
by Emakina.US INC;
• Your Agency SA, wholly owned;
• Emakina DBG AB, wholly owned;
•	Emakina Central & Eastern Europe GmbH
(Emakina.CEE) wholly owned:

- N
 etLounge Internet Media Services GmbH,
wholly owned by Emakina.CEE;
- d
 iamond:dogs Switzerland GmbH,
wholly owned by Emakina.CEE;
- E
 makina.HR d.o.o.,
75.2% held by Emakina.CEE;

- E
 makina Inbound Marketing GmbH,
62% held by Emakina.CEE;
- E
 makina.PL Sp. z.o.o.,
70% held by Emakina.CEE;

•	the capital of the company Cloudworks, with its
registered office in Dubai, was wholly acquired
by Emakina FZ-LLC in October 2019;
•	At the end of 2019, k.section business solutions
merged with Emakina Central & Eastern
Europe GmbH as part of the rationalisation and
merger of both entities’ teams.
These Consolidated Accounts are prepared in
accordance with Belgian accounting standards.

Financial Information

- Mye

Bilgisayar Yazilim Ticaret AŞ
(WittyCommerce), wholly owned
by Emakina Turkey LTD;

• Emakina Asia PTE LTD, wholly owned:
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- E
 makina Bilgisayar Yazılım Ltd. Şti. (Emakina
Turkey LTD), wholly owned by Emakina.NL ;
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- E
 makina / Influx SAS, 60% held
by Emakina.FR;

Consolidated balance sheet established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
Assets (EUR)

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Fixed assets

20 /28

21,721,511

20,593,604

I

Formation expenses (appx. VII)

20

137,936

152,331

II

Intangible assets (appx. VIII)

21

3,532,425

2,606,863

III

Consolidation differences (appx. XII)

9920

14,912,079

15,088,160

IV

Tangible assets (appx. IX)

22 /27

2,562,912

2,234,953

A . Land and buildings

22

0

0

B . Plants, machinery and equipment

23

839,019

715,217

C . Furniture and vehicles

24

941,945

713,185

D . Leasing and other similar rights

25

0

0

E . Other tangible assets

26

781,948

806,551

F . Fixed assets in progress

27

0

0

28

576,158

511,297

9921

0

0

99211

0

0

284 /8

576,158

511,297

284

70,300

70,300

285/8

505,858

440,997

29/58

31,407,847

28,970,708

3

4,682,577

3,379,452

37

4,682,577

3,379,452

40/41

20,875,917

19,371,195

A . Trade debtors

40

19,365,699

17,587,269

B . Other amounts receivable

41

1,510,218

1,783,926

1. Deferred taxes

412

0

0

2. Others

416

1,510,218

1,783,926

50 /53

8,761

584,780

50

8,761

584,780

51/53

0

0

V

Financial fixed assets (appx. I to IV and X)
A. Equity-consolidated companies
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1. Participating interests
B . Other companies
1. Participating interests and shares
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2. Amounts receivable
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Current assets
VII

Stocks and contracts in progress
B. Contracts in progress

VIII

IX

Amounts receivable within one year

Current investments
A . Own shares
B . Other investments

X

Cash at bank and in hand

54 /58

3,824,864

3,846,013

XI

Deferred charges and accrued income

490 /1

2,015,728

1,789,268

Total assets

20 /58

53,129,358

49,564,312

Consolidated balance sheet established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
(continued)
Liabilities (EUR)

I

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Equity

10 /15

10,082,940

10,542,268

Capital

10

9,347,962

9,347,962

100

9,347,962

9,347,962

11

3,436,644

3,436,644

A . Issued capital

Consolidated reserves (appx. XI)

9910

-2,393,811

-2,170,702

V

Exchange rate variation

9912

-307,855

-71,636

377,994

343,303

9913

377,994

343,303

16

161,700

230,590

160 /5

161,700

230,105

160

127,925

118,330

163 /5

33,775

111,775

168

0

485

17/49

42,506,724

38,448,151

17

4,257,722

3,677,227

170 /4

4,257,722

3,677,227

173

4,257,722

3,677,227

42 /48

37,958,604

34,388,316

A . Amounts payable after one year due within the year

42

2,340,100

2,173,540

B . Financial debts

43

10,363,625

8,910,004

430 /8

10,363,631

8,910,004

2. Other loans

439

-6

0

C . Trade debts

44

7,375,842

6,144,366

440 /4

7,375,842

6,144,366

D . Advances received

46

6,762,504

4,308,187

E . Taxes, wages and social security

45

7,230,003

7,645,266

1. Taxes

450 /3

1,641,321

1,831,461

2. Wages and social security

454 /9

5,588,682

5,813,805

47/48

3,886,529

5,206,953

Deferred income and accrued charges

492 /3

290,398

382,608

Total liabilities

10 /49

53,129,358

49,564,312

Third party interests
VIII

Minority interests
Provisions, deferred taxes and tax liabilities

IX

A . Provisions for liabilities and charges
1. Pensions and other obligations
4. Other liabilities and charges

IX

B . Deferred taxes and deferred tax liabilities (appx. VI, B)
Debts

X

Amounts payable after one year (appx. XIII)
A . Financial debts
4. Credit institutions

XI

Amounts payable within one year (appx. XIII)

1. Credit institutions

1. Suppliers

F . Other debts
XII

Financial Information

IV
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Share premium account

CHAPTER 3

II

Consolidated income statement established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
after distribution*
Income statement (EUR)

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

70 /76A

96,716,390

92,461,452

A. Turnover (Appx. XIV, A)

70

92,485,616

91,972,627

B. Variations in contracts in progress

71

1,317,713

-1,451,203

C. Capitalised production

72

1,228,745

439,660

D. Other operating income

74

1,586,074

1,428,517

76A

98,242

71,851

60 /66A

93,851,037

88,281,704

60

12,979,095

12,642,696

600 /8

12,945,069

12,642,696

609

34,026

0

B. Services and other goods

61

27,332,154

26,969,502

C. Remuneration, social security charges

62

50,118,578

46,357,109

630

1,830,219

1,729,416

E. Amounts written off on stocks, work in progress
and trade debts (appropriations +; reversals -)

631/4

155,455

-12,948

F. Provisions for liabilities and charges
(appropriations +; utilisation; reversals -)

635 /7

9,595

-78,576

G. Other operating expenses

640 /8

306,907

312,839

66A

1,119,034

361,666

9901

3,886,145

4,469,563

Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation = EBITDA

5,881,414

6,107,455

Operating profit

2,865,353

4,179,748

75

636,275

1,375,494

A. Income from financial fixed assets

750

14,524

-43,295

B. Income from current assets

751

41,388

76,505

752 /9

580,363

1,342,284

65

3,266,350

-4,462,009

650

405,237

409,827

B. Amortisation of goodwill

9961

1,850,573

2,553,237

D. Other financial charges

652 /9

1,010,540

1,498,945

9902

1,256,070

1,383,048

I

Operating income

1.

Sales and services

E. Non-recurring operating income
2.

Cost of sales and services
A. Raw materials and consumables
1. Purchases
2. Inventory change

CHAPTER 3

D. D
 epreciation and amounts written off on
formation expenses, intangible and tangible
fixed assets
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I. Non-recurring operating expenses
3.

Recurring operating profits

II

Financial results

1.

Financial income

C. Other financial income
2.

Financial charges
A. Interest and debt charges

III

*

Profit on ordinary activities before taxes

Article 124 of the Royal Decree of 30 January 2001 implementing the Belgian Code on Companies and Associations.

Consolidated income statement established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
after distribution*(continued)
Income statement (EUR)

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

9903

235,278

1,093,232

68

485

970

780

485

970

67/77

307,028

-1,037,475

A. Taxes

67

634,004

-1,103,721

B. Adjustment of income taxes and write-back
of tax provisions

77

326,976

66,246

V

Profit before taxes

VI

Deferred taxes
A. Levies

VII

Income tax

XII .

Result for the financial year

9904

-71,265

56,727

XIII .

Share in the results of the companies

9975

0

0

XIV .

Consolidated result

9976

-71,265

56,727

A. Share of minority interests

99761

152,933

137,169

D. Group share

99762

-224,198

-80,442
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Cash flow statement (EUR)
Operating cash flow

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Group result

-224,198

-80,442

Result of minority interests

152,933

137,169

3,680,792

4,282,654

Amortisation of goodwill

1,850,573

2,553,237

Other items

1,830,219

1,729,416

Write-backs

0

0

Write-downs

155,455

-12,948

155,455

0

-68,405

32,229

9,595

0

-78,000

0

Transfers from deferred taxes

-485

-970

Net results on the disposal of assets

489

-41,913

-201,528

-3,971

Operating cash flow

3,495,053

4,311,808

Variations in current assets

-2,613,743

2,412,658

Stocks

-1,303,125

1,455,699

Amounts receivable < 1 year

-1,660,177

1,760,317

Accrued income and deferred charges

-226,460

-457,557

Investments

576,019

-345,800

1,857,897

-165,498

1,231,476

-1,554,016

-415,263

807,944

Work in progress

2,454,318

-827,315

Other debts

-1,320,424

1,547,032

-92,210

-139,143

-755,846

2,247,160

2,739,207

6,558,969

Depreciation and amortisation

Endowments
Provisions
Endowments
Write-backs

Other movements (standard conversion, subsidies, etc.)
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Variations in liabilities (short-term)
Trade debts
Taxes and social security

Accrued charges and deferred income
Variation in working capital
Net cash flow from operating activities (A)

Cash flow statement (EUR) (suite)
Investing cash flow

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Intangible and tangible assets

-3,181,196

-2,374,409

Financial assets

-1,674,493

-5,262,344

-4,855,689

-7,636,753

47,041

0

0

230,790

47,041

230,790

Net cash flow from investment activities (B)

-4,808,648

-7,405,963

Financing cash flow

31 /12 / 19

31 /12 /18

-152,385

-127,484

2,200,677

1,816,509

Change in long–term loans

580,496

0

Debts > 1 year falling due within the year

166,560

0

1,453,621

0

2,048,292

1,689,026

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

-21,149

842,031

Cash at start of period

3,846,013

3,003,982

Cash at end of period

3,824,864

3,846,013

Balance sheet indicators

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Net working capital (equity + third-party interests + provisions
+ long–term debts - fixed assets)

-6,841,155

-5,800,216

-13%

-12%

2,193,160

1,437,314

4%

3%

9,909,929

10,514,167

19%

21%

-2,079,927

-928,735

-4%

-2%

Cash

3,824,864

3,846,013

Cash net of financial debts

-6,538,761

-5,063,991

Acquisition of fixed assets

Total investments
Disposal of fixed assets
Intangible and tangible assets
Financial assets
Total disposals

Dividends paid to minority interests
Variation of financial debts

Net cash flow from financial activities (C)

% Total balance sheet
WCR* broad definition: (current assets - current liabilities)
% Total balance sheet
WCR* strict definition: (contracts in progress + accounts receivable
- accounts payable - advances received)
% Total balance sheet
Contracts in progress - advances received on projects
% Total balance sheet

*

Working capital requirements

Financial Information

Balance sheet indicators (EUR)
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Variation in net cash flow over the period (A+B+C)
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Appendices to the Consolidated Accounts
Appendix I. List of consolidated subsidiaries
On 31 December 2019* (EUR)
Consolidation
method

Portion of
the capital
held (%)

Variation of the capital
compared with the
previous financial year (%)

Equity

EBITDA

Net result

Emakina.BE SA
Rue Middelbourg 64 A
1170 Brussels – Belgium

Full

100

0

3,094,533

826,561

309,075

Emakina.CH SA
Rue Le-Royer 13
CH – 1227 Les Acacias –Switzerland

Full

90

0

863,322

219,716

5,012

Emakina.FR SA
Rue Atlantis 4
Parc d’Ester BP 26840
87068 Limoges – France

Full

100

0

592,292

-46,523

-97,255

Full

60 (1)

0

52,962

68,306

55,416

Emakina.NL BV
Danzigerkade 4
1013 AP Amsterdam - The Netherlands

Full

89.9

0

5,138,388

755,345

255,255

Emakina Turkey LTD
Emakina Bilgisayar
Yazilim LTD. Şti.
Zafer Serbest Bölge Mah. Nilüfer
Sokak
No: 31/14-15 Gaziemir
İzmir – Turkey

Full

89.9 (2)

0

1,207,621

765,147

513,819

WittyCommerce
MYE Bilgisayar Yazılım Ticaret AŞ
Şehit Fethi Sekin Cad.
No:4 Novus Plaza Kat:16
Bayraklı – İzmir – Turkey

Full

89.9 (3)

0

550,227

489,144

136,784

Emakina Insights SPRL
Rue Middelbourg 64 A
1170 Brussels – Belgium

Full

100

0

19,709

6,975

-1,327

The Reference NV
Stapelplein 70
9000 Ghent – Belgium

Full

100

0

398,616

402,044

-263,904

Emakina.US INC
Madison Avenue 79
10016 New York – USA

Full

100 (4)

0

-58,411

-10,154

-26,781

The Reference.US INC
Madison Avenue 79
10016 New York – USA

Full

100 (5)

0

-133,125

-309,194

-322,249

Design is Dead BVBA
Rue Middelbourg 64 B
1170 Brussels – Belgium

Full

100

0

749,211

309,305

166,592

Your Agency SA
Rue de Bois-Seigneur-Isaac 40/5
1421 Ophain – Belgium

Full

100

0

244,779

265,388

135,449

Name and address

Emakina /Influx SAS
Rue Atlantis 4
Parc d’Ester BP 26840
87068 Limoges – France
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218,621

-140,461

0

6,555

30,846

10,811

100

0

13,462

-33,031

-33,632

Financial Information

Full

100

0

NetLounge Internet Media
Services GmbH
Weyringergasse 30
A-1040 Vienna – Austria

Full

100 (6)

0

Diamond Dogs
Switzerland GmbH
Bahnhofstrasse 2
CH-9100 Herisau – Switzerland

Full

100 (6)

0

Emakina.HR d.o.o.
Damira Tomljanovića
Gavrana 11
HR-10000 Zagreb – Croatia

Full

75.2 (6)

0

Emakina Inbound
Marketing GmbH
Weyringergasse 30
A-1040 Vienna – Austria

Full

62 (6)

0

Emakina.PL Sp. z.o.o.
ul. Metalow 3
610 -118 Poznań – Poland

Full

70 (6)

0

Emakina.RS d.o.o. Novi Sad
Novosadskog sajma 2
21000 Novi Sad – Serbia

Full

70

Emakina Asia PTE LTD
Shenton Way 6
#38-01 OUE Downtown
068809 Singapore – Singapore

Full

Emakina.SG PTE LTD
Shenton Way 6
#38–01 OUE Downtown
068809 Singapore - Singapore

Full

100 (7)

0

110,412

3,855

1,432

Emakina FZ-LLC
No. 909, Floor 9, Building: DSC
Tower – Dubai Studio City,
P.O Box No.478891
Dubai – United Arab Emirates

Full

90 (7)

0

42,737

65,762

29,355

Cloudworks
Tiffany Tower
Cluster W, 3302
Dubai – United Arab Emirates

Full

90 (8)

90

349,947

60,505

56,188

Full

100

0

298,595

-1,296

-19,372

Emakina DBG AB
Fiskargatan 8
116 20 Stockholm – Sweden
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Emakina Central &
Eastern Europe GmbH
(Emakina.CEE)
Weyringergasse 30
A–1040 Vienna – Austria

‘Statutory’ or ‘consolidated’ data as of 31 December 2019. These statutory results do not take into account the restatements or the consolidation method, but they
do provide a view of these subsidiaries’ respective profitability for the year 2019. Statutory figures are subject to approval of the accounts by the Boards of Directors/
Management Boards and the respective General Assemblies of the various subsidiaries.

*

(1) Company held by Emakina.FR
(2) Company held by Emakina.NL BV
(3) Company held by Emakina.TR
(4) Company held by The Reference NV

(5) Company held by Emakina.US INC
(6) Company held by Emakina Central & Eastern Europe Gmbh
(7) Company held by Emakina Asia
(8) Company held by Emakina FZ-LLC

Performance indicators for each subsidiary
are included in the table below, for companies
employing more than five workers as of
31 December 2019:

Emakina.BE (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

Emakina Turkey (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

Income

24.217

Income

5.452

Purchases

-5.301

Purchases

-1.326

Gross profit

4.126

Staff costs

-2.781

Gross profit
Staff costs
Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)
EBITDA
Emakina.CH (KEUR)(1)

18.916
-7.989
-10.101
827
31 /12 /19

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-579

EBITDA

765

WittyCommerce (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

CHAPTER 3

222
Financial Information

Income

8.418

Income

Purchases

-2.021

Purchases

Gross profit

6.199

Gross profit

1.921

Staff costs

-4.089

Staff costs

-1.125

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-1.890

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-307

EBITDA

489

EBITDA
Emakina.FR (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

220
31 /12 /19
7.495
-581

The Reference (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

2.163
-242

31 /12 /19
16.930
-1.780

Gross profit

6.914

Gross profit

Staff costs

-4.898

Staff costs

-8.014

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-2.063

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-6.735

EBITDA
Emakina.NL (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases
Gross profit

-47
31 /12 /19
15.286
-767
14.519

EBITDA
The Reference.US (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

15.151

402
31 /12 /19
1.124
-41

Gross profit

1.083
-1.173

Staff costs

-7.393

Staff costs

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-6.371

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-219

EBITDA

-309

EBITDA

755

Design is Dead (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

31 /12 /19
5.294
-92

Emakina FZ-LLC (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

Income

1.631

Purchases

-1.159

Gross profit

5.203

Gross profit

472

Staff costs

-1.565

Staff costs

-257

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-3.329

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

--150

EBITDA
Your Agency (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

Staff costs

Emakina.CEE (KEUR)(2)
Income

-923
2.241
-943
-1.033
265
31 /12 /19
10.429

Cloudworks (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

Income

363

Purchases

0

Gross profit

363

Staff costs

-221

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-82

EBITDA

61

Emakina DBG (KEUR)(1)

31 /12 /19

Income

3.624

Purchases

-1.660

Purchases

-1.232

Gross profit

8.769

Gross profit

2.391

Staff costs

-5.817

Staff costs

-1.626

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-2.733

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

EBITDA
Emakina.RS (KEUR)(1)
Income
Purchases

219

887
0
887

Staff costs

-576

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

-280

(1)

(2)

-1

31 /12 /19

Gross profit

EBITDA

EBITDA

-767

31

Your Agency,
Ophain-Bois-Seigneur-Isaac

 tatutory figures subject to the approval of the accounts by the Board/management and the General Assembly respectively
S
of the different subsidiaries.
Consolidated figures 2019, 12 months, of all companies held by Emakina.CEE.
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EBITDA

3.163

66

223

Operating expenses (consultancy,
fees, general expenses, group, etc.)

31 /12 /19

EBITDA

CHAPTER 3

Gross profit

309

Appendix VI B . Deferred tax liabilities (EUR)
31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

At the end of the previous financial year

485

1,455

Adjustment of deferred tax liabilities

-485

-970

0

485

Breakdown of liabilities, item 168 - deferred taxes
(under section 129 of the Royal Decree of 30 January 2001

At the end of the financial year

Deferred tax liabilities recognised at Emakina Group relating to the capitalisation in the Consolidated Accounts (only)
of costs related to acquisitions.

Appendix VII. Statement of formation expenses (EUR)
31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

152,331

175,937

New expenses incurred

24,505

42,462

Amortisation (-)

-38,900

-66,068

0

0

137,936

152,331

Of which formation expenses and capital increase costs

69,748

53,028

Of which restructuring costs

68,188

99,303

Net book value at the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year

Change in the scope of consolidation (+)
Net book value at the end of the financial year
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Appendix VIII. Statement of intangible fixed assets (EUR)

Financial Information

Research and
Development

Concessions,
patents, licences

Goodwill

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

4,301,166

2,517,494

2,597,923

4,029,517

1,040,932

1,052,196

0

0

0

0

0

0

1,664,242

1,117,519

76,310

34,985

0

10,278

Disposals and withdrawals (-)

0

0

0

-783,068

0

-21,542

Transfers

0

666,152

2,082

-666,152

0

0

Others

0

0

0

-17,359

52,548

0

5,965,407

4,301,166

2,676,316

2,597,923

1,093,480

1,040.932

2,459,260

2,061,207

1,886,952

2,415,982

986,945

777,417

0

0

0

0

0

0

559,477

346,525

259,289

321,173

50,854

209,372

Cancelled further to disposals and withdrawals (-)

0

0

0

-781,161

0

0

Transfers

0

51,528

0

-51,528

0

0

Others

0

0

0

-17,515

0

156

At the end of the financial year

3,018,737

2,459,260

2,146,241

1,886,952

1,037,800

986,945

D . Net book value at the end of the financial year: A-C

2,946,670

1,841,906

530,075

710,971

55,680

53,986

A . Acquisition value
At the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year
Entries into the consolidation scope
Acquisitions

At the end of the financial year
C . Amortisation and write-downs
At the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year
Entries into the consolidation scope
Recorded

Appendix IX. Statement of tangible fixed assets (EUR)
Plant, machines,
equipment

Furniture
and vehicles

Other fixed assets

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

3,021,045

3,220,846

2,135,898

2,409,228

1,852,414

1,407,393

0

0

31,128

0

0

0

Acquisitions

481,960

274,970

534,680

428,181

261,354

445,021

Disposals and withdrawals (-)

-54,899

-474,770

-88,474

-701,511

-79,549

0

0

0

41,711

0

-27,181

0

3,448,107

3,021,045

2,654,943

2,135,898

2,007,037

1,852,414

2,305,828

2,516,332

1,422,712

1,836,108

1,045,863

856,409

0

0

12,197

0

0

0

Recorded

353,887

244,794

321,007

312,122

230,062

189,453

Cancelled further to disposals and withdrawals (-)

-50,628

-455,298

-79,957

-725,518

-44,807

0

Transfers

0

0

0

0

0

0

Others

0

0

37,038

0

-6,028

0

2,609,087

2,305,828

1,712,998

1,422,712

1,225,089

1,045,863

839,019

715,217

941,945

713,185

781,948

806,551

A . Acquisition cost
At the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year
Entries into the consolidation scope

Others
At the end of the financial year
C . Depreciation and write-downs
At the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year
Entries into the consolidation scope

D . Net book value at the end of the financial year : A-C
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Appendix X. Statement of financial assets (EUR)
31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

70,300

170,300

0

-100,000

70,300

70,300

440,997

372,985

Additions

76,761

97,320

Reimbursements

-11,900

-29,308

505,858

440,997

B . Other companies
1 . Participating interests
Net book value at the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year
Others
Net book value at the end of the financial year
2 . Amounts receivable
Net book value at the end of the previous financial year
Movements during the financial year

Net book value at the end of the financial year

Appendix XI. Statement of consolidated reserves (EUR)

Consolidated reserves at the end of the previous financial year

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

-2,170,702

-2,077,421

-224,197

-80,442

1,089

-12,839

-2,393,811

-2,170,702

Movements during the financial year
Group’s share in the consolidated result
Other variations
Net book value at the end of the financial year

Appendix XII. Statement of consolidation differences (EUR)
Net book value at
the end of the previous
financial year

Variations due to a
change in the % held or
price supplements

Amortisation

Net book value
at the end of the
financial year
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Emakina.EU

238,121

0

41,216

196,905

Emakina.FR

527,403

0

88,553

438,850

Emakina Media

165,850

0

24,311

141,539

Your Agency

35,935

0

14,647

21,288

Emakina.CH

1,474,937

0

193,927

1,281,010

Emakina.NL

3,948,060

0

586,623

3,361,437

Emakina.CEE

3,961,219

948,363

526,307

4,383,274

Emakina DGB

3,580,715

3,000

240,806

3,342,908

WittyCommerce

670,104

76,374

81,661

664,817

Emakina.US

485,816

0

52,521

433,296

Cloudworks

0

646,755

0

646,755

15,088,159

1,674,493

1,850,573

14,912,079

Total

The amount of the differences is explained by new acquisitions, price supplements and ancillary costs related
to previous acquisitions.

Appendix XIII. Statement of amounts originally payable after one year (EUR)
Maturing in the year

> 1 year and < 5 years

> 5 years

Heading 42

Heading 17

Heading 17

Total

31 /12/19

31 /12/18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

31/ 12 /19

31/ 12 /18

Credit institutions

2,340,100

2,173,540

4,257,722

3,677,227

0

0

6,597,822

5,850,767

Total

2,340,100

2,173,540

4,257,722

3,677,227

0

0

6,597,822

5,850,767

Appendix XIV. Results (EUR)
Results

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

A.

Group turnover in Belgium (heading 70/4)

47,015,969

45,496,279

B11 .

Average number of people employed

934

857

1,016

916

50,118,578

46,357,109

354

362

1,115,927

347,801

1,043,000

0

72,927

347,801

Total staff (end of period)
B12 .

Personnel costs (heading 62)

B13 .

Average number of people in Belgium employed by the companies concerned

C2 .

Other extraordinary expenses (heading 664/8)
Restructuring costs
Others

Appendix XV. Off-balance sheet rights and commitments
A.

RIGHTS RESULTING FROM RELATED OPERATIONS
to interest rates: €2,342,191
COMMITMENTS RESULTING FROM RELATED OPERATIONS
to interest rates: €2,342,191

C.

OTHER MAJOR COMMITMENTS

Major commitments in respect of participating interests
Surety of Emakina Group to subsidiaries/affiliates: €3,170,000
Commitment to minority shareholders in Emakina.NL for the purchase of the remaining shares in varying amounts depending
on profitability
Commitment to minority shareholders in Emakina DBG and Emakina.CEE, The Reference.US, WittyCommerce et Cloudworks
concerning price supplements in varying amounts depending on profitability

Appendix XVI. Transactions with related parties effected under conditions
other than market conditions
No transactions were carried out under conditions other than those of the market. We would point out, however, that related
parties do not include companies (almost) entirely owned by the Group.

Financial Information

Rental guarantees of €292,056
Bank guarantees of €111,124
Credit lines of €11,993,249
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Miscellaneous commitments
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Appendix XVII. Financial relations with (EUR)
31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

1,104,668

1,103,370

1. Fees for auditor(s) for audit duties at group level. The company publishing
this information is head of the Group

85,472

84,660

2. Fees for persons linked to the auditor(s) for auditory duties at group level. The company
publishing this information is head of the Group

21,300

0

3. F ees for extraordinary or special services carried out for the Group and its subsidiaries
by persons linked to the auditor(s)

0

0

0

0

A. DIRECTORS AND MANAGERS OF THE CONSOLIDATING COMPANY
1. Total amount of remuneration granted on account of their responsibilities in the
consolidating company, its subsidiaries and affiliated companies, including the amounts
of retirement pensions granted in the same capacity to former directors or managers
B. THE AUDITOR OR AUDITORS AND PERSONS WITH WHOM THEY ARE RELATED

A. Other certification services
C. Other services apart from the audit assignment
Mentions in accordance with Article 3:62, paragraph 6 of the Code on Companies and Associations
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Stockholm

Summary of consolidated
valuation rules
I . Consolidation scope and method
See pages 212-213.

II . Valuation rules
Tangible assets
1. Valuation of assets
Formation expenses
Formation expenses are recorded at their acquisition value.
Restructuring costs and research and development costs,
other than those acquired from third parties, are capitalised
at cost.
Formation costs and capital increase costs are amortised
pro rata temporis over a period of five years.
Costs relating to the IPO are amortised prorata temporis
on a straight-line basis over a period of eight years. Other
costs (SOP, etc.) are amortised pro rata temporis using the
straight-line method over a period of five years.

Consolidation differences
CHAPTER 3

Goodwill/badwill comprises differences between the share
of equity of the consolidated entities and the book value
of the investment in these entities which is not allocated
to assets and liabilities.
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Positive consolidation differences (goodwill) are included in
the balance sheet under item III, ‘consolidation differences’
and negative consolidation differences (badwill) are booked
under the liabilities, item V, ‘consolidation differences’.
The valuation rules applied to the Consolidated Accounts
for the year ending December 31, 2019 have been modified
compared to the rules applied for the year ending
December 31, 2018.
The amortisation period for goodwill has been increased
from 8 years to 10 years as of 1 January 2019, to reflect
a period more commonly observed in the sector. This
change had a positive impact on the net result for the year
of K€896.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are capitalised at their acquisition,
production or contribution cost.
The following amortisation rates are applied:
•	research and development costs prorata temporis
using the straight-line method: 25%;
•	patents, concessions and licences pro rata temporis
using the straight-line method:20% to 33%;
•	software programs pro rata temporis using the
straight-line method: 20% to 33%;
•	goodwills pro rata temporis using the straight-line
method: 12.5%.

Tangible assets are capitalised at their acquisition,
production or contribution cost. Ancillary costs are booked
during the financial year.
All tangible assets are depreciated pro rata temporis using
the straight-line method. The following depreciation is
applied per category of tangible assets:
• installations, facilities and fixtures between 5 and 20%;
• machinery and equipment between 20 and 33%;
• furniture between 20 and 33%;
• office equipment between 20 and 33%;
• IT equipment between 20 and 33%;
• vehicles between 20 and 25%.
Non-deductible VAT on vehicles is capitalised.
Second-hand tangible assets are depreciated on a
straightline basis at a rate between 20 and 50%.

Financial assets
Shares and receivables are carried at their acquisition value,
excluding ancillary costs.
Receivables on subsidiaries and affiliated companies are
listed under financial assets if the Group intends to support
the creditor on an ongoing basis. These receivables are
carried in the balance sheet at their nominal value.
Holdings and shares under this heading are written down
in the event of capital loss or lasting depreciation justified
by the situation, the profitability or the prospects of the
company in which the stakes or the shares are held.

Receivables due at more than one year
or within one year
Receivables due at more than or within one year are carried at
their nominal value and written down if their reimbursement
at due date is wholly or partially uncertain or at risk.
Emakina Group uses the factoring mechanism to allow certain
operating subsidiaries to assign it their debts. This mechanism
implies that it will finance the debts it has taken over and
assumes the risk of insolvency (‘non-recourse factoring’).
Since 1 January 2018, Emakina Group has factored the
receivables of certain of its operating subsidiaries with outside
factors on a non-recourse basis. The receivables shown on the
balance sheet are therefore net of these factored receivables.

Cash investments and equivalents
Deposits with credit institutions are carried at their nominal
value. Foreign currency assets are converted at the exchange
rate in force on the last day of the financial year. Latent
gains and losses on foreign currencies are recorded in the
income statement.

2. Valuation of liabilities
Provision for liabilities and charges
Each year, the Board of Directors evaluates the necessary
provisions prudently, honestly and in good faith. These
provisions are based on the individual nature of the risks and
charges that they are intended to cover. The provisions are
reversed insofar as they exceed the year-end assessment of
the liabilities and charges that they were intended to cover.

Amounts payable after one year and within one year
Debts are carried at nominal value. The obligations arising
from rights of use on tangible assets granted to the Company
further to leasing or similar contracts are valued annually in
line with the portion of the scheduled payments laid down
in the contract, representing the reconstitution as capital of
the value of the item that is the subject of the contract.

If one or more of the accounting rules mentioned here is no
longer valid, changes will be made and the reasons for these
changes and their impact on the financial statement will be
included in the appendices to the Annual Accounts.

6. Deferred taxes
Deferred tax liabilities
When necessary, provisions for deferred tax liabilities are
booked in the balance sheet and calculated at the tax rate
expected to apply when the temporary differences no longer
exist and to the extent that tax will actually be payable.

Deferred tax assets

7. Research and development

Receivables and payables in foreign currencies are carried
at the exchange rate in force on the transaction dates.
They are converted at the end of the financial period at the
closing rate unless they are specifically hedged. Exchange
rate losses arising from this conversion are included in the
income statement and exchange rate gains are included in
the balance sheet as deferred income.

As part of its activities, Emakina Group carries out
research into the development and implementation of
technological solutions.

When a group entity takes on a project for which the client
required a fixed-price contract, the project managers
estimate the workload in order to calculate the project
budget. An invoicing schedule is established in the contract
and corresponds to deadlines for deliverables to the client.
Generally, the pattern is as follows: (I) advance billing,
(II) prototype version, (III) production startup, (IV) end of
warranty period.
Contracts in progress are valued according to the stage of
completion of the project: deduction from income (including
margin) as the work progresses. As a result, based on
the accounting principles used by the group, contracts in
progress are recorded under assets under construction when
the percentage of completion is higher than the invoicing
schedule and under advances received (liabilities) when the
invoicing schedule is ahead of the percentage of completion.

At its meeting of December 2011, the Company’s Board
of Directors decided to authorise certain research and
development costs in specific cases:
•	solely for R&D projects representing an investment of more
than €50.000. In addition, these projects must be backed
up by a subsidy from a public body;
•	based on real costs (to the extent that these do not exceed
a cautious estimate of the practical value of the fixed
assets or their future profitability for the Company) and
amortised on a straight-line basis over three years;
•	by ‘capitalising’ the item in the income statement.
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5. R
 evenue recognition on contracts in progress
(fixed-rate projects)
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4. Foreign currencies

3. Revaluation

CHAPTER 3

Tangible fixed assets, holdings and shares included under
financial assets are not subject to revaluation.

The Group includes deferred tax assets (relating to
reclaimable losses carried forward) under the assets on
the balance sheet to the extent that it is that probable that
a taxable profit will be recorded against which the losses
could be offset.

CHAPTER 3
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Statutory
Annual
Accounts
of Emakina
Group
as at 31
December
2019

The (Statutory) Annual Accounts of Emakina Group
are presented in a condensed version after appropriation
of the 2019 income. Pursuant to the Code on Companies
and Associations, the complete Annual Accounts and the
auditor’s report are filed at the National Bank of Belgium.
The Statutory Accounts only reflect the accounting
situation of the parent company as a holding company.
These accounts do not reflect the activity of the Group.

Statutory balance sheet established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
after distribution
31 /12 /18

Fixed assets

20 /28

38,380,386

37,198,371

21

2,263,752

810,081

Tangible assets

22 /27

13,446

700,697

Financial assets

28

36,103,188

35,687,593

280 /1

36,081,394

35,567,118

Participations

280

34,178,861

33,701,477

Amounts receivable

281

1,902,533

1,865,641

Other financial assets

284 /8

21,794

120,475

284

20,300

120,300

Guarantees

285 /8

1,494

175

Current assets

29/58

2,550,697

3,468,906

Amounts receivable within one year

40 /41

2,079,633

2,131,559

Trade debtors

40

398,633

734,474

Other amounts receivable

41

1,681,000

1,397,085

50 /53

8,761

584,780

50

8,761

584,780

Cash at bank and in hand

54 /58

89,850

376,387

Deferred charges and accrued income

490 /1

372,453

376,180

Total assets

20 /58

40,931,083

40,667,277

Intangible assets

Affiliated companies

Participating interests

Current investments
Own shares
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Codes
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Assets (EUR)

Statutory balance sheet established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
after distribution (continued)
Liabilities (EUR)

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

Equity

10 /15

23,834,708

23,076,556

Capital

10

9,347,962

9,347,962

100

9,347,962

9,347,962

Share premium account

11

3,436,644

3,436,644

Reserves

13

676,380

1,214,491

130

616,009

578,101

1310

8,761

584,780

Available reserves

133

51,610

51,610

Profit carried forward

14

10,373,722

9,077,459

17/49

17,096,375

17,590,721

17

3,344,441

2,815,313

42 /48

13,749,284

14,775,408

Debts payable after one year due within the year

42

1,839,442

1,536,125

Financial debts

43

1,900,000

1,974,509

Trade debts

44

883,052

1,343,103

440 /4

883,052

1,343,103

45

119,268

74,918

1. Taxes

450 /3

27,078

16,124

2. Wages and social security

454 /9

92,190

58,794

47/48

9,007,522

9,846,753

Deferred income and accrued charges

492 /3

2,650

0

Total liabilities

10 /49

40,931,083

40,667,277

Issued capital

Legal reserve
Unavailable reserves for own shares

Debts
Debts payable after one year
Debts payable within one year

CHAPTER 3

1. Suppliers
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Taxes, wages and social security
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Other debts

Statutory income statements established according
to Belgian accounting standards (Belgian GAAP)
Income statement (EUR)

70 /76A

6,608,631

6,279,349

Turnover

70

5,940,318

5,966,766

Capitalised production

72

197,738

128,785

Other operating income

74

470,575

183,798

60 /66A

6,722,675

5,907,322

60

676,091

751,921

600 /8

676,091

751,921

Services and other goods

61

4,834,020

4,327,398

Remuneration, social security charges and pensions

62

714,608

451,485

630

493,960

309,761

640 /8

3,996

6,208

66A

0

60,549

9901

-114,044

372,027

75

1,283,422

1,292,415

Income from financial fixed assets

750

1,263,225

1,266,107

Income from current assets

751

19,849

26,308

752/9

348

0

65

407,966

311,213

650

265,214

248,208

652/9

142,752

63,005

9903

761,412

1,353,229

67/77

3,261

1,300

67

3,261

1,300

9904

758,151

1,351,930

Codes

31 /12 /19

31 /12 /18

9906

9,835,610

9,490,855

9905

758,151

1,351,929

14P

9,077,459

8,138,926

791/2

576,019

0

792

576,019

0

691 /2

37,907

413,396

To legal reserve

6920

37,907

67,596

To other reserves

6920

0

345,800

14

10,373,722

9,077,459

Sales and services

Cost of sales and services
Raw materials and consumables
Purchases

D
 epreciations and amounts written off on formation expenses,
intangible and tangible fixed assets
Other operating expenses
Non-recurring operating charges
Operating income
Financial income

Other financial income
Financial charges
Debt charges
Other financial charges
Profit before tax
Income tax
Taxes
Profit for the year

Appropriations and withdrawals* (EUR)
Profit (loss) to be appropriated
Profit (loss) for the financial year to be appropriated
Profit (loss) carried over from the previous financial year
Withdrawals from capital and reserves
On the reserves
Appropriation to capital and reserves

Profit (loss) to be carried over

*

Proposal submitted for approval to the General Assembly on 22 April 2020.
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Auditor’s
reports

Independent auditor’s report to
the General Assembly of Emakina Group SA
for the year ended 31 December 2019
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We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the
shareholders’ meeting of 24 April 2017, in accordance
with the proposition by the Board of Directors following
recommendation of the Audit Committee. Our mandate
expires at the shareholders’ meeting that will deliberate
on the Annual Accounts for the year ending 31 December
2019. We performed the statutory audit of the Annual
Accounts of the Company during 15 consecutive years.

CHAPTER 3

As required by law and the Company’s articles of association,
we report to you as statutory auditor of Emakina Group SA
(the ‘Company’). This report includes our opinion on the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2019, the income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the disclosures
(all elements together the ‘Annual Accounts’) as well as our
report on other legal and regulatory requirements. These
two reports are considered one report and are inseparable.

Report on the audit of the Annual Accounts
Unqualified opinion
We have audited the Annual Accounts of Emakina Group SA,
that comprise of the balance sheet on 31 December 2019,
the income statement of the year and the disclosures, which
show a balance sheet total of €40,811,896 and of which
the income statement shows a profit for the year of €758,151.
In our opinion, the Annual Accounts give a true and fair
view of the Company’s net equity and financial position as
at 31 December 2019, and of its results for the year then
ended, prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework applicable in Belgium.

Basis for the unqualified opinion

CHAPTER 3

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the
‘Our responsibilities for the audit of the Annual Accounts’
section of our report.
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We have complied with all ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Annual Accounts in Belgium,
including those with respect to independence.
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We have obtained from the Board of Directors and the
officials of the Company the explanations and information
necessary for the performance of our audit and we believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Annual Accounts of the current reporting period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the Annual Accounts as a whole and in forming our opinion
thereon, and consequently we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

profitability or prospects of the company in which the
investment or shares are held.
We considered financial fixed assets to be a key audit matter
given their importance in the company's accounts and in
view of recent acquisitions.

Summary of the procedures performed
Our procedures include amongst other:
•	We have assessed the mathematical accuracy of
the detailed calculations supporting the valuation of
the financial fixed assets at acquisition cost on the basis
of the review of the acquisition contracts.
•	We have assessed the estimates and assumptions used by
the company to conclude on the need for write-downs,
including cash flow assumptions in relation to budgets and
operational data. In order to do so, we performed:
-	Evaluation of the model used, including the estimates
and assumptions (discount rate (WACC), perpetual
growth rate, 5-year budgets) used by the company.
-	Comparison of the recoverable amount of the participations
with the net asset value of the participations to conclude
on the necessity to proceed with impairments.
-	Evaluation of sensitivity analysis prepared by the
Company to understand the impacts of reasonable
changes in assumptions.
Evaluation of the accuracy of management's historical
estimates by comparing the budgets planned in 2018 with
the results achieved in 2019.
-	Consideration of impairment indicators by reading
the minutes of the Board of Directors and holding regular
meetings with management.
•	We have verified the relevance and completeness of the
information included in the notes to the Annual Accounts.

Financial fixed assets
Description of the key audit matter
Financial fixed assets, which appear in the balance sheet
at 31 December 2019 for a net amount of 36,103 million euro,
represent one of the most important items in the balance
sheet. They are recorded at their acquisition date at cost.
Investments and shares included under ‘Financial fixed
assets’ are subject to impairment in the event of a loss in
value or lasting depreciation justified by the situation,

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for
the preparation of the Annual Accounts
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of the Annual Accounts that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the financial reporting framework applicable
in Belgium and for such internal controls relevant to
the preparation of the Annual Accounts that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of Annual Accounts, the Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, and provide, if applicable,
information on matters impacting going concern, The Board
of Directors should prepare the financial statements using
the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
business operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of
the Annual Accounts

•	obtaining insight in the system of internal controls that
are relevant for the audit and with the objective to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;
•	evaluating the selected and applied accounting policies,
and evaluating the reasonability of the accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of
Directors as well as the underlying information given by
the Board of Directors;
•	conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’
use of the going-concern basis of accounting, and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether or not a material

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee
within the Board of Directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Annual
Accounts of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our report, unless the
law or regulations prohibit this.

Financial Information

•	identification and assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Annual Accounts, whether due to
fraud or error, the planning and execution of audit
procedures to respond to these risks and obtain audit
evidence which is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting material
misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than
when such misstatements result from errors, since fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

We communicate with the Audit Committee within the Board
of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and we maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also perform the
following tasks:

•	evaluating the overall presentation, structure and
content of the Annual Accounts, and evaluating whether
the Annual Accounts reflect a true and fair view of the
underlying transactions and events.

CHAPTER 3

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Annual Accounts are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to express an opinion
on these Annual Accounts based on our audit. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these Annual Accounts.

uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Annual Accounts or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on audit evidence obtained up to
the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going-concern;

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
the content of the Board of Directors’ report on the Annual
Accounts, the compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements regarding bookkeeping, as well as compliance
with the Belgian Company Code, as of 1 January 2020, the
Code of companies and associations and with the Company’s
articles of association.

CHAPTER 3
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Responsibilities of the statutory auditor

Independence matters

In the context of our mandate and in accordance with the
additional standard to the ISAs applicable in Belgium,
it is our responsibility to verify, in all material respects,
the Board of Directors’ report on the Annual Accounts,
the compliance with the legal and regulatory requirements
regarding bookkeeping, as well as compliance with the
Belgian Company Code, as of 1 January 2020, the Code
of companies and associations and with the Company’s
articles of association, as well as to report on these matters.

Our audit firm and our network have not performed any
services that are not compatible with the statutory audit of
the Annual Accounts and have remained independent of
the Company during the course of our mandate.

Aspects relating to Board of Directors’ report

Other communications

In our opinion, after carrying out specific procedures on the
Board of Directors’ report, the Board of Directors’ report is
consistent with the Annual Accounts and has been prepared
in accordance with articles 3:5 and 3:6 of the Code of companies
and associations (former Articles 95 and 96 of the Belgian
Company Code).

•	Without prejudice to certain formal aspects of minor
importance, the accounting records were maintained in
accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable in Belgium;

In the context of our audit of the Annual Accounts, we are
also responsible to consider whether, based on the information
that we became aware of during the performance of our
audit, the Board of Directors’ report contain any material
inconsistencies or contains information that is inaccurate or
otherwise misleading. In light of the work performed, there
are no material inconsistencies to be reported. In addition,
we do not provide any assurance regarding the Board of
Directors’ report.

No additional services, that are compatible with the statutory
audit of the Annual Accounts as referred to in Article 3:65
of the Code of companies and associations and for which fees
are due, have been carried out.

•	The appropriation of the results proposed to the General
Assembly complies with the relevant requirements of the
law and the Company’s articles of association;
•	There are no transactions undertaken or decisions taken
in breach of the articles of association or of the Belgian
Company Code, as of 1 January 2020, the Code of companies
and associations that we have to report to you;
•	This report is consistent with our supplementary
declaration to the Audit Committee as specified in article 11
of the regulation (EU) nr. 537/2014.

Aspects relating to the social balance sheet
The social balance sheet, to be published in accordance with
article 3:12, § 1, 8° of the Code of companies and associations,
includes both in form and in substance the required
information as prescribed by the Code of companies and
associations and does not contain any material inconsistencies
compared to the information we have in our audit files.

Diegem, 31 March 2020
EY Bedrijfsrevisoren BV
Statutory auditor
Represented by
Marie Kaisin*,
Executive director
*

Acting on behalf of a BV/SRL

Independent auditor’s report to
the General Assembly of Emakina Group SA
for the year ended 31 December 2019
As required by law and the Company’s articles of association,
we report to you as statutory auditor of Emakina Group SA
(the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries (together the ‘Group’).
This report includes our opinion on the consolidated
statement of the financial position as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the disclosures (all elements together
the ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’) as well as our
report on other legal and regulatory requirements. These
two reports are considered one report and are inseparable.

We have been appointed as statutory auditor by the
shareholders’ meeting of 24 April 2017, in accordance with
the proposition by the Board of Directors following
recommendation of the Audit Committee. Our mandate
expires at the shareholders’ meeting that will deliberate
on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ending 31 December 2019. We performed the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group during
15 consecutive years.
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Basis for the unqualified opinion

We have audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Emakina Group SA, that comprise of the consolidated
statement of the financial position on 31 December 2019,
the consolidated income statement of the year and the
disclosures, which show a consolidated balance sheet total
of €53,649,787 and of which the consolidated income
statement shows a loss for the year of €71,264.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing (‘ISAs’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the ‘Our responsibilities
for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section
of our report.

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated net equity and
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated results for the year then ended, prepared in
accordance with the financial reporting framework
applicable in Belgium.

We have complied with all ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in Belgium, including those with respect to
independence.
We have obtained from the Board of Directors and the
officials of the Company the explanations and information
necessary for the performance of our audit and we believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Unqualified opinion
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Report on the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Emphasis of certain matters
Without qualifying our opinion, we would like to draw
the attention to the fact that the valuation rules on
the amortisation of consolidated goodwill have been
modified during the year. According to article 3:8 of the
Royal Decree of April 29, 2019 in execution of the Belgian
Company and Association Code, justification as well as
impacts of the modification on the assets, liabilities
and results of the company are disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

Other matter
We point out that in the notes to the consolidated Annual
Accounts, the company communicates that it is not in
a position at this stage to quantify the financial impact of
the Covid 19 pandemic and that this will be the subject
of a specific communication at a later date as soon as it is
possible to calculate it.
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Key audit matters
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current
reporting period.
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These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition on fixed price contracts
and assessment of the work in progress
Description of the key audit matter
The Group executes amongst other fixed-price contracts
and the contribution of these contracts to the Company’s
revenues for the year ended 31 December 2019 was significant.
Each project includes a contractual fixed selling price and an
estimate of the services to be undertaken for their completion.
Revenues on contracts (orders) in progress are recognised
in the income statement using the percentage of completion
method, i.e. the result of the projects (including margin)
is recognised at the same rate as the progress of the work.
As a result, on the basis of the accounting principles used by
the Company, contracts in progress valued using this method
are recognised as assets under the heading contracts in
progress when the degree of completion anticipates the
invoicing schedule and as liabilities under the heading
of advance payments received when the invoicing schedule
anticipates the degree of completion of the work.

In the case of fixed-price contracts, services are valued on
the basis of the work performed, taking into account an
estimate of the remaining costs to be incurred to complete
the contract. If the production achieved, plus the costs
remaining to be incurred to complete the contract, is greater
than the total amount of the contract revenue, a provision
may be recorded in the accounts under liabilities on the
balance sheet.
Given the importance of these items and the degree of
judgment involved in estimating the percentage of
completion of orders, we considered the control of revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

Summary of the procedures performed
We have, amongst other, performed the following audit
procedures:
•	We have assessed the design and operating effectiveness
of the significant internal controls over the revenue
recognition process, including the approval of time
recording and its linkage to the current project. We also
assessed the general controls relating to the IT environment
with the assistance of our IT systems experts.
•	We performed walkthrough procedures for transactions
related to contracts for which a fixed price is required
by testing the revenues recognised on the basis of project
progress and the costs incurred.
•	We performed detailed analytical procedures on the results
of major contracts to detect unusual trends or transactions
or budget overruns by comparing the initial project budgets
with the costs and revenues realised on these projects.
•	On the basis of a selection of contracts determined using
criteria that we considered relevant, we corroborated
the significant data (budgets, costs already incurred and
remaining costs to be incurred, and rates of progress) with
the information obtained during interviews with project
managers and the information contained in the contracts.
•	We discussed and reviewed the most significant contract
forecasts with the project managers in order to identify
factors affecting the expected project results.
•	We assessed the accuracy of management’s historical
estimates by comparing the profitability forecast as
at December 31, 2019 with the results achieved for projects
closed in 2020.

Consolidated goodwill and scope
of consolidation
Description of the key audit matter
On 31 December 2019, consolidated goodwill amount to
€14,912,079. These goodwill consist of the differences, not
allocated to assets and liabilities, between the share in the
equity of the consolidated companies on the one hand and
the book value of the participations on the other hand.
Positive differences are isolated on the assets side of the
balance sheet, item III ‘consolidated goodwill’. Consolidated
goodwill are amortized over 10 years. These amortizations
are recorded under financial charges for the financial year.
We considered the value of consolidated goodwill to be a key
audit matter given its importance in the Group’s
Consolidated Accounts and in view of the recent changes in
the scope of consolidation as detailed in the Annual Accounts.

•	Evaluation of the model used, including the estimates and
assumptions (discount rate (WACC), perpetual growth rate,
5-year budgets) retained by the company with the help of
our valuation experts.
•	Comparison of the recoverable value of the investments
with the net asset value of the investments to conclude on
the need for accelerated amortisation of positive goodwill.
•	Evaluation of sensitivity analysis prepared by the
Company to understand the impacts of reasonable
changes in assumptions.

As part of the preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, and provide, if applicable, information on
matters impacting going concern, the Board of Directors
should prepare the financial statements using the going
concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
business operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

•	Assessment of the accuracy of management’s historical
estimates by comparing the budgets planned in 2018 with
the results achieved in 2019.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

•	Consideration of indicators of additional or exceptional
depreciation, by reading the minutes of the Board of
Directors and holding regular meetings with management.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Consolidated Financial Statements are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to express an opinion on these Consolidated Financial
Statements based on our audit. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial Information

We have, amongst other, performed the following audit
procedures:

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with the financial
reporting framework applicable in Belgium and for such
internal controls relevant to the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Summary of the procedures performed

Responsibilities of the Board of
Directors for the preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements
CHAPTER 3

Positive consolidated goodwill are subject to additional
or exceptional amortisation if, due to changes in economic
circumstances, it is no longer economically justified to
maintain them at this value in the consolidated balance
sheet. The company justifies the value of these positive
goodwill items by establishing valuations based on forwardlooking elements that involve elements of judgment.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and we maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also perform the
following tasks:
•	identification and assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error, the planning and execution
of audit procedures to respond to these risks and obtain
audit evidence which is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
material misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than
when such misstatements result from errors, since fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

•	obtaining insight in the system of internal controls that
are relevant for the audit and with the objective to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control;
CHAPTER 3
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•	evaluating the selected and applied accounting policies,
and evaluating the reasonability of the accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board
of Directors as well as the underlying information given
by the Board of Directors;

Financial Information

•	conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’
use of the going-concern basis of accounting, and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether or not a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s or Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on audit evidence obtained up to the
date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going-concern;

•	evaluating the overall presentation, structure and
content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, and
evaluating whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
reflect a true and fair view of the underlying transactions
and events.
We communicate with the Audit Committee within the Board
of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion,
we are also responsible for directing, supervising and
performing the audits of the subsidiaries. In this respect
we have determined the nature and extent of the audit
procedures to be carried out for Group entities.
We provide the Audit Committee within the Board of Directors
with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee
within the Board of Directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report,
unless the law or regulations prohibit this.

Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements
Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation
and the content of the Board of Directors’ report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, and other information
included in the annual report.

Independence matters

In the context of our mandate and in accordance with
the additional standard to the ISAs applicable in Belgium,
it is our responsibility to verify, in all material respects,
the Board of Directors’ report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, and other information included in the annual
report, as well as to report on these matters.

Our audit firm and our network have not performed any
services that are not compatible with the audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements and have remained
independent of the Company during the course of our mandate.

•	This report is consistent with our supplementary
declaration to the Audit Committee as specified in article 11
of the regulation (EU) nr. 537/2014.

In the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, we are also responsible to consider whether,
based on the information that we became aware of during the
performance of our audit, the Board of Directors’ report and
other information included in the annual report, being:
• Chapter 1 : Overview
• Chapter 2 : Emakina Group
• Chapter 3 : Financial information
• Chapter 4 : Appendices
contain any material inconsistencies or contains
information that is inaccurate or otherwise misleading. In
light of the work performed, there are no material
inconsistencies to be reported. In addition, we do not
provide any assurance regarding the Board of Directors’
report and other information included in the annual report.

Diegem, 31 March 2020
EY Bedrijfsrevisoren BV
Statutory auditor
Represented by
Marie Kaisin*,

Executive director
*

Acting on behalf of a BV/SRL
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In our opinion, after carrying out specific procedures on the
Board of Directors’ report, the Board of Directors’ report is
consistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements and
has been prepared in accordance with article 3:32 of the Code
of companies and associations. (former article 119 of the
Belgian Company code).

Other communications
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Aspects relating to Board of Directors’
report and other information included in
the annual report

No additional services, that are compatible with the audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements as referred to in
Article 3:65 of the Code of companies and associations and
for which fees are due, have been carried out.

CHAPTER 3

Responsibilities of the auditor

Statement
from the
company
directors
CHAPTER 3
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Brice Le Blévennec and Karim Chouikri, joint CEOs
and Managing Directors of Emakina Group, together
with Denis Steisel, Chairman of the Board of Directors,
declare that to the best of their knowledge, the
Consolidated Accounts closed on 31 December 2019
as well as the (Statutory) Annual Accounts closed on
31 December 2019, established in accordance with
Belgian accounting standards, give a faithful picture
of the assets, the financial situation and the results
of Emakina Group. In addition, the 2019 management
report contains a true account of the information to
be included.

Emakina.CH,
Lausanne

Share price
fluctuations
in 2019
Price (€)
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Financial
schedule
Half-Year financial report 2020: 25 September 2020
Annual press release 2020: 26 March 2021
Annual financial report 2020: 1 April 2021
Ordinary General Assembly 2020: 22 April 2021

|

|

November December

4
CHAPTER 4

250
Appendices

Appendices
Let’s conclude with Emakina
Group’s history and values,
and have a quick look at the
awards won in 2019.
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Values -----------------------------------------------------------------------------Awards 2019 ---------------------------------------------------------------A digital revolution -------------------------------------------------Glossary -------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Hu
Values
Prog
Expe
Agil
Progress

We see progress as the ultimate goal of everything
we accomplish: it acts as the driving force behind
the ideas and transformations that make the world
a better place. We anticipate and design the future
by using technology to facilitate everyday life.

Agility

Our rapidity and reactivity have always distinguished us
from the competition. True to the agile methodologies
and pioneering spirit of our beginnings, we do not hesitate
to challenge preconceived ideas and think outside the box:
this is how we constantly evolve and effectively respond
to the challenges of the Digital Transformation.

man
ress
rtise
ity

Human

Technology only makes sense when it serves
people: users are at the heart of all our strategies
and projects, of which they are the beneficiaries.
The quality, originality, efficiency and utility
of user experience are the essential ingredients
to ensure the loyalty of consumers and their
engagement with brands.

Our reputation for reliability is based on sound
financial management and a systematic focus
on the long-term. Determined to ensure the
future success of our clients, we design each
project according to principles of sustainability
and scalability.
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Sustainability
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Thanks to the complementary nature of our various
agencies, we have the necessary range of expertise to
shape successful digital experiences, both locally and
internationally: the technical skills, creativity and
commercial acumen of our specialists are the pillars
of our clients’ success.
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Expertise

Awards
2019
CHAPTER 4

The Reference, Ghent
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International




Route 1700 Truckers app (DP World)

The Reference
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Data News Awards
Route 1700 Truckers app (DP World)

The Reference

AVA Digital Awards
Platinum Award
• Web-based production
theathletesfoot.com (The Athlete’s Foot)
Emakina

• Digital marketing

AR TimePiece Experience (Van Cleef & Arpels)

Emakina

Gold Award
• Web-based production
ecco.com e-commerce platform (ECCO)
Emakina

Vendorama app & Event experience (Boucheron)
• Digital marketing
Emakina

YouTube Works Awards
Gold Award
• Best Use of Audience Insights
‘Komma hem’ YouTube video (SBAB)
Emakina
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Project of the Year
• ICT/Digital 
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Trends Awards
igital Pioneer Award
D

Technology
CHAPTER 4

Kentico Most Valued
Professional Award
Global Kentico MVP Award

Emakina
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Sitecore Most Valuable
Professional Award
Most Valuable Professionals (4 Awards) 

The Reference

Kentico Website Awards
e-Commerce Website of the Year

bardahl.fr (Bardahl)

Emakina

Umbraco Awards
Best Cloud Solution Award


vivaldisinterim.be (Vivaldis Interim)
The Reference

Local

• Best e-Commerce Website 
rituals.com (RITUALS)
Emakina

• B2C Video
‘Komma hem’ YouTube video (SBAB)
Emakina

‘Komma hem’ YouTube video (SBAB)
• Social Media
Emakina

100Wattare Awards
Gold
• Consumer Video
Bagge hittar drömjobbet med Blocket Jobb (Blocket Jobb)
Emakina

Roygalan Best Commercial Awards
Gold
• Humor Commercial
‘Komma hem’ YouTube video (SBAB)
Emakina

‘Komma hem’ YouTube video (SBAB)
• Best Music in Commercial
Emakina
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Gold
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Swedish Content Awards
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Gold SpinAward
 olden Ring Award
G
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1985
1990 —
1995
2000 —
2005
2010
—
A digital
revolution
2015

World
‘84

Apple Macintosh /IBM PC

EMAKINA
GROUP
Evolution

...
‘90

First browser
and first web page

‘91

First mobile phone

EMAKINA
GROUP
Success

‘92
‘93
‘94
‘95

First web banner

‘96

Deep Blue beats Garry
Kasparov at chess
Six Degrees, first social
networking site
Netflix /Google

‘97

Ex Machina (BE)

Launch of RTBF program that
ran until 2006

‘98

Net@Work (BE)

‘99

Make It Happen (BE)
Emalaya (BE)

‘00
‘01

1 billion web pages
Wikipedia

‘03

Emakina (BE)
E-facts (AT) /Doppelschicht
Diller & Partner (AT) /Ideal
Communications (AT)

CHAPTER 4

‘02

diamond:dogs (AT, CH)
becomes leader of Austria’s
digital agency market
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‘04
YouTube /Facebook

N°1 in Marketing Media

‘06

Twitter

‘07

iPhone

‘08

Airbnb /Spotify

Launch of Belgium’s
first online TV channel,
‘VW Escape TV’, that ran
for 3 years /Emakina Group
floats on Alternext (ALEMK)

‘09

Uber /iPad

‘10

WhatsApp /Instagram

‘11

Watson wins TV gameshow
Jeopardy/Snapchat

Inside Digital Media
names Emakina Belgium’s
top agency /N°1 by Pub
Magazine

NetLounge (AT)
GroupeReflect (FR)
Design is Dead (BE)
Suntzu (NL)
The Reference (BE)

Robert & Marien (BE)
Troy (BE) /Label (CH)

‘12
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‘05

EMAKINA
GROUP
Network
Metia (USA, GB et SG)
Digital Jungle (CN, JP et AU)

‘13

Your Agency (BE) /Proudfield (BE)
Relephant (NL,TR)

SinnerSchrader (DE et CZ)

‘14

Facebook acquires Oculus
Rift /Apple Watch

Launch of the Brand
Experience Score in France

Onlinezone (AT) /Merge Media
(NL) /Toy Agency (FR)

Bubblegum (ES) /Domino (IT)

‘15

DeepMind beats
professional Go player

diamond:dogs (AT, CH)
Endora (HR)

Asiance (KOR)

‘16

SpaceX launches reusable
rocket

‘17

The bitcoin reaches a value
of $20.000

‘18

Amazon Echo /Google Home
Apple HomePod /Magic Leap
One

Emakina remains Inside
Digital Media’s n°1 Belgium
agency
Emakina.CH is included
in the ‘Best of Swiss Web’
top 10
Design is Dead: 10 years of
collaboration with BASE

‘19
‘20

Google Stadia
Libra

DP World app is a huge success
D’Ieteren and Emakina have
worked together for 20 years
The Ref’ celebrates its 25th
birthday

Dempsey (SE)
DBG (SE)
Karbyn (US) /WittyCommerce
(TR) /Predictes (PL)
Emakina.AE (Dubai)
Emakina.RS (Novi Sad)
Emakina.SG (Singapore)
Emakina.US (New York)
Cloudworks (Dubai)

Air (BE)

G

Glossary
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AB testing
or multivariate
testing

Advergaming

A

AB testing (or split testing) is a method of testing
a hypothesis by randomly presenting two variations
of the content (variants A and B), with differences in
the parameter that is being tested. It is a special form of
statistical hypothesis testing. Because several parameters
and variables are tested to assess their impact on aspects
requiring improvement or optimisation, it is known
as multivariate testing. It uses statistical techniques
to analyse one or more ‘dependent’ variables via other
‘independent’ variables, i.e. those that are tested to
find the ideal combination.

The use of games or video games to promote brands, services
or products.

Agile methodologies group together the systems used to
develop IT projects (such as software design) and apply them
to all types of projects. The ‘Agile manifesto’, written in 2001,
uses the term ‘agile’ to describe a set of methods which are
more pragmatic than traditional ones, giving clients the
maximum input and responding more successfully to their
demands. They are designed to achieve optimal satisfaction
as set out in a development contract. Agile methods are based
on a common development cycle (iterative, incremental and
adaptive) and four common values (the team, the application,
collaboration and accepting change), broken down into twelve
principles of common and complementary practice.

Augmented
reality

In an augmented reality experience, computer systems
superimpose a virtual 3D or 2D model on the user’s
perceptions in real time. There are different ways of
projecting realistic virtual objects onto the real world: they
can involve visual perception (with virtual images overlaying
actual images) or other senses.

Back end
and front end

Bricks
& mortar

B

The front end refers to the visible part, i.e. the user interface,
of a computer program. The back end is the part of a program
which performs ‘invisible’ operations, including data
processing and management operations (updating content
which is visible at the front end, for example).

Refers to the physical points of sale such as shops and
boutiques, as opposed to digital points of sale such as
e-commerce websites and online marketplaces.

Appendices

In computing, the programming interface (often referred
to as the API for Application Programming Interface) of a
computer system provides services to other software.
It is provided by a software library, and usually accompanied
by a description of how client programs can use the API’s
features as a program provider.
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Application
for programming
interface (API)

CHAPTER 4

G

Agile

Business automation

Cloud computing

Refers to all the techniques and strategies used to automate
the internal processes of organisations. Its objective is the
automation of all redundant, time-consuming or laborious
tasks that machines and software are capable of performing
more efficiently than humans, and at a fraction of the cost.
This is made possible, in particular, by RPA (Robotic Process
Automation) and RPAII (Robotic Process Automation
based on Artificial Intelligence). Progress in this field makes
it possible to envisage the automation of automation itself.
Business Automation is about to radically revolutionise our
professional lives.

C

Cloud computing provides calculation, processing
and storage resources via remote servers, which users can
manage from their workstation via a network, usually
the Internet.

CHAPTER 4
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Content
management
system (CMS)
Content marketing

Customer
relationship
management (CRM)

A system providing businesses and organisations with a set
of functions, allowing them to manage website content
quickly and easily.

Content marketing is a strategy used by organisations or
brands to create and distribute media content in order to win
new customers. The content can be informative, useful or fun,
and be presented in the guise of news, videos, white books,
e-books, computer graphics, case studies, practical guides,
Q&As, photos, forums, corporate blogs, and so on.

Marketing devices, operations and materials that follow
a three-fold objective: to enhance customer relationships,
boost loyalty by getting to know customers better, and
maximise sales or profit margin per client. CRM includes
customer data collection and analysis techniques as well
as marketing and support operations. It uses all available
channels to connect with customers. More specifically, CRM
can refer to the information technology used to manage
customer relations. CRM typically aims to provide existing
and prospective customers with the products and services
most likely to interest them, based on available customer data.

Customer journey

Customer lifetime
value (CLV)

Refers to the discounted sum of the profits expected by a
company throughout the period during which a customer
remains loyal to the company. When a customer’s acquisition
cost is higher than its CLV, it is useless to launch a campaign
to recruit new customers.

D

the digital era.

Earnings before
interest, taxes
depreciation,
and amortisation
(EBITDA)

Online display advertising is the internet version of display
advertising. It can take the form of banners, or be merged in
the background layout of websites that display ads alongside
their content. The objective is to inform users about products,
services and to make them click on hyperlinked ads to redirect
them towards the advertiser’s content.

E

A company’s operating margin, that is, the difference between
its products and standard operating costs before interest,
depreciation, taxes and amortisation. It measures the health
of company’s core business, but does not take into account its
cash flow structure, its tax regime or its amortisation policy.

Appendices

Display advertising
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Digital Natives are people who grew up with information
and communications technologies, as opposed to digital
immigrants, who had to ‘convert’ to the technologies of

CHAPTER 4

Digital Native

Refers to all the interactions between a user (often called a
‘persona’) and a brand or organisation, from the first point of
contact to the completion of an objective (such as a purchase
or registration). The term refers to all these interactions, from
awareness to after-sales service via active consideration and
the buying decision. It can also refer specifically to the series
of interactions that take place on a specific online platform.

Enterprise resource
planning (ERP)

Enterprise resource planning systems are software packages
that help organisations plan, manage and optimise resources
while making their processes more efficient.

Employee experience

CHAPTER 4
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Framework

Front end

Gamification

Refers to user experiences whose beneficiaries are the
personnel of an organisation. The quality of the employee
experience is paramount, as organisations whose employee
experience does not measure up to the user experiences
offered to their consumers are doomed to see this imbalance
reflected in brand satisfaction, thus negatively affecting
business performance.

F

The libraries, tools and conventions behind application
development. A framework allows faster development (since
tools are provided) and makes the application easier to
adapt by using a standard methodology. Its components are
structured to interact with each other.

See ‘back end’.

G

Gamification is the use of game mechanisms and design
methods in other contexts to encourage certain behaviours,
develop certain skills or engage users in an application process.

Internet of Things

Encompasses all the interconnections between the Internet
and connected objects, allowing communication between them.
The objects can be switched on remotely or can simply
transfer data about their surrounding environment. Its uses
are countless and touch all aspects of modern life: health,
mobility, home automation, marketing, entertainment, etc.

K

Key performance indicators measure the success of an
organisation or project. They are usually identified at the
start of a project and measured after execution, showing
whether the solutions were effective or need to be adapted.

CHAPTER 4

Key performance
indicators (KPI)

I
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Master data

M

In the context of e-commerce, marketplaces are merchant
platforms that serve as go-betweens for brands, producers,
sellers and buyers, while managing the transactions
and offering logistical support.

Master data refers to the information shared across the
processes underpinning the activities of an organisation.
They are critical for the proper functioning of these processes
and requires constant quality management. Catalogue and price
data, for example, are master data for e-commerce platforms.

Appendices

Marketplace

Native
advertising
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Omnichannel

N

Native advertising is a type of online advertising designed to
attract the consumer’s attention by delivering content that
blends into a user experience. This advertising format varies
according to the form and function of the involved media.
Native advertising is similar to infomercials in this sense,
although it tends to be clearer about its intentions. The aim
is to make advertising less intrusive and thus users more likely
to engage. A very common form of native advertising is the
publication of sponsored articles on specialist blogs.

O

Omnichannel experiences span all of a brand’s communication
and sales channels. The experiences are fully centred around
around users, who are at the strategy’s core.
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Order
management
system (OMS)

Product
information
system (PIM)

An order management system (OMS) is used to encode
orders for products and/or services, producing an order before
the user completes the operation (a purchase, for example).
In e-commerce, order management systems often involve virtual
shopping baskets; they can be integrated with the catalogue
management system, promotion engine or stock status. Online
retail banking software used to collect payments before customers
give their electronic signature are also part of this category, as are
the buying and selling forms used on online trading platforms.

P

A product information system manages reference data
for a company’s products and is the primary source for
catalogue data.

Responsive

R

Responsive design adapts the presentation of content
to the user’s hardware and/or software, improving
ergonomics, usability and navigation. It aims to provide
the most relevant content and features for the device used,
assuming that people have different expectations of a web
system depending on the way they are accessing content,
products and services.

This term refers to the methods used to automate the
internal processes of organisations. RPA has seen many
advances since its inception: assisted RPA (RPA 1.0),
unassisted RPA (RPA 2.0), autonomous RPA and finally RPA
based on Artificial Intelligence (RPAAI).

Robotic process
automation
based on artificial
intelligence (RPAAI)

This is the latest evolution of RPA, taking advantage of
artificial intelligence and technologies such as cognitive
automation, machine learning, computer vision, etc. The
convergence of these technologies increases the efficiency
and speed of processes and further reduces operational costs.

Scrum

S

An agile IT management methodology in which members of
a development team work independently and collaboratively
with the client’s team. The development team is represented
by the scrum master, and the product beneficiaries are
represented by the product owner.
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Robotic process
automation (RPA)
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A financial ratio that measures the amount of money lost or
gained relative to the sum initially invested.

CHAPTER 4

Return on
investment (ROI)

Scrum master

The person who coordinates a development team using the
scrum methodology. The scrum master’s core tasks involve
overseeing daily routines, facilitating scrum artefacts
(burndown chart, sprint backlog, kanban, etc.) and dealing
with any impediments. He or she is also the intermediary who
manages all interactions with the product owner.
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Search engine
optimisation (SEO)

The technique used to improve the ranking of a website
in search engine results.

Service oriented
architecture (SOA)

Modular design solution architecture, where the
modules deliver functionalities to the organisation’s whole
technical infrastructure.
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Service level
agreement (SLA)

Software as
a service (SaaS)

A contract, or part of a contract, specifying all levels of
services to be provided by the service provider to the client.
It is a formal and binding commitment between a service
provider and customer. A maintenance contract usually sets
out the maximum response time for predefined types
of incidents.

Software as a service (SaaS) is a software distribution and
operating method which users access via an online server
rather than locally. In this cloud computing technique,
users can configure software functions but cannot define them
or develop new ones.

Usability

User equity

A value that is determined by the ability of a brand to
attract new users, take them through product and service
experiences, and engage with them throughout the entire
customer journey. User equity is measured via behavioural
observation, taking into account decision-making and
observed emotions. The term ‘users’ encompasses all the
people who can experience the products and/or services of a
brand: consumers, employees, suppliers, partners, etc.
Emakina’s User Equity Model™ calculates and improves the
ROI of the digital transformation of organisations, products
and services.

V

Virtual reality is a simulation using sound, video, touch
and other sensory stimulations to create a virtual interactive
environment in which the subject feels immersed. VR allows
a person to be immersed in an artificial, digitally created and
rendered universe.

Appendices

The user journey is different from the customer journey
because it doesn’t always imply a buying decision;
it encompasses all digital products and services, beyond
the mere commercial aspect they can have.
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Virtual
reality

Usability is the user’s perception of the effectiveness
(ability to perform a task) and efficiency (how long it takes
to perform it) of a website, software, mobile app or any
other digital interface.
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User journey

U

Waterfall

Web
service

W

The waterfall model is a sequential design process used
in the software development industry, where progress is
visualised as a waterfall (like a cascade) going through the
stages of design: Idea, Launch, Analysis, Design, Building,
Testing, Production/Implementation and Maintenance. The
term contrasts with iterative agile methodologies.

A web service is a means of communication between two
electronic devices via a network. It is a software function
enabled by the Web that is permanently available. Similar
to an API, it is an interface offered by the publisher’s system
and made available to other consumer systems.
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Emakina.HR, Zagreb
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